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CORPORATE OVERVIEW 

Tricon is an asset manager and principal investor focused on the residential real estate industry in North 
America with approximately $2.5 billion of assets under management. Tricon owns, or manages on behalf of 
third-party investors, a portfolio of investments in land and homebuilding assets, single-family rental homes, 
and manufactured housing communities. Our business objective is to earn fee income through our Private 
Funds and Advisory business and to invest for investment income and capital appreciation through our 
Principal Investment business. Since its inception in 1988, Tricon has invested in real estate and development 
projects valued at approximately $16 billion. More information about Tricon is available at www.triconcapital.com.
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All of Tricon’s investments are overseen by a four-person investment committee and a four-person senior 
accounting and fi nance team. Each member of the senior management team has extensive real estate, private 
equity and fi nance experience.
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Please refer to Management’s Discussion and Analysis for detailed analysis and metric defi nition



2  TRICON CAPITAL GROUP  2014 ANNUAL REPORT  

Co-Founder and Executive Chairman, 
outgoing Chief Executive Offi cer

NOTE FROM 
DAVID BERMAN

2014 was a record year for Tricon, with all of our business verticals generating earnings 
signifi cantly greater than the prior year’s results. Adjusted EBITDA was $100 million, com-
pared to just $4.8 million in 2011 (a short four years ago). This growth is a testament to our 
business strategy, the strength and resilience of our team and the support we have received 
from both the public and private markets. I sincerely thank our Board of Directors, our employ-
ees, shareholders, limited partners and key banking and private market relationships for the 
incredible effort and commitment that have gone into helping establish Tricon as a “housing 
brand” and a leader in the North American residential industry. 

our acquisition, resulting in a 78% increase 

in total contractual fees earned by Tricon 

when compared to the previous year. After 

netting out the minority interest, we earned 

$3.7 million of EBITDA from our investment 

in Johnson, which represents an unlevered 

yield of approximately 18% on our acquisi-

tion. While we expect Johnson’s earnings to 

be down in 2015 as a result of the impact 

on the Houston economy of the signifi cant 

decline in oil prices, we have ambitious 

plans to grow the Johnson brand by 

diversifying its geographic footprint – open-

ing up new master-plan communities in 

other strong regional markets where Johnson 

can leverage its deep relationships with 

public and private homebuilders.

 

Tricon Housing Partners
In our land and homebuilding investment 

business, now known as Tricon Housing 

Partners, our transformative purchase in 

2013 of a 68.4% interest in THP1 US was the 

DEAR 
FELLOW 
SHAREHOLDERS:

2014 may also be characterized as a year of 

both growth and consolidation, a concerted 

effort to absorb previous acquisitions and 

ready ourselves for future growth. As we 

look forward to 2015, it is perhaps pertinent 

to detail for each of our business lines the 

highlights of this past year:

 

Private Funds and Advisory

In our Private Funds and Advisory business, 

third-party assets under management (AUM) 

increased by 27% year over year through 

the formation of several land and home-

building separate accounts and co-invest-

ment vehicles. 

In mid-April 2014, we acquired a 50.1% 

interest in the development management 

arm of the Johnson Development Corpora-

tion (“Johnson”), one of the preeminent land 

developers in the United States. Johnson 

generated $11.6 million of contractual fee 

income in the nearly nine months following 



major driver of our record performance in 

2014. During the course of 2014, THP1 US’s 

projects sold 409 homes and lots, produced 

$36.3 million (US$33.0 million) of income for 

Tricon on our US$260 million investment and 

distributed US$50.5 million of cash to the 

Company (US$72.2 million when including 

the 2013 stub year). That said, the total 

amount of cash distributed in 2014 was 

actually lower than we anticipated, as some 

closings which were expected to take place 

in late 2014 were pushed ahead into 2015. 

The income fl owing from our investment in 

THP1 US together with the fair market value 

increases in our overall portfolio, resulted in 

the Company generating record income of 

$42.8 million – a 131% increase over 2013. 

These results do not include the signifi cant 

foreign exchange gains resulting from the de-

cline in the value of the Canadian dollar, 

which was essentially at par with the US 

dollar when we closed the acquisition of our 

interest in THP1 US in August 2013.

We continue to believe that THP1 US will 

produce $300 million of free cash fl ow for 

Tricon over the next few years. With the 

Faria Preserve project expected to be under 

contract in the fi rst half of 2015 and with 

Vida, our second condominium project in 

the San Francisco portfolio, nearing 

completion, we are hopeful that a consider-

able amount of that cash fl ow will material-

ize in 2015. 

Our current pipeline of new US land and 

Above, left to right: Rockwell, San Francisco, California (THP1 US); and Villa Metro, Santa Clarita, California (THP2 US)

homebuilding projects remains robust at 

approximately $500 million. Given that we 

believe we are still in the early innings of the 

US economic recovery and that there is no 

shortage of attractive opportunities in the 

US, we would expect to replace most, if not 

all, of the projects that will be completed in 

the coming quarters with new investments.

 

Tricon American Homes
At Tricon American Homes, our single-family 

rental investment subsidiary, our opera-

tions are now fully integrated across our 

eleven markets. We also reached our 

publicly stated goal of owning 5,000 

homes by the end of 2014 slightly ahead of 

schedule and are in the advanced stages 

of a securitization transaction. Jonathan 

Ellenzweig, who heads up our San 

Francisco offi ce, and his team at Tricon 

American Homes deserve praise for 

delivering on some ambitious targets in 

2014, thereby positioning us for solid 

growth in the years ahead.

In terms of operating results, our 2014 net 

operating income increased 120% year over 

year to $30.7 million (US$27.8 million), 

partially as a result of maintaining operating 

margins at 63% while increasing in-place 

occupancy by 6% (to 84%) on a total 

portfolio that grew by more than 1,700 

homes over the course of the year. In turn, 

total investment income in 2014 increased 

111% year over year to $18.9 million as a 

result of the enlarged portfolio and improve-
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ments in our operating metrics. 

We continue to enjoy strong home price 

appreciation in our markets, which in turn 

has resulted in signifi cant increases in 

Tricon American Homes’ unrealized income. 

As we prepare for a possible securitization 

transaction, we obtained Broker Price 

Opinions (BPOs) on 2,398 homes located in 

eight of our eleven markets in Q4. This, 

combined with fair market value increases 

recorded on our portfolio throughout the 

year (using the Automated Valuation 

Methodology) enabled us to produce a total 

fair market value uplift of $37.4 million in 

2014 (compared to $32.1 million in 2013), 

refl ecting both the substantial increase in 

home prices in the United States and the 

value we have added through our extensive 

renovation program. 

 

Tricon Lifestyle Communities
At Tricon Lifestyle Communities, the division 

spearheading our entry into the manufac-

tured housing community (MHC) business, 

we are focused on building an acquisition 

pipeline and on purchasing communities. At 

the time of writing, we own one community 

in Phoenix (the 314-pad Longhaven Estates) 

and have another 200-pad community 

under contract in Apache Junction, just east 

of Phoenix. Our pipeline is currently about 

$100 million and we expect to be able to 

acquire one to two communities per 

quarter, which may be augmented by 

portfolio acquisition opportunities that may 
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ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT GROWTH
Since going public in May 2010, Tricon’s Assets 
Under Management has grown at a compound 
annual growth rate of 31% to $2.5 billion *

$853
$964

$1,115

$1,858

 2010  2011  2012  2013 2014

$2,485(in $ millions)

CAGR 31%

come up from time to time. 

We remain comfortable with both our 

decision to enter the MHC business and its 

operating fundamentals, while acknowledg-

ing that building scale remains a challenge, 

but not an insurmountable one. With that 

said, we intend to remain disciplined and 

maintain our initial acquisition plan of 

purchasing three to four star parks primarily 

in the US sunbelt region. We have no intention 

of “chasing yield” and we remain focused 

on patiently building an institutional-quality 

portfolio of communities.

 

In Summary 
In summary, 2014 was a very positive year 

for Tricon. With much of the heavy lifting 

related to strategy formation, industry 

research and partner identifi cation behind 

us, we are well positioned to continue to 

grow in each of our business verticals. 

Although Tricon’s recent success has 

happened under my watch, those in the 

know recognize that much of the vision and 

energy that helped accomplish this came 

from Gary Berman. Acknowledging this, 

the Board of Directors felt it appropriate 

that Gary offi cially assume the mantle of 

CEO and he was appointed to this position 

in March 2015. I believe that not only is 

Gary incredibly talented and capable, but 

also that he is supported by an extremely 

intelligent, knowledgeable and hard-work-

ing senior management team – a team that 

was augmented signifi cantly in 2014 with 

four new hires. 

It is incumbent on every company to 

prepare for the CEO’s succession and we 

have been preparing for this for over a year. 

Accordingly, I am confi dent that the 

leadership transition will be seamless. To 

this end, the Board has asked me to 

assume the position of Executive Chairman, 

which I have willingly done, as well as 

remaining on as the Chair of Tricon’s 

Investment Committee, which I am more 

than happy to do. I remain totally committed 

to Tricon, the company I helped found. 

Accordingly, it is with much anticipation that 

I look forward to my new role – that of 

helping Gary and his team as they take the 

Company on its exciting journey to an even 

higher plateau.

DAVID BERMAN

Co-Founder and Executive Chairman, 

outgoing Chief Executive Offi cer

Toronto

6 April 2015

Above, left to right: Williams Island, Florida (THP1US); Silver Tower, Burnaby, British Columbia 
(THP3 Canada); and Vida, San Francisco, California (THP1 US)

*  Since going public in May 2010, Tricon has raised $1.3 billion of new third-party equity  
 capital for various land and homebuilding projects
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President and Chief Executive Offi cer, Director

NOTE FROM 
GARY BERMAN

I feel incredibly privileged and excited to 

become the CEO of Tricon, a company 

David founded in 1988 along with Geoff 

Matus. I know fi rst-hand how much effort 

was required in the early years to establish 

Tricon’s track record and reputation and it 

is with great honour that I accept the 

responsibility to lead Tricon forward and 

uphold the values that were put in place by 

our founding principals. I want to thank our 

Board of Directors for their belief in me and 

for their ongoing support. David and Geoff, 

in particular, have been tremendous 

mentors over the years and I am incredibly 

appreciative of all the knowledge they have 

imparted and the time they have invested 

in my professional growth. I look forward 

to working closely with both of them in the 

years to come as Tricon grows from 

strength to strength. 

The idea of Tricon becoming a “housing 

brand”, whereby we invest our own capital 

into related and complementary residential 

verticals and then leverage our investment 

by acting as an asset manager, was 

established under David’s watch. It has 

been a powerful concept that I intend to 

continue. And so, with our strategy in place, 

it will be “business as usual” at Tricon going 

forward. 

With nearly 100% of our balance sheet 

invested in the United States, we are better 

positioned than ever to take advantage of 

the ongoing US economic and housing 

recovery that is now hitting its stride. The 

fundamentals for US housing are solidly 

intact, with strong job growth, higher 

population growth compared to the rest of 

the Western world, historically low 

mortgage rates, near-record housing 

affordability, lower gas prices, supply that 

is anywhere from balanced to tight in our 

key markets, and growing household 

demand. In fact, given that credit remains 

relatively tight and that housing starts are 

50% below the 50-year average, it seems 

possible that we are still in the early innings 

of a US housing recovery with the potential 

for a prolonged upcycle given pent-up 

demand from millennials who are deferring 

their inevitable decision to form new 

households.

 

Our various housing verticals, namely 

Tricon Housing Partners, Tricon American 

Homes and Tricon Lifestyle Communities, 

all stand to benefi t from a better economic 

outlook, with the expectation that Tricon 

Housing Partners will lead the way in the 

earlier part of the cycle with superior 

risk-adjusted returns. Our different 

business lines complement and reinforce 

one another, allowing us to service the 

entire North American housing demo-

graphic in terms of socio-economics and 

household life-cycle. This provides us with 

a more complete picture of the housing 

industry and hopefully will make Tricon a 

better and more informed investor in the 

process. 

As we look forward, we are also building 

Tricon to be able to better withstand cycles, 

as Tricon American Homes and Tricon 

Lifestyle Communities should hold up 

relatively well in a down cycle since they 

provide essential affordable housing 

services to American households, creating 

an implicit hedge in our business model vis-

à-vis the inherent cyclicality of new housing.

 

Further, by expanding our offerings or 

business lines, we have also positioned 

ourselves better to attract interest from 

third-party capital providers. Over the past 4 

years, our AUM has grown at a compound 

annual growth rate of 31% to $2.5 billion, and 

our goal is to continue to increase that to 

roughly $5 billion over the next fi ve years by 

seeking the participation of private investors 

in our various investment offerings. 

Finally, with an upsized credit facility, 

signifi cant proceeds expected from our 

interest in THP1 US and our plan to 

repatriate equity through a possible 

securitization of our single-family rental 

portfolio, it is not a stretch to say we are in 

a position to control our own destiny and I 

am, therefore, very excited about Tricon’s 

prospects for the future. 

GARY BERMAN

President and Chief Executive Offi cer, 

Director

Toronto

6 April 2015

LOOKING
AHEAD:
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Tricon continues to pursue opportunistic residential 
real estate investments across the US and 
Canada with the goal of becoming a “one-stop 
shop” for investors, developers and operators. 

LAND AND HOMEBUILDING

SINGLE-FAMILY RENTAL

MANUFACTURED HOUSING

TRICON AT A GLANCE INVESTMENT STRATEGY

• Each investment undergoes due diligence and approval 
by Tricon’s Investment Committee and is in key 
established markets that are expected to benefi t from 
above average population demographics and job growth

• Tricon targets the “smile” states, markets with strong 
underlying fundamentals (highest levels of employment/
permit ratio growth – California, Arizona, Texas, Florida, 
Georgia and North Carolina)

• Tricon’s strategy is to work with local operating partners 
and “on the ground” employees to acquire or develop 
high-quality residential lots and houses in major growth 
markets across the US Sunbelt

• Tricon has been working with many of the same 
operating partners and local operators over the last 

 10 – 20 years, leading to signifi cant repeat business

Asset manager and principal investor 
focused on the residential real estate 
industry in North America



10% 
2,578
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4% 
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2% 
495
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1% 
90
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29% 
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9% 
2,241
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
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20% 
$5,734

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA

5%
$1,300

SOUTHERN 
CALIFORNIA

9%
$2,522

PHOENIX

8%
$2,353

RENO 

6%
$1,608

LAS VEGAS

4%  
$1,031

SAN ANTONIO

7% 
$2,046
ATLANTA 

19%
$5,228 
CHARLOTTE   

16% 
$4,340
SOUTHEAST FLORIDA

5%
$1,282
TAMPA

1%
$386
HOUSTON

OVERVIEW
•  Tricon has been a very active investor in US land and homebuilding 

assets since the 2008 credit crisis
•  Most investments have been made through Tricon’s commingled funds 

and separate accounts
•  Tricon currently owns/controls 25,326 residential lots/homes/

multi-family units and 848 acres of commercial land
•  Over a 27 year period, Tricon has committed more than $2.3 billion 
 of equity in over 165 land and homebuilding transactions
 

EXECUTION STRATEGY
•  Provide equity-type capital to local/regional developers and builders of 

residential lots, homes and multi-family units
•  Tricon typically co-invests 10% of the capital commitment in each 

investment vehicle
•  Target the “smile” states, markets with strong underlying fundamentals 

(California, Arizona, Texas, Florida, Georgia and North Carolina)
•  Tricon continues to actively evaluate investment opportunities in Canada 

but believes stronger risk-adjusted returns can be achieved in the US 
where it expects to continue to focus its investment activity

OVERVIEW
•  One of a small group of players who are “institutionalizing” the 

single-family rental industry with a fully-integrated business platform
•  Portfolio of 5,030 homes at December 31, 2014
•  Average all-in cost per home of $117,000 and average rent of $1,139
•  Platform is capitalized with $270 million of equity and a US$400 million 

warehouse credit facility

EXECUTION STRATEGY
•  Buy, renovate and lease properties across target markets in the 
 “smile” states
•  Mature markets: Northern California, Southern California, Phoenix, 

Reno and Las Vegas
•  Active markets: San Antonio, Houston, Southeast Florida, Charlotte, 

Tampa and Atlanta
•  Target is to acquire 400 – 500 homes per quarter

OVERVIEW
• Tricon has commenced assembly of an institutional-quality portfolio of 

manufactured housing properties across the United States, with a 
primary focus on the “smile” states

• The manufactured housing industry is ripe for consolidation as it is highly 
fragmented with private investors

• Tricon and Cobblestone Real Estate LLC have entered into a partnership 
to acquire and manage a portfolio of three to four-star communities 

EXECUTION STRATEGY
• Target markets are primarily located in the “sunbelt”, underpinned by 

strong fundamentals such as robust job and population growth
• Target well-located MHCs that are initially deemed to be three to 

four-star quality but remain undercapitalized and lack professional 
 asset management, and as a result suffer from below market rents and 

lower occupancy

TRICON AMERICAN HOMES

2014 Net Operating Income by Market (US $000)
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3% 
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TRICON HOUSING PARTNERS

Geographic Breakdown of Current Inventory/Potential Future Supply*

*  Represents future supply of private  
 funds projects (by residential lots,  
 homes and multi-family units)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION 
AND ANALYSIS
of Results of Operations and Financial Condition
for the Year Ended December 31, 2014
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1. Introduction

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) is dated as  
of March 10, 2015, the date it was approved by the Board of Directors 
of the Company, and reflects all material events up to that date.  
It should be read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated 
Financial Statements and related notes of Tricon Capital Group Inc. 
(“Tricon” or the “Company”) for the year ended December 31, 2014. 
All amounts have been expressed in Canadian dollars, unless oth-
erwise noted. Additional information about the Company, including  
our 2014 Annual Information Form, is available on our website at  
www.triconcapital.com, and on the Canadian Securities Administra- 
tors’ website at www.sedar.com. 
 The audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2014 were prepared using International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) accounting policies consistent with the 
Company’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year 
ended December 31, 2013.

1.1  Forward-looking Statements
Certain statements in this MD&A may be considered “forward-looking 
information” as defined under applicable securities laws (“forward-
looking statements”). Statements other than statements of historical 
fact contained in this document may be forward-looking statements. 
Wherever possible, words such as “may”, “would”, “could”, “will”, 
“anticipate”, “believe”, “plan”, “expect”, “intend”, “estimate”, “aim”, 
“endeavour”, “project”, “continue” and similar expressions have been 
used to identify these forward-looking statements. These statements 
reflect management’s expectations, intentions and beliefs concerning 
anticipated future events, results, circumstances, economic perfor-
mance or expectations with respect to Tricon and its subsidiaries and 
are based on information currently available to management and on 
assumptions that management believes to be reasonable. In addition to 
the specific assumptions noted below, such assumptions include, but 
are not limited to: Tricon’s positive future growth potential; continuing  

positive results of operations; continuing positive future prospects and 
opportunities; demographic and industry trends remaining unchanged; 
availability of a stable workforce; and future levels of indebtedness and 
current economic conditions remaining unchanged.
 This MD&A includes forward-looking statements pertaining to:

• Fund and investment performance (including, in particular: pro-
jected Internal Rate of Return (“IRR”) and Return on Investment 
(“ROI”), projected net cash flow, unrealized gross cash flow, and 
projected cash flows). IRRs, ROIs and unrealized cash flows are 
based in part on Tricon’s projected cash flows for incomplete proj-
ects in its funds. Such figures are derived through a process in 
which the developers for projects in Tricon’s funds prepare for 
Tricon detailed quarterly and annual budgets and cash flow pro-
jections for all incomplete projects, which budgets and projec-
tions are based on current market information and local market 
knowledge. Upon receipt of such information, Tricon reviews the 
information and makes necessary adjustments or provides neces-
sary contingencies based on its experience. These adjustments 
or contingencies may come in the form of extending a project’s 
sales or construction timeline, reducing a project’s expected rev-
enue, increasing a project’s expected costs or some combination 
of the foregoing. Numerous factors may cause actual fund and 
investment performance to differ from current projections, includ-
ing those factors noted under “Risk Definition and Management”.

• Tricon American Homes occupancy, and in particular the positive 
impact of management integration. These statements are based in 
part on the expected impact of operational synergies and advan-
tages. Occupancy is heavily dependent on overall tenant demand 
for single-family rental homes. Demand is dependent on a number 
of factors, including macro-economic factors, many of which are 
discussed in this MD&A under “Risk Definition and Management”. 
If these or other factors lead to declining demand, occupancy may 
be negatively impacted. 

Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis
of Results of Operations and Financial Condition
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 
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• Anticipated demand for homebuilding, single-family rental homes 
and manufactured housing communities and any correspond-
ing effect on the Company’s performance. These statements are 
based on management’s analysis of demographic and employ-
ment data and other information that it considers to be relevant 
indicators of trends in residential real property demand in the 
markets in which the Company carries on its business. Housing 
demand is dependent on a number of factors, including macro-
economic factors, many of which are discussed in this MD&A 
under “Risk Definition and Management”. If these or other factors 
lead to declining demand, occupancy and the pace or pricing of 
home sales may be negatively impacted.

• The ongoing availability of single-family rental homes at prices that 
match the Company’s underwriting model. These statements are 
based on management’s analysis of market data that it considers 
to be relevant indicators of trends in home pricing and availability 
in the markets in which the Company conducts its business. Home 
prices are dependent on a number of factors, including macro-
economic factors, many of which are discussed in this MD&A 
under “Risk Definition and Management”. If these or other factors 
lead to increases in home prices above the Company’s expecta-
tion, it may become more difficult for the Company to find rental 
homes at prices that match the Company’s underwriting model.

• The Company’s intent to build a manufactured housing commu-
nity portfolio and attract investment in it. These statements are 
based on management’s current intention in light of its analysis of 
current manufactured housing community market conditions and  
its understanding of investor interest in the sector, which are fac-
tors outside of the Company’s control. Should market conditions 
or other factors impact the Company’s ability to build a manufac-
tured housing community portfolio, actual results may differ from 
its current intention.

Forward-looking statements involve significant known and unknown 
risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Many factors, including those 
noted above, could cause Tricon’s actual results, performance or 
achievements to be materially different from any future results, per-
formance or achievements that may be expressed or implied by  
forward-looking statements in this MD&A, including, without limita-
tion, those listed in the “Risk Definition and Management” section of 
this MD&A. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties mate-
rialize, or should assumptions underlying the forward-looking state-
ments prove incorrect, actual results, performance or achievements 
could vary materially from those expressed or implied by the forward-
looking statements contained in this MD&A. See “Risk Definition and 
Management” for a more complete list of risks relating to an invest-
ment in the Company and an indication of the impact the materializa-
tion of such risks could have on the Company, and therefore cause 
actual results to deviate from forward-looking statements.

 Although the forward-looking statements contained in this MD&A 
are based upon what management currently believes to be reason-
able assumptions, there can be no assurance that actual results, 
performance or achievements will be consistent with these forward-
looking statements. The forward-looking statements contained in 
this document are expressly qualified in their entirety by this caution-
ary statement. We caution that the foregoing list of important fac-
tors that may affect future results is not exhaustive. When relying 
on our forward-looking statements to make decisions with respect 
to the Company, investors and others should carefully consider the 
foregoing factors and other uncertainties and potential events. The 
forward-looking statements in this MD&A are made as of the date 
of this document and the Company does not intend to, or assume 
any obligation to, update or revise these forward-looking statements 
or information, whether written or oral, to reflect new information, 
events, results or circumstances or otherwise after the date on which 
such statement is made to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated 
events, except as required by law, including securities laws.

1.2  Overview
Tricon Capital Group (TSX:TCN) is an asset manager and princi-
pal investor focused on the residential real estate industry in North 
America with approximately $2.5 billion of assets under management. 
Since its inception in 1988, Tricon has invested in real estate and 
development projects valued at approximately $16 billion. Tricon’s 
business objective is to earn fee income through its Private Funds 
and Advisory business and invest for investment income and capital 
appreciation through its Principal Investment business segments. 

Private Funds and Advisory
Tricon manages an investment portfolio of land and homebuilding 
assets on behalf of third-party investors in the US and Canada. Our 
business objective in our Private Funds and Advisory business is to 
earn Contractual Fees and Performance Fees through:

(i) Asset management of third-party capital, including private com-
mingled funds, separate accounts, side-cars and syndicated 
investments; currently, the Company’s asset management busi-
ness is focused on investments in land and homebuilding assets 
through Tricon Housing Partners.

(ii) Development management and related advisory services for mas-
ter planned communities through Tricon’s 50.1% investment in 
The Johnson Companies LP (“Johnson”).
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The following is a list of active private commingled funds, separate 
accounts, side-cars and syndicated investments: 
• Tricon Housing Partners US LP (“THP1 US”, formerly Tricon IX LP)
• Tricon Housing Partners US II LP (“THP2 US”, formerly Tricon XI LP) 
• Tricon Housing Partners Canada LP (“THP1 Canada”, formerly 

Tricon VIII LP) 
• Tricon Housing Partners Canada II LP (“THP2 Canada”, formerly 

Tricon X LP) 
• Tricon Housing Partners Canada III LP (“THP3 Canada”, formerly 

Tricon XII LP) 
• Separate Accounts include Cross Creek Ranch, Fulshear Farms, 

Grand Central Park (formerly Grand Lakes) and Tegavah
• US side-cars include Vistancia West, Arantine Hills and Lake 

Norman
• Canadian syndicated investments include Five St. Joseph, 

Heritage Valley and Mahogany

Principal Investments
As a principal investor, the Company currently invests through its 
Balance Sheet in three related residential business lines, with the 
objective of generating investment income and capital appreciation, 
as follows:

(i) Tricon Housing Partners (“THP”, formerly “Land and Homebuild-
ing”) – Co-investment in development-oriented private com-
mingled funds, separate accounts and side-cars that provide 
equity-type capital to local operators for land development, 
homebuilding, multi-family construction and ancillary commercial 
development.

(ii) Tricon American Homes (“TAH”, formerly “Single-Family Rental”) –  
Investment in US single-family rental (“SFR”) homes across vari-
ous states. 

(iii) Tricon Lifestyle Communities (“TLC”, formerly “Manufactured 
Housing Communities”) – Investment in US manufactured hous-
ing communities (“MHC”) where land parcels are leased to owners 
of prefabricated homes.

1.3  Strategy and Value Creation
Private Funds and Advisory
In our Private Funds and Advisory business, the Company man-
ages and originates investments through private commingled funds, 
separate accounts, side-cars or syndicated investments. Through its 
sponsored investment vehicles, the Company provides equity-type 
financing to experienced local or regional developers/builders in the 
United States and Canada in the form of either participating loans, 
which consist of a base rate of interest and/or a share of net cash flow, 
or joint ventures. These development partners or operators acquire, 
develop, and/or construct primarily residential projects including 
single-family and multi-family land development, homebuilding, and 
multi-family construction. 
 

 Our investors include plan sponsors, institutions, endowments, 
foundations and high net worth investors who seek exposure to the 
residential industry both in the United States and Canada. We cur-
rently manage capital for approximately 20 active institutional inves-
tors, including three of the top 30 global institutions investing in real 
estate as measured by assets (Source: Private Equity Real Estate 
(“PERE”)). Each investment vehicle provides equity-type capital to 
local or regional developers/builders to finance property acquisition, 
planning and entitlement activities, land development, vertical con-
struction and sales efforts. These projects typically require anywhere 
from $10 million to $150 million of equity capital and take three to 
eight years to complete. Each underlying business plan entails the 
sale of finished lots or super pads to public or regional homebuilders  
or homes/condominiums to consumers such that the investments 
naturally liquidate.
 Tricon views the land and homebuilding business as a three- 
step process that includes 1) rezoning and entitlement activity;  
2) installation of horizontal infrastructure, namely roads and utilities;  
and 3) vertical construction of single-family and multi-family dwell-
ings. In order to mitigate risk, our preference is to generally invest in 
the second and third phase, although we will take entitlement risk, 
primarily when base zoning is in place or approvals are only admin-
istrative in nature. 
 Given that the business plan requires the developer/builder to 
add value through planning, development and construction work, 
the Company typically underwrites investments to achieve 20% plus 
annual compounded returns, recognizing that there may be some 
adjustments needed along the way. Tricon typically receives annual 
contractual fees of 1–2% per annum based on committed or invested 
capital during the life of the investments. After the return of capital 
and a pre-agreed upon preferred return, Tricon endeavours to receive 
performance fees based on terms outlined in the various Limited 
Partnership agreements. 
 Tricon currently operates in nine major markets across the United 
States (Northern and Southern California; Phoenix, Arizona; Austin, 
Dallas and Houston, Texas; Southeastern Florida; Charlotte, North 
Carolina; Atlanta, Georgia) and four major markets in Canada (Greater 
Vancouver area, Calgary, Edmonton and Toronto). 
 The Company currently believes that the best risk-adjusted invest-
ment opportunities for land and homebuilding are available in the 
United States, particularly in the sunbelt or the so-called “smile” 
states in which it is currently operating. These markets continue to 
show above average population and job growth and thus require  
a significant amount of new homebuilding activity to meet demo-
graphic demand. 
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Johnson Acquisition
Through our 50.1% investment in Johnson, the Company earns 
contractual development fee income and sales commissions from 
the development and sale of single-family lots and commercial land 
within the master planned communities that Johnson manages.
 Johnson is an active development manager of master planned 
communities in the United States and the only development man-
ager in the United States to have three master planned communities 
ranked in the top 20 in 2014 (Source: Johnson Burns Real Estate 
Consulting). Johnson earns development management fees and 
sales commissions from the sale of residential lots and commercial 
land within the master planned communities that it manages. The 
aggregate fees and commissions are typically 3–5% of land sales 
revenue and are generally paid to Johnson on the closing to a third-
party homebuilder or commercial developer. Land sales are typically 
lumpy and difficult to predict quarter-to-quarter.
 Over the long term, the Company expects recurring contractual 
development fee income will be generated by the development and 
sale of over 20,000 residential lots and 1,250 acres of commercial land 
managed by Johnson.

Principal Investments
Tricon Housing Partners
Through Tricon Housing Partners, our land and homebuilding invest-
ment subsidiaries, the Company co-invests in private commingled 
funds, separate accounts and side-cars that participate in the devel-
opment of residential real estate across North America. The Company 
typically co-invests 10% of the total capital required for the various 
investment vehicles and raises the balance from private investors, 
which are generally institutional. As a co-investor, the Company earns 
its pro rata share of investment income, transaction fees and capi-
tal appreciation on the underlying investments. The vast majority of 
the Company’s co-investment is allocated to investment vehicles 
focused on the development of US residential land in the fast-growing 
“sunbelt” markets.
 In August 2013, Tricon purchased a controlling 68.4% interest 
in THP1 US. THP1 US is composed of residential assets that were 
acquired between 2008 and 2012 at significant discounts to peak pric-
ing. These assets are projected to generate material cash flows over 
the next few years as properties are developed and sold.
 

Tricon American Homes
Tricon American Homes, the Company’s single-family rental subsid-
iary, has an integrated business platform responsible for the acquisi-
tion, renovation, leasing and property management of single-family 
rental homes within major US cities that exhibit strong employment 
and population growth, typically in markets where Tricon already has 
a presence through Tricon Housing Partners. Despite the gradual 
recovery of the US housing market, the Company continues to find 
opportunities to acquire high-quality homes in desirable neighbour-
hoods which meet or exceed its target yield parameters.
 Tricon American Homes adheres to specific acquisition criteria 
for each of its target markets and has local on-the-ground staffs that 
are responsible for underwriting, acquiring and overseeing the reno-
vation of single-family rental homes. We have a disciplined, yield-
based focus and a selective acquisition process, typically buying one  
to two homes per day per active market. Since June 2013, buying  
activity has been financed primarily through a dedicated credit facil-
ity of $400 million, which was increased from $250 million in August 
2014. TAH’s acquisition program is currently focused on San Antonio, 
Houston, Tampa, Charlotte and Atlanta. In each of these markets, the 
Company continues to see opportunities to buy high-quality homes 
in desirable neighbourhoods at average cap rates of approximately 
7%. Homes are sourced through trustee sales, foreclosures, over 
the Multiple Leasing Service (“MLS”) and selective portfolio acquisi-
tions. Although the foreclosure-related channels may shrink over time, 
Tricon expects that there will be a long-term buying opportunity in 
each of these markets or in other attractive markets.
 
Tricon Lifestyle Communities
In our Tricon Lifestyle Communities investment subsidiary, the Com-
pany has entered into a joint venture with Cobblestone Real Estate 
(“Cobblestone”), a dedicated Chicago-based MHC asset and prop-
erty manager, to purchase three to four-star manufactured housing 
communities primarily in the US sunbelt region. Under the terms of 
the joint venture, the Company will invest 97% of the equity capital 
for each community and earn related income primarily from leasing 
“pads” or lots to owners of prefabricated homes and, to a much lesser 
extent, renting park-owned homes to tenants. Tricon believes there 
is an opportunity to assemble a high-yielding, institutional-quality 
portfolio in a highly fragmented market that is largely dominated by 
private investors. The Company’s aim is to build a diverse portfolio 
of quality assets that will garner the interest of public markets and 
strategic investors once critical mass is achieved. Tricon and Cobble-
stone target well-located MHCs that are initially deemed to be three 
to four-star quality and potentially suffering from below market rents 
and low occupancy.
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2. Financial and Segment Highlights

Table 1: Selected Financial and Segment Information
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except for per share amounts)

For the Periods Ended December 31 Three Months Full Year

   2014 2013 Variance 2014 2013 Variance

Selected Financial Statements Information
Net Income (1)  $ 48,303  $ 16,230  $ 32,073  $ 110,403  $ 36,073  $ 74,330
Basic Earnings Per Share   0.53    0.18    0.35    1.22    0.60    0.62 
Diluted Earnings Per Share   0.50    0.18    0.32   1.05    0.59    0.46 
Dividends Per Share   0.06    0.06    –   0.24    0.24    –
Weighted Average Basic Shares Outstanding  90,729,695  90,664,248    65,447   90,821,117    60,534,679    30,286,438
Weighted Average Diluted Shares Outstanding  109,642,585    109,044,166    598,419   109,756,765    61,372,589    48,384,176

Selected MD&A Financial Information
Adjusted Base Revenue (2) $ 29,904   $ 17,872  $ 12,032 $ 90,937  $ 46,878  $ 44,059
Adjusted EBITDA (2)   39,330    28,196    11,134   99,794    68,787    31,007
Adjusted Net Income    32,468    11,422    21,046   64,347    34,686    29,661
Adjusted Base Earnings Per Share   0.36    0.13    0.23   0.71    0.57    0.14
Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share   0.30    0.10    0.20   0.59    0.45    0.14
Assets Under Management as at December 31       $ 2,484,604   $ 1,857,804  $ 626,800

Selected Segment Information
Private Funds and Advisory          
Assets Under Management as at December 31       $ 1,245,084  $ 981,644  $ 263,440
Contractual fees $ 11,274   $ 5,240   $ 6,034   26,971    15,139    11,832
Contractual fees (Excluding Johnson)   4,545    5,240    (695)   15,334    15,139    195
General Partners Distributions  407    746    (339)   1,897    2,959    (1,062)

Principal Investments          
Tricon Housing Partners
Assets Under Management as at December 31       $ 427,109  $ 420,219  $ 6,890
Investment Income – THP $ 13,166  $ 8,505  $ 4,661   42,834    18,537    24,297 

Tricon American Homes
Assets Under Management as at December 31       $ 795,932  $ 455,941  $ 339,991
Realized Investment Income – TAH $ 4,869  $ 2,472  $ 2,397   18,878    8,941    9,937 
Unrealized Investment Income – TAH   19,534    14,614    4,920   37,360    32,050    5,310
Net Operating Income   8,063    4,378    3,685   30,727    13,990    16,737
Gross Margin (average for the year)        63%  63%  0%
Number of Homes as at December 31         5,030    3,316    1,714  
In-place Occupancy as at December 31        84%  78%  6%
Occupancy for homes owned 6+ months   
 as at December 31        91%  87%  4%

Tricon Lifestyle Communities 
Assets Under Management as at December 31       $ 16,479  $ – $ 16,479
Realized Investment Income – TLC $ 191  $ –  $ 191   235  –   235 
Unrealized Investment Income – TLC   (145)  –   (145)  (145)  –  (145)
Net Operating Income  271   –  271  394   –  394
Gross Margin (average for the year)        62%  –  N/A
Number of Pads as at December 31         314   –  314
In-place Occupancy as at December 31        88%  –  N/A

(1) 2014 Net Income included a total foreign exchange gain of $58.8 million, which is a combination of the unrealized foreign exchange gain on investments  
 of $59.2 million and realized foreign exchange loss of $0.4 million.
(2) Investment Income included in Adjusted Base Revenue and Adjusted EBITDA excluded the unrealized foreign exchange gain of $59.2 million.
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Financial Highlights
Refer to Section 3, Financial Review and Section 4, Segment Review 
for detailed analysis.

Adjusted Base Revenue increased by $44.1 million or 94% to  
$90.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to 
$46.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. Adjusted Base 
Revenue increased by $12.0 million or 67% to $29.9 million in the 
fourth quarter of 2014 compared to $17.9 million for the same period 
of the prior year. The increase was primarily driven by the following: 

• Contractual Fees increased by $11.8 million or 78% to $27.0 mil-
lion for 2014 compared to $15.1 million for 2013, with the increase 
primarily relating to the inclusion in 2014 of Johnson Contractual 
Fees of $11.6 million. For the fourth quarter of 2014, Johnson con-
tributed $6.7 million to Contractual Fees, resulting in Contractual 
Fees increasing by $6.0 million or 115% compared to the same 
period of the prior year. Excluding Johnson, Contractual Fees  
were essentially consistent with the prior year.  

• Investment Income from Tricon Housing Partners increased by  
$24.3 million or 131% to $42.8 million for 2014 compared to 2013, 
primarily as a result of the income flowing from the 68.4% owner-
ship in THP1 US. In the fourth quarter of 2014, Investment Income 
from THP increased by $4.7 million or 55% to $13.2 million com-
pared to the same period of 2013 as a result of fair value increases.

• Investment Income from Tricon American Homes increased by  
$9.9 million or 111% to $18.9 million for the year of 2014 com-
pared to $8.9 million for 2013. The total home portfolio has grown 
52% to 5,030 homes at the end of 2014, compared to 3,316 
homes at the end of 2013. The In-place Occupancy increased by 
6% to 84% and Gross Margin remained constant at 63% when 
compared to the prior year.

• In August 2014 the Company acquired its first manufactured  
housing community, Longhaven Estates (“Longhaven”) in  
Phoenix, Arizona for US$14.1 million. Longhaven generated 
Investment Income of $0.2 million from August 27 through to 
December 31, 2014.

Adjusted EBITDA increased by $31.0 million or 45% to $99.8 mil-
lion for 2014 compared to $68.8 million for the prior year. Adjusted 
EBITDA in the fourth quarter of 2014 increased by $11.1 million or 
39% to $39.3 million compared to $28.2 million for the same period 
of the prior year. The increase was the result of increased Adjusted 
Base Revenue as well as the fair value increase of the TAH single-
family rental portfolio. 

• The fair value of the TAH portfolio increased by $37.4 million in 
2014 compared to an increase of $32.1 million in 2013. In the fourth 
quarter of 2014, Tricon obtained Broker Price Opinions (“BPOs”) for 
2,398 homes located in eight out of 11 markets.

Adjusted Net Income increased by $29.7 million or 86% to $64.3 mil- 
lion in 2014 compared to $34.7 million in 2013. In the fourth  

quarter, Adjusted Net Income increased by $21.0 million or 184% to 
$32.5 million compared to $11.4 million for the same period in the 
prior year. 
 Adjusted Basic Earnings per Share and Adjusted Diluted Earnings 
per Share increased by 25% and 31% to $0.71 and $0.59 in 2014 
compared to $0.57 and $0.45 in 2013. Adjusted Basic Earnings per 
Share and Adjusted Diluted Earnings per Share increased by 177% 
and 200% to $0.36 and $0.30 for the fourth quarter of 2014 compared 
to $0.13 and $0.10 for the same period in the prior year.
 Assets Under Management (“AUM”) increased by $627 million  
or 34% to $2,485 million as at December 31, 2014 compared to 
$1,858 million as at December 31, 2013. The increase was primar-
ily attributable to the newly formed investments through the Private 
Funds and Advisory business and the expansion of the TAH single-
family rental home portfolio. 
 Private Funds and Advisory Assets Under Management  
increased by $263 million or 27% to $1,245 million as at Decem- 
ber 31, 2014 compared to $982 million as at December 31, 2013.  
The increase was primarily the result of new Separate Account and 
Side-car investments. 

Subsequent Events 
Effective January 1, 2015, Tricon and its consolidated entities 
changed the functional and presentation currency to the US dollar  
given the increasing prevalence of US dollar-denominated activities 
in the Company over time. As of December 31, 2014, 98% of Tricon’s 
balance sheet investments were in the United States. Commencing 
with the first quarter of 2015, the Company’s Financial Statements 
will be reported in US dollars. The change of functional currency will 
remove most of the impact of the foreign exchange fluctuations on 
the Financial Statements. 
 On February 23, 2015, Tricon American Homes completed the  
integration and internalization of property management and asset 
management functions in all 11 markets in which it operates. Fol- 
lowing the internalization, Tricon, through its subsidiaries, owns  
55% of the operating entities that provide property and asset man-
agement services. 
 On March 2, 2015, the Company announced an increase to the 
existing corporate revolving credit facility to US$175 million from 
US$105 million. The increased credit facility includes a syndicate of 
lenders comprised of Royal Bank of Canada, The Toronto-Dominion 
Bank, Bank of Montreal, JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Bank 
of Canada, Alberta Treasury Branches, Raymond James Bank, 
Canadian Western Bank and Laurentian Bank of Canada. The credit 
facility may be increased to US$200 million with the approval of the 
lenders. The remaining key terms of the credit facility, including pricing 
and a maturity date of April 2018, remain unchanged. 
 The Company announced a dividend of six cents per share pay-
able on April 15, 2015 to shareholders of record on March 31, 2015. 
 On March 10, 2015, Tricon announced that Gary Berman has been 
appointed as President and Chief Executive Officer. Tricon’s former 
CEO, David Berman, will remain on the Board of Directors and will 
assume the role of Executive Chairman.
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3. Financial Review

Set out below is a comparative review of adjusted financial results for 2014 compared to the same period in 2013. These results should be 
read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company measures the success of its business by employ-
ing several key performance indicators that are not recognized under IFRS. These indicators should not be considered an alternative to 
IFRS financial measures, such as net income. As non-IFRS financial measures do not have standardized definitions prescribed by IFRS, 
they are less likely to be comparable with other issuers or peer companies (refer to Section 6.1, Key Performance Indicators for details).

3.1  Assets Under Management
As shown in the graph below, Assets Under Management were $2.49 billion as at December 31, 2014, representing an annual increase of 
34% compared to $1.86 billion as at December 31, 2013  (refer to Section 8.2, Supplementary Support for Financial Review, Table 17: Assets 
Under Management).
 In 2014, the Company added one Separate Account investment (Tegavah, in Q4 2014) and two Side-cars (Arantine Hills and Lake Norman 
in Q3 2014) which accounted for $270 million of the increase in AUM after excluding the foreign exchange gain. Tricon closed a Canadian 
syndicated investment (Mahogany) in Q1 2014 with a commitment of $20 million. 
 In addition to the new investments added, Tricon Housing Partners Co-investment increased by $57 million attributable to fair value  
adjustments.
 TAH AUM increased by $299 million during 2014, primarily contributed by the growth of the number of homes and fair value increase. 
 These increases were offset by various distributions in 2014. THP1 US Co-investment distributed $57 million (US$51 million) cash to the 
Company. $72 million of distributions were made by Separate Accounts and Side-cars and $45 million of distributions were made by THP1 
Canada and THP2 Canada. 
 The appreciation of the US dollar (from 1.0636 at December 31, 2013 to 1.1601 at December 31, 2014) resulted in an unrealized foreign 
exchange gain of $138 million.
 

Figure 1: Changes in Assets Under Management
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The graph below outlines Assets Under Management and Key Performance Metrics by Investment:

Figure 2: Assets Under Management Summary

  AUM Projected Contractual Fees and GP
 Investments ($ millions) Gross IRR Distributions ($ millions)

 United States  2014 2013
 THP1 US $ 119  15% $ 4.2  $ 3.8 
 THP2 US   358  25%   4.3    5.4 
 Separate 
  accounts   294  23%   3.1    2.8 
 Side-cars   188  23%   1.7    1.0 
 Johnson   N/A  N/A   11.6   – 

 Canada  2014 2013
 THP1 Canada  34  16%   0.6    0.8 
 THP2 Canada   80  16%   1.2    1.1 
 THP3 Canada  133  15%   1.9    3.0 
 Syndicated    39  13%   0.3    0.2 

 Total  $ 1,245   $ 28.9  $ 18.1

 Tricon Housing Partners
       Investment
 Investments   AUM ($ millions) Income ($ millions)

     2014  2013
 THP1 US $ 313  $ 36.3  $ 17.2 
 THP2 US   31    1.6    0.1 
 Separate accounts   41    0.6    1.4 
 Side-cars   21    1.6    0.2 
 THP3 Canada   22    2.7    (0.3)
 Total THP $ 428  $ 42.8  $ 18.6 
 
 Tricon American Homes
 Investments AUM Operating Metrics

 TAH $ 796  NOI $ 30.7M
   NOI Margin   63%
   Homes   5,030
   In-place Occupancy   84%
   6M+ Homes Occupancy   91%
    
 Tricon Lifestyle Communities
 Investments AUM Operating Metrics

 TLC $ 16  NOI $ 0.3M
    NOI Margin  62%
    Pads  314
  In-place Occupancy  88%
 
 Total  $ 1,240

TRICON
$2.49 billion Assets Under Management

PRIVATE FUNDS AND ADVISORY
$1.25 billion Assets Under Management

PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS
$1.24 billion Assets Under Management
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3.2 Adjusted Financial Information  
The following information reflects how the Company evaluates ongoing performance. The Company has prepared the Adjusted Financial 
Information set out below to generate the key business performance metrics of Adjusted Base Revenues, Adjusted Base EBITDA, Adjusted 
EBITDA, and Adjusted Net Income. 
 In preparing the Adjusted Financial Information, management has eliminated both Non-Recurring and Non-Cash Items as detailed in  
Section 7, Appendix – Reconciliations, Table 12: Net Income/(Loss) as shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements, Table 13: Reconciliation 
of Net Income to Adjusted Net Income and Table 14: Reconciliation of Investment Income from Financial Statements. 

Table 2: Selected Adjusted Income Statement Information
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except for per share amounts)

For the Periods Ended December 31  Three Months Full Year

   2014 2013 Variance 2014 2013 Variance

Contractual Fees  $ 11,274   $ 5,240   $ 6,034 $ 26,971   $ 15,139   $ 11,832
General Partner Distributions   407    746    (339)  1,897    2,959    (1,062)
Investment Income – THP   13,166    8,505    4,661   42,834    18,537    24,297
Investment Income – TAH   4,869    2,472    2,397   18,878    8,941    9,937
Investment Income – TLC   191    –    191   235    –    235
Interest Income   (3)   909    (912)  122    1,302    (1,180)
Adjusted Base Revenues   29,904    17,872    12,032    90,937    46,878    44,059

Salaries and Benefits   3,864    1,426    (2,438)  10,739    4,992    (5,747)
Professional Fees    728    495    (233)  2,566    1,625    (941)
Directors’ Fees    132    101    (31)  444    333    (111)
General and Administration    590    503    (87)  3,186    1,666    (1,520)
Non-Controlling Interest    2,266    –    (2,266)  3,677    –    (3,677)
Adjusted Base Operating Expenses  7,580    2,525    (5,055)  20,612    8,616    (11,996)
Adjusted Base EBITDA   22,324    15,347    6,977   70,325    38,262    32,063

Annual Incentive Plan   (1,526)   (1,274)   (252)  (5,098)   (4,221)   (877)
Investment Income  
 – TAH Fair Value Adjustment  19,534    14,614    4,920    37,360    32,050    5,310
Investment Income 
 – TLC Fair Value Adjustment  (145)   –    (145)  (145)   –   (145)
Performance Fees   –   25    (25)  42    7,382    (7,340)
Performance Fee-Related 
 Bonus Pool (LTIP)   (857)   (516)   (341)   (2,690)   (4,686)   1,996
Adjusted EBITDA   39,330    28,196    11,134   99,794    68,787    31,007

Stock Option Expense   (124)   (149)   25    (1,050)   (538)   (512)
Interest Expense   (5,371)   (3,551)   (1,820)   (21,258)   (10,941)   (10,317)
Amortization Expense   (1,297)   (212)   (1,085)  (2,910)   (763)   (2,147)
Adjusted Net Income Before Taxes   32,538    24,284    8,254   74,576    56,545    18,031
Income Tax Expense  (70)    (12,862)   12,792   (10,229)   (21,859)   11,630
Adjusted Net Income $ 32,468  $ 11,422  $ 21,046   $ 64,347  $ 34,686  $ 29,661
Adjusted Basic Earnings Per Share  $ 0.36  $ 0.13  $ 0.23   $ 0.71  $ 0.57  $ 0.14
Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share  $ 0.30  $ 0.10  $ 0.20   $ 0.59  $ 0.45  $ 0.14

Weighted Average Shares 
 Outstanding – Basic  90,729,695    90,664,248    65,447   90,821,117    60,534,679    30,286,438
Weighted Average Shares 
 Outstanding – Diluted  109,642,585    109,044,166    598,419   109,756,765    77,438,262    32,318,503
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Adjusted Base Revenue

• Contractual Fees increased by $11.8 million or 78% to $27.0 mil- 
lion in 2014 compared to $15.1 million in 2013 primarily due to the 
addition of $11.6 million in fee income earned from the Company’s 
50.1% interest in Johnson. Excluding Johnson, Contractual Fees 
remained constant as the increase in fees from newly formed 
investments was offset by the “catch-up” fee of $3.4 million 
received from THP2 US in 2013. In the fourth quarter, Contractual 
Fees Excluding Johnson were $4.5 million, a decrease of $0.7 mil- 
lion or 13% compared to the same period in the prior year, mainly 
due to a $1.6 million catch-up fee received from THP2 US in the 
fourth quarter of 2013 (refer to Section 4.2, Private Funds and 
Advisory for details).

• General Partner Distributions are earned exclusively on THP3 
Canada and are based on prescribed formulas within the Limited 
Partnership Agreement. General Partner Distributions decreased 
by $1.1 million or 36% to $1.9 million in 2014 as a result of the 
fund’s investment period ending in March 2014.  

• Investment Income – Tricon Housing Partners increased by  
$24.3 million or 131% to $42.8 million for 2014, primarily as a result 
of the income flowing from the 68.4% ownership in THP1 US. In 
the fourth quarter of 2014, Investment Income – THP increased 
by $4.7 million or 55% to $13.2 million compared to the same 
period of 2013 as a result of fair value increases (refer to Sec- 
tion 4.3, Tricon Housing Partners for details).

• Investment Income – Tricon American Homes increased by  
$9.9 million or 111% to $18.9 million for the year of 2014 com-
pared to $8.9 million for 2013. The total portfolio grew 52% to 
5,030 homes by the end of 2014, compared to 3,316 homes by the 
end of 2013. In-place Occupancy rate increased by 6% to 84% 
and Gross Margin remained constant at 63% when compared 
to the prior year (refer to Section 4.4, Tricon American Homes).

• Investment Income – Tricon Lifestyle Communities: In August 2014 
the Company acquired its first property, Longhaven, in Phoenix, 
Arizona for US$14.1 million. Longhaven generated Investment 
Income of $0.2 million from August 27 through December 31, 2014 
(refer to Section 4.5, Tricon Lifestyle Communities).

• Interest Income consists of interest earned on cash, short-term 
and other investments and preferred return received from addi-
tional closings of private funds. Interest Income decreased by  
$1.2 million to $0.1 million in 2014. The 91% decrease is a result of 
a one-time special contribution made to THP2 US in 2013. 

Adjusted Base Operating Expenses

• Salaries and Benefits for 2014 rose by $5.7 million or 115% to  
$10.7 million compared to $5.0 million for the prior year. The 
increase was primarily due to the inclusion of $3.9 million in sal-
ary and benefits following the acquisition of a majority interest  
in Johnson on April 15, 2014. The remaining 36% increase is  
a result of normal annual salary increases for existing corporate 
employees, along with the hiring of 15 new employees over the 
past 12 months for a 29% increase in headcount at the corpo- 
rate office. 

• Professional Fees increased by $0.9 million or 58% to $2.6 mil-
lion in 2014 compared to $1.6 million in 2013 as a result of an 
increase in legal fees paid on corporate matters and new separate 
accounts, and professional fees incurred on strategic initiatives 
and compliance matters.

 
• Directors’ Fees increased by $0.1 million or 33% in 2014 to  

$0.4 million compared to $0.3 million for 2013, due to the addition 
of one external director and the increase in fair value of Deferred 
Share Units (“DSUs”) held by directors. The directors have the 
right to participate in the Company’s DSU Plan and receive all or a 
portion of their compensation in the form of Independent Director 
DSUs. All four independent directors participate in the plan and 
the DSUs held are fair valued at the end of each quarter. 

• General and Administration Expense increased by $1.5 million  
or 91% in 2014 to $3.2 million compared to $1.7 million for 2013 as 
a result of the inclusion of Johnson’s General and Administration 
Expense of $0.4 million and increased public company costs, 
travel expenses, and expenses related to expanded office space 
in Toronto and a new office in San Francisco which opened in 
July 2013. 

• Non-Controlling Interest in Johnson was $3.7 million for the year 
of 2014. In the fourth quarter of 2014, Non-Controlling Interest 
increased to $2.3 million or 148% from $0.9 million in Q3 2014, as  
a result of fees earned on accelerated sales activity following 
weather-related delays in the second quarter (refer to Section 4.2,  
Private Funds and Advisory, Table 5: Financial Information – Johnson 
for details).

Adjusted EBITDA

• Unrealized Investment Income – TAH Fair Value Adjustment: The 
fair value of homes owned by Tricon American Homes increased 
by $5.3 million or 17% to $37.4 million for the year of 2014 com-
pared to $32.1 million for 2013. In the fourth quarter of 2014, Tricon 
obtained BPOs for 2,398 homes located in eight out of 11 mar-
kets. Unrealized Investment Income – TAH Fair value adjustment 
increased by $4.9 million or 34% to $19.5 million for the fourth 
quarter of 2014 compared to $14.6 million for the fourth quarter  
of 2013 (refer to Section 4.4, Tricon American Homes).



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS for the year ended December 31, 2014

 TRICON CAPITAL GROUP  2014 ANNUAL REPORT 21

• Unrealized Investment Income – TLC Fair Value Adjustment: The 
$0.1 million decrease in fair value was an IFRS adjustment made 
to the working capital of Tricon Lifestyle Communities. There was 
no impairment to the investment property for the year ended 
December 31, 2014. 

• Performance Fees: The Company earned a nominal amount of 
Performance Fees in 2014, in line with expectations.

• Annual Incentive Plan (“AIP”) increased by $0.9 million or 21% to 
$5.1 million in 2014 compared to $4.2 million for the prior year.  
This is a result of the increase in Adjusted Base EBITDA after 
excluding THP1 US investment Income (refer to Section 8.2, 
Supplementary Support for Financial Review, Table 19: Compen- 
sation Plans for details).

• Performance Fee-Related Bonus Pool (LTIP) for 2014 consists of 
LTIP of approximately $2.7 million related to the grant of five-year 
DSUs on Investment Income earned on THP1 US.  

Adjusted Net Income

• Stock Option Expense increased by $0.5 million or 95% to  
$1.1 million in 2014 primarily attributed to a catch-up stock option 
expense recognized for options that were exercised by employ- 
ees that left during 2014. The Company did not grant any stock 
options during the year ended December 31, 2014. 352,500 
options were exercised during the year ended December 31, 2014. 
There were 2,101,500 stock options outstanding as of Decem- 
ber 31, 2014 at an average exercise price per share of $6.48  
(refer to Section 8.2, Supplementary Support for Financial Review, 
Table 22: Stock Options for details).  

• Interest Expense represents interest incurred in respect of the 
corporate revolving credit facility, two convertible debentures, as 
well as the Company’s share in the interest expenses incurred 
on the Tricon American Homes and Tricon Lifestyle Communities’ 
borrowings. Interest Expense increased by $10.3 million or 94% 
to $21.3 million for the year of 2014 compared to $10.9 million for 
2013. The increase was primarily due to higher borrowings under 
the TAH credit facility and corporate credit facility (refer to Sec- 
tion 5.4, Interest Expense, Table 11: Interest Expense for details).

• Amortization represents depreciation on fixed assets and amor-
tization of placement fees, rights to performance fees on private 
funds and intangible assets. Amortization expense increased 
by $2.1 million or 281% to $2.9 million in 2014 compared to  
$0.8 million in 2013 due to the amortization on the Johnson 
intangible assets and the placement fees incurred on the closing  
of THP2 US. 

•  Income Tax Expense includes corporate income tax as reported 
in the financial statements as well as the income tax for non- 
consolidated subsidiaries. For the year ended December 31, 2014, 
Income Tax Expense is comprised of $15.8 million of current tax 
expense and $5.0 million of deferred tax recovery (refer to Sec- 
tion 8.2, Supplementary Support for Financial Review, Table 20:  
Adjusted Income Tax Expense for details). In the fourth quarter of 
2014, the income tax expense of $0.1 million is attributable to two 
specific transactions:
• A tax election was made to change THP1 US Co-investment 

Inc. to file as a US dollar functional currency reporter. This elec-
tion is effective as of January 1, 2014. Therefore, the income 
tax expense in Q4 includes a reversal of the excess tax pro-
vision recognized for the period from January 1 to Septem- 
ber 30, 2014. 

• A tax-efficient exit strategy adopted by TAH in Q4 reflects the 
change in business strategy from an opportunistic investment 
to a core principal investment. As a result, the effective tax rate 
on the fair value increase of the homes has been lowered from 
40% to 13.25%.

Earnings Per Share 

• For the year ended December 31, 2014 Adjusted Basic Earnings 
per Share and Adjusted Diluted Earnings per Share increased by 
25% and 31% to $0.71 and $0.59 compared to $0.57 and $0.45 
for the year ended December 31, 2013, respectively. The Weighted 
Average Shares Outstanding increased by 50% and 42% to  
90.8 million and 109.8 million respectively (refer to Section 8.2,  
Supplementary Support for Financial Review, Table 21: Shares 
Outstanding for details).

More information related to Tricon’s historical financial information can 
be found in Table 15 and Table 16 in Section 8.1, Selected Historical 
Financial Information.
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4. Segment Review

4.1  Segment Financial Information
Segment information is provided below of Adjusted EBITDA as generated from the Company’s various business segments including Private 
Funds and Advisory, Tricon Housing Partners, Tricon American Homes and Tricon Lifestyle Communities. Tables 3 and 4 Quarterly/Annual 
Financial Information by Segment split Private Funds and Advisory into “Johnson” and “Excluding Johnson” to provide a more meaningful 
comparison to the prior year. 
 Specific overhead expenses are allocated to the corresponding business line, while non-specific expenses are allocated to each business 
segment based on the segment’s year-to-date base revenue as a percentage of the total. 

Table 3: Quarterly Financial Information by Segment
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

   Private Funds and Advisory Principal Investing

     Tricon Tricon Tricon
   Excluding  Housing American Lifestyle
For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2014 Johnson Johnson Partners  Homes Communities Total

Adjusted Base Revenues   $ 4,949  $ 6,729  $ 13,166  $ 4,869  $ 191  $ 29,904 
Overhead Allocation  (668)  (2,187)  (1,776)  (657)  (26)  (5,314)
Non-Controlling Interest (Johnson)  –     (2,266) –    –    –     (2,266)
Adjusted Base EBITDA  4,281   2,276   11,390   4,212   165   22,324 
Annual Incentive Plan  (325)  –     (867)  (321)  (13)  (1,526)
Investment Income – Fair Value Adjustment  –    –    –     19,534    (145)    19,389 
Performance Fee-Related Bonus Pool (LTIP)  –    –    (857)    –  –     (857)
Adjusted EBITDA   $ 3,956  $ 2,276  $ 9,666  $ 23,425  $ 7  $ 39,330 

Segment Adjusted Base EBITDA/ 
 Total Adjusted Base EBITDA   19.2%  10.2%  51.0%  18.9%  0.7%  100.0%
Segment Adjusted EBITDA/ 
 Total Adjusted EBITDA   10.0%  5.8%  24.6%  59.6%  0.0%  100.0%

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2013

Adjusted Base Revenues   $ 6,895   $ –     $ 8,505   $ 2,472   $ –     $ 17,872 
Overhead Allocation  (974)  –     (1,202)  (349)  –     (2,525)
Adjusted Base EBITDA  5,921   –     7,303   2,123  –     15,347 
Annual Incentive Plan  (492) –     (606)  (176) –     (1,274)
Investment Income – Fair Value Adjustment  –    –    –     14,614   –     14,614 
Performance Fees   25  –    –    –    –     25 
Performance Fee-Related Bonus Pool (LTIP)  (13) –      (503)   –  –    (516)
Adjusted EBITDA   $ 5,441   $ –     $ 6,194   $ 16,561  $ –     $ 28,196 
       
Segment Adjusted Base EBITDA/ 
 Total Adjusted Base EBITDA   38.6%  N/A  47.6%  13.8%  N/A  100.0%
Segment Adjusted EBITDA/ 
 Total Adjusted EBITDA   19.3%  N/A  22.0%  58.7%  N/A  100.0%

Adjusted EBITDA (Variance $)  $ (1,485)  $ 2,276   $ 3,472   $ 6,864   $ 7   $ 11,134 
Adjusted EBITDA (Variance %)   (27%)  N/A  56%  41%  N/A  39%

Private Funds and Advisory (Excluding Johnson) Adjusted EBITDA decreased by $1.5 million to $4.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2014 from 
$5.4 million for the same period of the prior year. The 27% decrease was primarily attributed to the decrease in Contractual Fees and General 
Partner Distribution received from THP2 US and THP3 Canada. Johnson (net of Non-Controlling Interest) contributed $2.3 million to the Adjusted 
Base EBITDA for the fourth quarter of 2014. Accordingly, Private Funds and Advisory (Including Johnson) adjusted EBITDA increased by  
$0.8 million to $6.2 million when compared to the same period of the prior year (refer to Section 4.2, Private Funds and Advisory for details).
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 Tricon Housing Partners Adjusted EBITDA increased by $3.5 million to $9.7 million for the fourth quarter of 2014 from $6.2 million for the 
same period of the prior year. The 56% increase was a result of increased Investment Income earned by THP1 US, as a result of fair value 
increases (refer to Section 4.3, Tricon Housing Partners for details).
 Tricon American Homes Adjusted EBITDA increased by $6.9 million to $23.4 million for the fourth quarter of 2014 from $16.6 million for 
the same period in 2013. The 41% increase was primarily driven by the expansion of the single-family rental home portfolio and operational 
improvements (refer to Section 4.4, Tricon American Homes for details).

Table 4: Annual Financial Information by Segment
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

   Private Funds & Advisory Principal Investing

     Tricon Tricon Tricon
   Excluding  Housing American Lifestyle
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 Johnson Johnson Partners  Homes Communities Total

Adjusted Base Revenues   $ 17,353  $ 11,637  $ 42,834  $ 18,878  $ 235  $ 90,937 
Overhead Allocation  (2,772)  (4,268)  (6,842)  (3,015)  (38)  (16,935)
Non-Controlling Interest (Johnson)  –     (3,677)  –    –    –     (3,677)
Adjusted Base EBITDA  14,581   3,692   35,992   15,863   197   70,325 
Annual Incentive Plan  (1,115)  –     (2,754)  (1,214)  (15)  (5,098)
Investment Income – Fair Value Adjustment  –    –    –     37,360  (145)    37,215 
Performance Fees   42   –    –    –    –    42 
Performance Fee-Related Bonus Pool (LTIP)  (21) –     (2,669)   – –    (2,690)
Adjusted EBITDA   $ 13,487  $ 3,692  $ 30,569  $ 52,009  $ 37  $ 99,794 

Segment Adjusted Base EBITDA/ 
 Total Adjusted Base EBITDA   20.7%  5.2%  51.2%  22.6%  0.3%  100.0%
Segment Adjusted EBITDA/ 
 Total Adjusted EBITDA   13.4%  3.6%  30.6%  52.1%  0.0%  100.0%
       
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Adjusted Base Revenues   $ 19,400   $ –     $ 18,537   $ 8,941   $ –    $ 46,878 
Overhead Allocation  (3,566)  –     (3,407)  (1,643)  –    (8,616)
Adjusted Base EBITDA  15,834   –    15,130   7,298   –     38,262 
Annual Incentive Plan  (1,747)  –     (1,669)  (805) –    (4,221)
Investment Income – Fair Value Adjustment  –    –    –     32,050   –     32,050 
Performance Fees   7,382  –    –    –    –     7,382 
Performance Fee-Related Bonus Pool (LTIP)  (3,691)  –      (995)    –  –     (4,686)
Adjusted EBITDA   $ 17,778  $ –    $ 12,466  $ 38,543  $ –    $ 68,787 
       
Segment Adjusted Base EBITDA/ 
 Total Adjusted Base EBITDA   41.4%  N/A  39.5%  19.1%  N/A  100.0%
Segment Adjusted EBITDA/ 
 Total Adjusted EBITDA   25.9%  N/A  18.1%  56.0%  N/A  100.0%

Adjusted EBITDA (Variance $)  $ (4,291) $ 3,692  $ 18,103  $ 13,466  $ 37  $ 31,007
Adjusted EBITDA (Variance %)   (24%)  N/A  145%  35%  N/A  45%
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Private Funds and Advisory (Excluding Johnson) Adjusted EBITDA decreased by $4.3 million to $13.5 million for the year ended December 31, 
2014 from $17.8 million for the prior year. The 24% decrease was primarily a result of the decreased Contractual Fees as a result of a $3.5 million 
“catch-up” fee received from THP2 US in 2013. Johnson (net of Non-Controlling Interest) contributed $3.7 million to the Adjusted Base EBITDA 
for the period from the acquisition date (April 15, 2014) to December 31, 2014 (refer to Section 4.2, Private Funds and Advisory for details). 
 Tricon Housing Partners Adjusted EBITDA increased by $18.1 million to $30.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 from  
$12.5 million for the prior year. The 145% increase resulted primarily from the acquisition of THP1 US controlling interest in August 2013 (refer 
to Section 4.3, Tricon Housing Partners for details).
 Tricon American Homes Adjusted EBITDA increased by $13.5 million to $52.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 from  
$38.5 million for the prior year. The 35% increase was primarily driven by the expansion of the single-family rental home portfolio and  
operational improvements (refer to Section 4.4, Tricon American Homes for details).
 Tricon Lifestyle Communities contributed $0.2 million Adjusted Base EBITDA in 2014 which was offset by an IFRS fair value adjustment 
(refer to Section 4.5, Tricon Lifestyle Communities for details).

4.2  Private Funds and Advisory
As at December 31, 2014, Private Funds and Advisory Assets Under Management grew by 27% to $1.25 billion as compared to $0.98 billion 
as at December 31, 2013 primarily due to the closing of additional Separate Account, Side-car and Canadian syndicated investments (refer to 
Figure 3 below for details of Assets Under Management of 2014 and 2013).
 The graph below shows the Contractual Fees or General Distributions received by investments in 2014 and 2013 and Projected Gross IRRs 
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013. 

Figure 3: Private Funds and Advisory Assets Under 
Management by Investment

2014 2013

$ 
M

IL
LI

O
N

S

400

350

300

250

200

150

100

50

0

Te
ga

va
h

400

350

300

250

200

150

100

50

0

$ 
M

IL
LI

O
N

S

Figure 4: Fees Received from Investments and Projected 
Gross IRR by Investment
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Contractual Fees received from Funds, Separate Accounts, Side-car and Syndicated investments increased by $0.2 million or 1% to $15.3 mil-
lion in 2014 compared to $15.1 million for the prior year. The Contractual Fees from newly formed investments were offset by the non-recurring 
“catch-up” fee of $3.4 million received from THP2 US in 2013 (refer to Section 8.2, Supplementary Support for Financial Review, Table 18: 
Contractual Fees for details). 
 The General Partner Distribution from THP3 Canada decreased by $1.1 million or 36% to $1.9 million in 2014 compared to the prior year as  
a result of the investment period ending in March 2014. 
 The projected Gross IRRs for the funds are between 13% and 25%, which continues to meet management’s expectations (refer to  
Section 8.2, Supplementary Support for Financial Review, Table 24: Summary of Private Funds Financial Data for details).

Investment in Johnson
For the period from April 15 to December 31, 2014, Tricon’s investment in Johnson earned Adjusted Base EBITDA of $3.7 million from its 50.1% 
ownership share. Following weather-related delays in the second quarter, activity picked up over the summer with sales of 519 lots, 143 acres of 
residential land and 181 acres of commercial land in Q4 2014. The Q4 2014 accelerated sales pace earned contributed $2.3 million of Adjusted 
Base EBITDA, a 156% increase from $0.9 million in Q3 2014. For the year (from January 1, 2014) ended December 31, 2014, Johnson sold 
1,804 lots, 289 acres of residential land and 319 acres of commercial land (refer to Table 5: Financial Information – Johnson below for details). 

Table 5: Financial Information – Johnson
(in thousands of dollars)

For the Periods Ended December 31, 2014 Three Months Full Year 

   USD CAD USD CAD

Financial Results (1)

Contractual Fees    $ 5,930  $ 6,729    $ 10,466  $ 11,637 
Adjusted Base Revenues     5,930   6,729      10,466    11,637 

Salaries and Benefits     (1,657)   (1,922)     (3,402)   (3,868)
General and Administration Expenses      (233)   (265)     (357)   (400)
Adjusted Base Operating Expenses     (1,890)   (2,187)     (3,759)   (4,268)
Adjusted Base EBITDA   $ 4,040  $ 4,542    $ 6,707  $ 7,369 
      
Tricon Portion   $ 2,024  $ 2,276    $ 3,360  $ 3,692 
NCI Portion   $ 2,016  $ 2,266    $ 3,347  $ 3,677 

Operational Information (2)

Lot Sales      519       1,804  
Residential Land (acres) Sales      143       289
Commercial Land (acres) Sales      181       319

(1)  The full-year financial results are from April 15, 2014 (the acquisition date) to December 31, 2014.
(2)  The full-year operational information is for the period from January 1 to December 31, 2014.
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4.3  Tricon Housing Partners 
Investments – Tricon Housing Partners increased by $35.2 million to $367.8 million as at December 31, 2014 from $332.6 million as at Decem- 
ber 31, 2013. The increase was due to the addition of one separate account, Tegavah, and two side-car investments, Lake Norman and Arantine 
Hills, and the appreciation of the US dollar against the Canadian dollar (as shown in Table 6: Summary of Investment – THP below). THP1 
US Co-investment distributions received in 2014 were US$50.5 million for a total of US$72.2 million since August 2013 (refer to Section 8.2,  
Supplementary Support for Financial Review, Table 25: THP1 US Asset Overview for details). Fund projects remain on track to deliver approxi-
mately US$315 million in net cash flow to Tricon from 2015 to 2018. 

Table 6: Summary of Investment – Tricon Housing Partners
(in thousands of dollars)

    As at December 31, 2014 (1)

    Tricon Unfunded   Investment at Fair value (2)

   Currency Commitment  Commitment Advances Distributions 2014 2013

THP1 US (3) US $ 226,775  $ 19,120  $ 272,970  $ 72,188  $ 296,269  $ 284,695 
THP2 US US  25,000   13,612   11,388  –     19,097   8,388 
Cross Creek Ranch US  14,400   1,916   12,484   11,665   11,374   13,036 
Fulshear Farms US  5,000   1,845   3,155   514   3,688   3,356 
Grand Central Park  US  8,075   1,555   6,520   3,029   7,073   7,112 
Tegavah US  10,350   6,258   4,092   1,035   5,017  –
Vistancia West US  4,950   2,275   2,675   1,057   3,454   9,299 
Lake Norman US  4,330   3,195   1,135   434   1,346  – 
Arantine Hills US  8,600   2,093   6,507   399   7,548  – 
Total US  307,480   51,869   320,926   90,321   354,866   325,886 

THP3 Canada CA   20,000    9,107    10,893    –     12,952    6,670 
Total CA    20,000    9,107    10,893   –    12,952    6,670 
Total    327,480 $ 60,976  $ 331,819  $ 90,321  $ 367,818  $ 332,556 

(1) Commitment, unfunded commitment, advances and distributions are shown in Fund or Separate Account originating currency. 
(2)  Investments at Fair Value as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are shown in Canadian dollars.
(3) US$226.8 million represents the Company’s total fund commitment; purchase price of 68.4% interest was US$260.5 million.
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The following table shows the units disposition (since inception) and available inventory by market. 

Table 7: Units Sold and Inventory by Market 

As of December 31, 2014 (1) Units Sold Units to be Built

      Multi-     Multi-
   Land Single- Homes Family Retail Land Single- Homes Family Retail
   (acres) Family Lots (Units) Units (sq. ft.)  (acres) Family Lots (Units) Units (sq. ft.)

US
Northern California –     211   334   169  –    –     1,056   96   357  –   
Southern California –     16   211   –    –     –      2,065   104   72   –   
Phoenix, Arizona –     342   198   –     –    112   5,345   2,082  –    –   
Austin, Texas –     –    –    –     –       415  
Dallas, Texas –     –    –    –     –    61  –    –     365   –   
Houston, Texas 205   1,229   –   –    –    463   7,391  –   –    –   
Southeastern Florida –    –     652  –   –    –   –     1   –   –   
Charlotte, North Carolina –     –    –    –     –    12   129   1,058   –   –   
Atlanta, Georgia –     –     339   69   8,998  –     357   380  –   –   
Total US 205   1,798   1,734   238   8,998  648   16,343   3,721   1,209   –   
            
Canada
Vancouver, British Columbia –     –    –     756   56,295  –     –    –     495   –   
Calgary, Alberta 51   704   238   381   –    47   1,855   203   520   171,650 
Edmonton, Alberta 62   709  –     –    –    153   890   –     –    –   
Toronto, Ontario –     –    –     3,480   59,138  –     –    –     90   49,642 
Total Canada 113   1,413   238   4,617   115,433  200   2,745   203   1,105   221,292 
            
Total Projects 318   3,211   1,972   4,855   124,431  848   19,088   3,924   2,314   221,292 

(1) Refer to Section 8.2, Supplemental Support for Financial Review, Table 23: Detailed Units Sold and Inventory by Investment/Market.

US Investments
THP1 US 
THP1 US has commenced the formal marketing process for Faria 
Preserve, a 440-acre entitled master planned community in San 
Ramon, California that is part of the Greater East Bay Portfolio. Initial 
bids were received in Q4 2014 and the Company expects to have the 
property under contract in Q1 2015, with closing currently scheduled 
for Q2 2015.  
 Also noteworthy is the commencement of construction of Rockwell 
(formerly referred to as “Pine and Franklin”), a 262-unit condominium 
project in the desirable Pacific Heights submarket of San Francisco, 
California that forms part of the San Francisco portfolio. Rockwell 
is the third and final condominium project within the portfolio and is 
expected to be completed in late 2017. The sales program at Vida, the 
second condominium in the portfolio, is well underway with 20 units 
sold in Q4 2014 (71 of 114 in total) and construction expected to be 
completed on-time and within budget in early 2015. 
 The remaining projects in the fund remain essentially on track with 
the current business plans. 
 Refer to Section 8.2, Supplementary Support for Financial Review, 
Table 23: Detailed Units Sold and Inventory by Investment/Market  
for details. 

THP2 US 
Cash flow continues to be generated from ongoing home sales 
at active developments Villa Metro in Santa Clarita, California and 
Santa Rita in Phoenix, Arizona. The remaining investments continue 
to advance their business plans with land development and sales 
expected to be ongoing for all projects within the fund by the end of 
2015. Most noteworthy is the scheduled commencement of home 
closings in mid-2015 at the Vistancia West master planned commu-
nity developed by Trilogy Active Lifestyle Communities (“Trilogy”), 
the active adult division of Shea Homes, the second largest private 
builder in the United States as ranked by sales in 2013) and the com-
mencement of land development work at the Arantine Hills project 
in conjunction with The New Home Company in Corona, California. 
 In Q4 2014, the investment program for THP2 US continued with 
the closing of three new investments: one land and homebuilding 
development in the infill Brookhaven submarket of Atlanta, Georgia 
and two multi-family apartment developments in suburban Austin and 
Dallas, Texas. These three transactions combined for approximately 
US$59 million in capital commitments. The fund is now 91% commit-
ted with the remaining capital expected to be committed before the 
end of Q1 2015.
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Separate Accounts and Side-cars
Sales of finished lots at Cross Creek Ranch in Houston, Texas set a 
record high for the project in 2014 with 622 lot sales for the year (158 
in Q4 2014). Lot sales pricing continued to increase in Q4 with 2014 lot 
prices up 9% over 2013 figures. On the commercial land sales front, 
1.4 acres of land were sold at $14 per square foot, well above under-
written estimates. Overall, despite economic concerns surrounding 
the Houston market, the project had a record year from a sales per-
spective and homebuilders continue to provide strong demand for 
new lots in the fast-growing Katy-South submarket of Houston.
 Also in Houston, the formal announcement of the Grand Central 
Park master planned community was made in Q4 alongside market-
ing presentations to local area business groups and homebuilders.  
It is anticipated that on-site development work will commence in early 
2015 with first residential lot sales starting in 2016.
 In Q4 2014, Tricon closed on its third active-adult investment with 
Trilogy. The community, currently named Tegavah, is located in the 
North Scottsdale submarket of Phoenix, Arizona and consists of an 
existing 18-hole championship golf course and the development of 
approximately 1,079 future single-family lots on which homes will be 
built and sold by the partnership. Tricon provided 10% of the total 
investor capital commitment of US$103.5 million with an institutional 
co-investor providing the remaining 90%. Home sales are expected 
to commence in late 2015.
 The remaining projects (Trilogy Lake Norman, Trilogy Vistancia 
West and Arantine Hills) all continue to perform in line with current 
budget expectations.

Canadian Investments
In the Greater Vancouver Market, the Silver Tower in Metrotown in 
Burnaby, British Columbia is expected to be completed in 2015 and 
the construction of Phase One of River Park Place in Richmond has 
commenced. Future phases of both projects are expected to launch 
in late-2015, consistent with current business plans.
 In Calgary and Edmonton, Tricon has actively been encouraging 
its development partners to look to accelerate business plans where 
possible, including selling off non-strategic land parcels within master 
planned communities or to increase the number of product types 
being offered in order to expand the buyer list for a particular proj-
ect. Tricon is confident that existing investments in the Calgary East 
Village (which was home to one of the top-selling new condominium 
developments in Calgary for 2014 in Verve; source: market update 
issued by Altus Group), Mahogany (the top-selling master planned 
community in Calgary in 2014; source: Urban Development Institute –  
Alberta Division) and Heritage Valley (an existing successful master 
planned community in Edmonton) are well positioned to capitalize 
on existing local demand and future expected growth in the Alberta 
markets, albeit at a slower pace than what was achieved in 2014.
 Fund investments in the Toronto condominium sector continue  
to perform well and are on track with existing business plans. As 
shown previously in Table 7: Units Sold and Inventory by Market, 
Tricon-sponsored funds have very little inventory exposure within the 
Toronto market with just 90 unsold units across all three active funds 
at this time. 
 The increase in Investment Income – THP is primarily attributable to 
the acquisition of the THP1 US interest in August 2013. The THP1 US 
Co-Investment generated $36.3 million of Investment Income in 2014 
compared to $17.2 million for the period from August 13 to Decem- 
ber 31, 2013. In the fourth quarter, Investment Income from THP1 US 
increased by $3.2 million to $12.1 million from $9.0 million compared 
to the same period in the prior year. The 35% increase was primarily 
attributable to the fair value gains recognized.

Table 8: Investment Income Summary by Fund
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the Periods Ended December 31 Three Months Full Year

   2014 2013 Variance 2014 2013 Variance

THP1 US Co-Investment $ 12,149  $ 8,980  $ 3,169  $ 36,341  $ 17,158  $ 19,183 
THP2 US Co-Investment   50    (54)   104    1,610    89    1,521 
THP3 Canada Co-Investment   974    (544)   1,518    2,679    (275)   2,954 
Separate Accounts/Side-Cars   (7)   123    (130)   2,204    1,565    639 
Total Investment Income – THP $ 13,166  $ 8,505  $ 4,661  $ 42,834  $ 18,537  $ 24,297 

The THP2 US Co-Investment generated investment income of $1.6 million in 2014 compared to $0.1 million in 2013. Investment Income from 
THP3 Canada Co-Investment increased by $3.0 million in 2014 to $2.7 million as compared to a $0.3 million loss recognized in 2013. Both 
investments had fair value increases as a result of new fund investment which fully deployed the Fund’s committed capital. Investment Income 
from Separate Accounts and Side-cars increased by $0.6 million in 2014 to $2.2 million as three new investments were added in 2014. 
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4.4  Tricon American Homes 
In 2014, Tricon American Homes acquired 1,714 new homes grow-
ing the portfolio by 54% and bringing the total number of homes 
owned to 5,030. In Q4 2014, 329 homes were acquired despite the 
seasonal slowdown and decline in foreclosure sales. With the acquisi-
tions made in Q4 2014, the Company reached its stated acquisition 
goal of 5,000 homes ahead of schedule. The graph at right shows the 
acquisition schedule since inception. 
 The In-place Occupancy rate of 84% (2013 – 78%) and Occupancy 
for homes owned 6+ months of 91% (2013 – 87%) represents a 6% 
and 4% increase from the prior year, respectively. This was the result 
of continued efforts to stabilize homes in the portfolio during 2014. In 
Q4 2014, the In-place Occupancy rate increased to 84%, represent-
ing a 1% increase compared to 83% as at Q3 2014. Occupancy for 
homes owned 6+ months decreased by 1% to 91% compared to 
92% at the end of Q3 2014, due to the continuing efforts to improve 
tenant quality in the Charlotte and Southeast Florida markets, where 
the Company is focused on raising rents by increasing its mix of mar-
ket rate leases as compared to government assisted rental program 
(Section eight) leases.

Refer to Section 8.2, Supplementary Support for Financial Review, 
Table 29: Tricon American Homes Summary Statistics of Rental Port- 
folio for details.

The graph below shows a summary of TAH’s operational results by market.

     Occupancy
     (homes 
   2014 NOI In-Place owned 6+ Number
Geography (US$000)  Occupancy  Months) of Homes

Northern California $ 5,734  95% 96%  647 
Southern California  1,300  87% 90%  318 
Phoenix  2,522  93% 93%  398 
Reno   2,353  93% 93%  251 
Las Vegas  1,608  95% 96%  257 
San Antonio  1,031  89% 92%  177 
Houston  386  35% 89%  142 
Tampa  1,282  68% 97%  342 
Southeast Florida  4,340  81% 86%  620 
Charlotte  5,228  87% 88%  1,079 
Atlanta  2,046  77% 81%  799 

Total/Weighted 
 Average $ 27,830  84% 91%  5,030
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Figure 6: Tricon American Homes Operational Results by Market

Figure 5: Tricon American Homes Acquisition and Occupancy
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(1)  Refer to Table 30: Summary of Tricon American Homes Metrics  
in Section 8.2 for detailed historical data. 
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Financial Performance
Investment – Tricon American Homes increased from $287.1 million 
in 2013 to $399.3 million in 2014, representing a 39% increase. The 
increase was driven by the Company’s continuing capital investment 
in TAH and fair value gains. By the end of Q4 2014 the Company had 
invested $317.4 million (US$273.6 million) in TAH. In Q4 2014, Tricon 
obtained Broker Price Opinions (“BPO”) for 2,398 homes concen-
trated in Northern and Southern California; Phoenix, Arizona; San 
Antonio, Texas; Southeast Florida; Tampa, Florida; Las Vegas and 
Reno, Nevada. In Q1 2015, Tricon will obtain BPOs for the remain-
der of the TAH portfolio (refer to Section 8.2, Supplementary Support 
for Financial Review, Table 26: Summary of Tricon American Homes 
Balance Sheet for details).  
 New acquisitions are currently financed primarily through a 
dedicated credit facility of US$400 million. The credit facility has an 
advance rate of 67.5% Loan to Cost, bears interest rate at LIBOR 
plus 360 basis points (subject to a 50 basis points LIBOR floor), and 
matures in June 2016 (includes a one year extension). The balance 
drawn as of December 31, 2014 was $353.5 million (US$304.7 mil-
lion). This credit facility is secured by the single-family rental homes 
and has no financial recourse to the Company. 

Rental Revenue – increased 120% over 2013 to $49.1 million  
(US$44.4 million) in 2014 as the portfolio continued to grow and the 
number of homes occupied increased.

Net Operating Income – rose by $16.7 million or 120% to $30.7 million 
(US$27.8 million) in 2014 versus 2013 and the NOI Margin remained 
constant at 63%. In Q4 2014, NOI was $8.1 million (US$7.1 million).   
Normalized NOI for Q4 2014 was $9.6 million (US$8.5 million). The 
difference was attributable to the timing of expenses. 

Asset Management Fees Expense – was $6.5 million (US$5.9 mil-
lion) in 2014 and represented 1% of annualized AUM which is in line 
with management’s expectation. Asset Management Fees are paid 
to the Tricon American Homes asset management subsidiaries (TAH 
operations LLC and TAH Asset Management LLC) post-integration 
(refer to Figure 7, Tricon American Homes Organizational Chart Post-
Integration and Internalization below). 

Refer to Section 8.2, Supplementary Support for Financial Review, 
Table 27: Tricon American Homes Income Statements and Table 28:  
Tricon American Homes Reconciliation to Financial Statements  
for details.

Integration and Internalization 
As of February 23, 2015, homes in all 11 markets were internally 
managed, leveraging a consolidated platform that includes shared 
back-office services, such as maintenance and leasing call centres, 
accounting and finance, and a technology infrastructure based on the 
Yardi software. This marks the completion of the integration process 
which started in Q3 2014. As TAH’s growth continues, having inte-
grated back-office services will provide increased governance and 
oversight of its operations while enhancing customer service to both 
existing and potential residents. 
  

Figure 7: Tricon American Homes Organizational Chart Post-integration and Internalization
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 Currently, Tricon Capital Group, through its subsidiaries, owns 
55% of the property and asset management subsidiaries and in time 
expects this business to generate profits that will help offset the cur-
rent Asset Management and Property Management Fees paid. The 
graph on the previous page shows the organizational structure of 
Tricon American Homes post-integration.
 Effective September 1, 2014, all new homes put under contract 
and closed by TAH are 100% owned and managed by the newly 
formed property and asset management companies.

4.5  Tricon Lifestyle Communities
On August 27, 2014, Tricon and Cobblestone Real Estate purchased  
a 100% freehold interest in a manufactured housing community 
located in the northwest quadrant of Phoenix, Arizona. Longhaven 
Estates (“Longhaven”) comprises 38 acres of land and 314 residential 
spaces. Longhaven is classified as a 55+ age-restricted community 
that has the potential to be enhanced over time through a capital 
expenditure program. The partnership secured a financing package 
from Freddie Mac, their first loan in the sector, which has an advance 
rate of 75% Loan to Value, bears interest at 4.17% for 10 years and a 
three-year interest-only period that expires in August 2017. The loan 
matures in August 2024. This financing is secured by the investment 
property and there is no financial recourse to the Company

Investment – Tricon Lifestyle Communities increased in Q4 2014 
mainly due to the appreciation of the US dollar against the Canadian 
dollar. Tricon did not advance any additional equity to the property 
after the acquisition was completed. Investment Properties balance 
increased by $75,000 as a result of the capital expenditures incurred 
since acquisition (refer to Section 8.2, Supplementary Support for 
Financial Review, Tables 31 and 32, Summary of Tricon Lifestyle 
Communities financial information for details).
 Rental Revenue for Q4 2014 was $0.5 million. In-place Occupancy 
rate decreased from 91% as at September 30, 2014 to 88% as at 
December 31, 2014. The 91% occupancy as at September 30, 2014 
included short-term leases which were terminated, resulting in the 
decrease in occupancy. The Net Operating Margin was 62% for the 
period from August 27 to December 31, 2014.

5. Liquidity and Capital Resources

5.1  Financing Strategy
The Company seeks to maintain financial strength and flexibility by 
lowering the cost of debt and equity capital and minimizing interest 
rate fluctuations over the long term. 

• Tricon uses various forms of debt such as floating rate bank 
financing and unsecured debentures with convertible features and 
attempts to stagger the maturity of its obligations.  

• The Company uses convertible debentures where the principal 
can be redeemed in shares at the Company’s option. 

• The Company also redeploys capital as the interests in invest-
ments are liquidated to capitalize on investment opportunities with 
attractive returns.  

• When it is deemed appropriate, the Company raises equity 
through the public markets to finance its growth and strengthen 
its financial position.

5.2  Liquidity
Tricon generates substantial liquidity through operating cash flows from 
Private Funds and Advisory and Principal Investments as well as from 
the turnover of assets with shorter investment horizons and periodic 
monetization of our co-investments in THP through distribution, refi-
nancing or syndicated investors’ participations. To enable us to react to 
attractive investment opportunities and deal with contingencies when 
they arise, we typically maintain sufficient liquidity at the corporate level 
and within our key operating platforms. Our primary sources of liquidity 
consist of cash and undrawn corporate credit facility. 

Liquidity Reserve – Tricon currently reserves 7.5% of the consolidated 
debt (excluding convertible debentures) at the corporate level.

Cash Available – Tricon currently maintains $5 million cash to fund 
working capital.

Working Capital – As of December 31, 2014, Tricon’s working capital 
deficit was $6 million (excluding bank debts). Management estimates 
that the Company will receive sufficient cash flow from its business 
segments to eliminate the deficit. 

Liquidity Management – On March 2, 2015, the Company announced 
an increase to the existing corporate revolving credit facility to  
US$175 million from $105 million. The new credit facility includes a 
syndicate of lenders comprised of Royal Bank of Canada, The Toronto-
Dominion Bank, Bank of Montreal, JPMorgan Chase Bank, National 
Bank of Canada, Alberta Treasury Branches, Raymond James Bank, 
Canadian Western Bank and Laurentian Bank of Canada. The credit 
facility may be increased to US$200 million with the approval of the 
lenders. The remaining key terms of the credit facility, including pricing 
and a maturity date of April 2018, remain unchanged. 
 As of December 31, 2014, $54.3 million (US$46.8 million) was 
drawn under this facility with interest calculated at 3.75% of loan 
principal. 
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5.3  Capital Resources
Consolidated Debt Structure and Interest Expenses
Tricon’s current debt obligations are as follows:  

Table 9: Summary of Debts
(in thousands of dollars)

     Terms   Debt balance 

     Total  Interest as at December 31 (1)

   Currency  Amount  Maturity Date Rate Terms   2014  2013

Revolver Term Credit Facility USD  $ 105,000 April 2018 LIBOR+350bps (2) $ 54,293  $ 4,354 
Convertible Debenture – $52M CAD    51,675  August 2017 6.375% fixed   39,712    36,438 
Convertible Debenture – $86M CAD    86,000  March 2020 5.6% fixed  68,713    66,352 
         $ 162,718  $ 107,144 

(1) Debt balances are in Canadian dollars and exclude the Derivative Financial Instrument. Foreign exchange rates used are CA$1.1601 per US$1.00 at  
December 31, 2014 and CA$1.0636 per US$1.00 at December 31, 2013.

(2) The interest rate is subject to change based on a pricing matrix (LIBOR plus 3.5%, currently at 3.75%).
(3)  The debt summary above does not include TAH and TLC’s borrowings. Refer to Section 4.3, Tricon American Homes and Section 4.4, Tricon Lifestyle 

Communities for details.

Management attempts to stagger the maturity of Tricon’s debts with 
the objective of achieving even, annual maturities over a ten-year 
time horizon in order to reduce Tricon’s exposure to interest rate fluc-
tuations in any one period. The graph below outlines Tricon’s debt 
maturity schedule as of December 31, 2014.

 The $51.7 million convertible debentures are convertible into  
common shares at a conversion price of $6.00 per share and are 
redeemable by the Company, provided certain conditions are met, 
beginning August 31, 2015. The $86.0 million convertible debentures 
are convertible into common shares at a conversion price of $9.80 per 
share and are redeemable by the Company, provided certain condi-
tions are met, beginning March 31, 2016. 
 Derivative Financial Instrument – The conversion and redemp-
tion options available within both series of convertible debentures 
are reported at fair value on a quarterly basis on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets. As at December 31, 2014, the fair value of the 
embedded derivative payable decreased by $5.2 million to $41.7 mil- 
lion as a result of an increased share price. 

Other Long-term Assets and Liabilities 

• Non-Controlling Interest (“NCI”) – The balance represents the 
49.9% minority interest of Johnson not held by the Company. The 
NCI is adjusted on a quarterly basis to reflect the minority interest’s 
proportionate share of earnings. The NCI balance at December 31, 
2014 was C$21.3 million (US$18.4 million).

• Long-term Incentive Plan – As at December 31, 2014, the 
Company recorded total LTIP Liability of $20.7 million of which 
$20.2 million represents future potential LTIP. The total LTIP liability 
increased by $10.1 million or 95% to $20.7 million at the end of 
2014 compared to $10.6 million at the end of the prior year. This 
is a result of fair value increases in THP1 US, THP2 Canada and 
THP3 Canada. It should be noted that future potential LTIP will 
only be paid if and when the corresponding Performance Fees are 
earned and received by the Company in the future.

•	 Deferred	Income	Tax	Asset/Liabilities	– As of December 31, 2014, 
Tricon had a deferred tax liability (net of Deferred Income Tax 
Asset) balance of $8.6 million. 

Figure 8: Debt Maturity Schedule (as at December 31, 2014)

August 2017 – $51.7M convertible debenture July 2012 issuance  
(balance at maturity $51.7M).
April 2018 – Tricon Corporate US$105M Credit Facility ($54.3M drawn  
at December 31, 2014).
March 2020 – $86M convertible debenture February 2013 issuance  
(balance at maturity $86.0M).
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Equity issuance and cancellations 
Tricon did not initiate any public offerings during 2014. Shares issued and their average prices, before transaction costs, are summarized  
as follows:

Table 10: Equity Issuance and Cancellation Schedule
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the Year Ended December 31 2014 2013

   Shares Price/Cost $ Amount Shares Price/Cost $ Amount

Equity Issuance    –     $ –    $ –     48,378,888   $ 5.99   $ 289,604 
Dividend Reinvestment Plan (“DRIP”)   373,058    7.35    2,741    143,616    6.65    955 
Normal Course Issuer Bid (“NCIB”)   (734,200)   (5.25)    (3,858)   (10,900)   (5.23)    (57)
Consolidated Vested Stock  
 Compensation Shares   276,637    7.50    2,074    –      –     –   
Conversion of Debentures    –      –     –       12,500    6.00    75 
Total     (84,505)   $ 957    48,524,104    $ 290,577

On October 6, 2014, Tricon renewed its NCIB, allowing the repurchase and cancellation of shares in the open market. In this renewal, the terms 
have been changed to allow the purchase of up to 10% of the float or 6.3 million shares compared to 5% of the total in the previous agreement. 
Under the renewed NCIB, Tricon purchased 613,500 shares at an average of $7.75 per share for $4.8 million and these repurchases resulted 
in a reduction of share capital of $3.9 million (with the balance reflecting the cost base of $5.25 per share). 

5.4 Interest Expense
The following table provides the details of the Company’s interest expense:

Table 11: Interest Expense
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the Periods Ended December 31 Three Months Full Year

   2014 2013 Variance 2014 2013 Variance

Interest Expense – Corporate Credit Facility $ 590  $ 160  $ 430  $ 1,825  $ 342  $ 1,483 
Interest Expense – Convertible Debentures   2,014    2,276    (262)   9,068    8,266    802 
Interest Expense – Tricon American Homes   2,640    1,115    1,525    10,189    2,333    7,856 
Interest Expense – Tricon Lifestyle Communities   127    –     127    176    –      176 
Total Interest Expense $ 5,371   $ 3,551   $ 1,820  $ 21,258  $ 10,941  $ 10,317  

Tricon increased the amount of the corporate credit facility to US$105 million in April 2014. As a result of the growing use, the interest expense 
of the corporate credit facility increased by $1.5 million to $1.8 million in 2014 compared to $0.3 million in 2013.
 Interest expense of Convertible Debentures increased by 9.7% as the $86 million convertible debenture was closed in late February 2013 
and as a result, not outstanding for the full year of 2013, which resulted in a lower interest expense in 2013. 
 In August 2014, TAH increased the size of its dedicated warehousing facility to US$400 million from US$250 million. Interest expense at 
Tricon American Homes increased mainly due to the greater usage of the credit facility required by its growing operations. The upsize also 
resulted in US$1.1 million of transaction costs. In 2014, TAH also paid a US$0.5 million standby fee on the credit. 
 In August 2014, to close the first acquisition of Tricon Lifestyle Communities, Tricon obtained a US$10.6 million loan from Freddie Mac 
paying 4.17% fixed rate over 10 years. Tricon incurred US$0.4 million in transaction costs in obtaining this financing.
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6. Appendix – Key Performance Indicators, Accounting Estimates and Risk Analysis

6.1  Key Performance Indicators 
Assets Under Management (“AUM”)
Monitoring changes in AUM is key to evaluating trends in revenue. Growth in AUM is driven by principal investments and capital commit-
ments to private funds, separate accounts, and syndicated/side-car investments by institutional and high net worth investors. A side-car is a 
co-investment vehicle under common sponsorship with a Tricon fund. The side-car generally participates in larger investment opportunities 
brought by the fund sponsor or general partner. The separate account and side-car investments are typically driven by investments in projects 
with investment criteria outside an active fund’s discipline or concentration limits.
 For reporting purposes, AUM includes balance sheet capital invested in the Company’s Principal Investment segment and capital managed 
on behalf of third-party investors in its Private Funds and Advisory business, and is calculated as follows:

 Assets Under Management

 Commingled Funds During the investment period, AUM = Capital Commitment
   After the investment period, AUM = Outstanding investment capital

 Separate Accounts/Side-cars/Syndicated Investments Invested and unfunded capital commitment less realized value
 
 Total Private Funds and Advisory AUM

 Tricon Housing Partners Fair value of invested capital and unfunded commitment

 Tricon American Homes Fair value of invested properties and inventory homes before imputed
     selling costs and minority interest 

 Tricon Lifestyle Communities Fair value of assets including in-place leases and park assets

 Total Principal Investments AUM

Adjusted Base EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income
In management’s opinion, Adjusted Base EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income are the most useful measures of performance. 
As detailed on the following page, these include the changes in the fair value of the Company’s investments, but exclude both Non-Recurring 
and Non-Cash Items, including Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) expense and the Net Change in Fair Value of Derivatives.  

 Adjusted Income Statement Breakdown

 Contractual Fees 1–2% of committed capital during the fund investment periods
   1–2% of invested capital after fund investment periods expire
   1–2% of invested capital of separate accounts, side-cars  
     and syndicated investments
   Contractual Fees from Johnson

 General Partner Distributions Based on prescribed formulas within the Limited Partnership Agreement

 Investment Income – THP From co-investment in private funds or co-investing alongside  
     investments within those funds or in separate accounts/ 
     side-car investments 
   From investing balance sheet cash in “warehoused” investments that  
     will be offered to new private funds upon their formation
   From investing directly in projects, loans or limited partnerships other  
     than those described above

 Realized Investment Income – TAH/TLC Represents rental income, net of non-controlling interest and expenses

 Interest Income Interest Income from temporary investments
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 Total Adjusted Base Revenue

 Salaries, professional Fees, Directors’ fees, G&A Overhead expenses less non-recurring expenses

 Non-Controlling Interest 49.9% of Johnson’s income before interest, amortization and  
     tax expenses

 Total Adjusted Base EBITDA

 Annual Incentive Plan 15%–20% of (Adjusted Base EBITDA less THP1 US Investment Income)

 Unrealized Investment Income –  Tricon’s portion of Fair Value Adjustment of the properties less  
  TAH/TLC Fair Value Adjustment   Performance fees estimated payable to operating partners and  
     Additional IFRS fair value adjustments 
   TAH – Fair value calculated based on Broker Price Opinion, Automated  
     Valuation Model and Home Price Index
   TLC – Fair value calculated based on discounted cash flow model

 Performance Fees Based on prescribed formulas within the various Limited  
     Partnership Agreements 
   Typically calculated as 20% of net cash flow after return of capital and  
     preferred return of 9–10%; may contain a “catch-up” provision that  
     enables the Company to earn a higher percentage of net cash flow  
     until the ratio of the limited partner returns to Performance Fees paid  
     to the Company is 80/20

 Performance fees-Related Bonus Pool (LTIP) 50% of Performance Fees + DSU expense calculated based on 15%  
     of THP1 US Investment

 Total Adjusted EBITDA

 Stock Option Expense Compensation expense on stock options granted to employees

 Interest Expense Includes interest on Corporate borrowings and borrowings in principal  
     investment segments (excluding discount amortization of  
     convertible debentures)

 Amortization Amortization of Johnson intangible assets and Placement Fees

 Total Adjusted Net Income Before Taxes (EBT)

 Income Tax (Expense) Recovery Includes current and deferred tax expenses on corporate entities  
     and principal investments

 Total Adjusted Net Income
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Tricon American Homes/Tricon Lifestyle Communities Key Performance Metrics
As detailed above, the Company captures ongoing operating performance through Realized Investment Income for TAH/TLC and reports 
changes in the underlying fair value of the investments through Unrealized Investment Income for the TAH/TLC Fair Value Adjustment, which 
includes the fair value of properties calculated based on Broker Price Opinion, Automated Valuation Model, Home Price Index or Discounted 
Cash Flow Model. However, the Company believes other information or metrics related to the net assets and operating results of Tricon 
American Homes/Tricon Lifestyle Communities is relevant in evaluating the operating performance of these underlying assets, as follows.  
(All information related to the underlying limited partnerships represents non-IFRS financial information). 

Net Operating Income represents total rental revenue, less operating rental expenses and property management fees. 

In-Place Occupancy Rate represents the number of investment properties in the portfolio that are leased, including those pending move-in with 
signed lease agreements, as a percentage of total homes in the portfolio. 

Occupancy for homes owned six months and more represents the number of investment properties in the portfolio that are leased, including 
those pending move-in with signed lease agreements, as a percentage of total homes that are owned six months and more in the portfolio. 

Gross Yield (Tricon American Homes only) for a property refers to the expected gross annual rent divided by its Capital Invested. Capital Invested 
is the aggregate of a home’s purchase price, closing costs associated with its purchase, and the cost of upfront improvements or renovation.

 Tricon American Homes/Tricon Lifestyle Communities Investment Income Breakdown

 TAH/TLC Net Operating Income Rental Revenue less Rental Expenses

 Gain from Sale of Homes Inventory Homes Revenue less the Cost of Homes Sold and 
     Selling Expenses

 Asset Management Fees TAH – Invested Capital x Management Fee Rate of 1%
   TLC – Rent received x 4%

 Leasing Commissions Commissions paid to lease properties, excluded from NOI

 Other Expenses Professional fees, general and administration expenses, and other  
     corporate overhead expenses

 Non-Controlling Interest (Realized) Non-controlling parties’ interest in the realized income

 TAH Operations LLC Net Income (Loss) Fee revenue less operating and overhead expenses (TAH only,  
     not applicable to TLC)
 
 Total Realized Investment Income – TAH/TLC

 Fair Value Adjustment TAH – calculated based on BPO/AVM
   TLC – Calculated based on Discounted Cash Flow Valuation

 Non-Controlling Interest (Unrealized) Non-controlling parties’ interest in fair value adjustment less imputed  
     performance fees to third party/operator (for TAH, estimated 
     performance fees vary depending on each market’s FVA for 
     the period)

 Total Unrealized Investment Income – TAH/TLC Fair Value Adjustment
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6.2  Accounting Estimates
Refer to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for details 
on critical accounting estimates.

6.3  New and Future Accounting Standards
Refer to Note 2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year 
ended December 31, 2014 for details on future accounting policy 
changes. 

6.4  Controls and Procedures
Pursuant to National Instrument 52-109 released by the Canadian 
Securities Administrators, the Company’s CEO and CFO have 
evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of the Company’s 
disclosure controls and procedures and the Company’s internal con-
trols over financial reporting for the year ended December 31, 2014. 
The CEO and CFO did not identify any material weaknesses in the 
Company’s system of internal controls over financial reporting.
 During the year ended December 31, 2014, there were no changes 
to policies, procedures and processes that comprise the system of 
internal controls over financial reporting that may have affected, 
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s inter-
nal control over financial reporting. Such controls and procedures 
are subject to continuous review and changes to such controls  
and procedures may require management resources and systems 
in the future.

6.5  Transactions with Related Parties
Tricon has a 10-year sub-lease commitment on the Company’s head 
office premises with Mandukwe Company Inc., a company owned 
and controlled by a director of the Company. The annual rental 
amount is $49,000 plus common area maintenance costs and realty 
taxes. The lease expires on November 30, 2019.
 Senior Management of the Company also own units, directly 
or indirectly, in the various Tricon private funds as well as common 
shares and debentures of the Company. 
 Refer to the Related Party Transactions and Balances Note in the 
financial statements for further details. 

6.6  Dividends
The Company has paid dividends on a quarterly basis since going 
public in May 2010. On November 11, 2014 the Board of Directors 
declared a dividend of $5.4 million or six cents per share to share- 
holders of record on December 31, 2014, payable on January 15,  
2015. On January 15, 2015, recipients of dividends elected to receive 
91,947 shares under the DRIP for a total amount of $0.8 million.  
On March 10, 2015, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of  
six cents per share to shareholders of record on March 31, 2015  
payable on April 15, 2015.

6.7  Compensation Incentive Plan
In September 2013, the Board of Directors approved a new Compen-
sation Incentive Plan consisting of an Annual Incentive Plan (“AIP”) 
and a Performance Fee-Related Bonus Plan (“LTIP”). The plan was 
approved as of January 2013 and as such is retroactive to that time. 
 AIP will be calculated based on 15–20% of Adjusted Base EBITDA 
less THP1 US Investment Income with the actual rate determined 
annually at the Board’s discretion. In 2014, AIP is calculated using 
15% as specified in the Company’s Compensation Incentive Plan. 
Unlike the previous plan where 100% of the annual bonus was 
awarded in cash, under this new plan, 60% of AIP compensation is 
distributed as cash, and 40% in DSUs with a one-year vesting period.
 LTIP expense is generated from two sources: (i) 50% of the 
Company’s share of performance fees or carried interest from pri-
vate funds and separate accounts, paid in cash when received, and  
(ii) a percentage equal to the AIP percentage (currently 15%) of THP1 
US investment income, payable in DSUs which currently vest over a 
five-year period.  

6.8  Risk Definition and Management 
The risks described below are not the only ones facing the Company 
and holders of Common Shares. Additional risks not currently known 
to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our  
business operations. This MD&A contains forward-looking state-
ments that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could 
differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking state-
ments as a result of certain factors, including the risks faced by us 
described below.

General Risks
General Economic Conditions
The success of our business is highly dependent upon conditions in 
the Canadian and United States real estate markets (and in particu-
lar the residential sector) and economic conditions throughout North 
America that are outside our control and difficult to predict. Factors 
such as interest rates, housing prices, availability of credit, inflation 
rates, economic uncertainty, changes in laws (including laws relating 
to taxation), trade barriers, energy prices, currency exchange rates 
and controls, and national and international political circumstances 
(including wars, terrorist acts or security operations) could have a 
material negative impact on the value of our funds’ portfolio invest-
ments, which could reduce our revenues and profitability.
 Specific to our private funds and advisory business, unpredictable 
or unstable market conditions and adverse economic conditions may 
result in reduced opportunities to find suitable risk-adjusted invest-
ments to deploy capital and make it more difficult for our funds to exit 
and realize value from their existing real estate investments, which 
could materially adversely affect our ability to raise new funds and 
sustain our profitability and growth.
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Changes in the real estate markets
The residential real estate industry is cyclical and is significantly 
affected by changes in general and local economic and industry 
conditions, such as employment levels, availability of financing for 
homebuyers, interest rates, consumer confidence, levels of new and 
existing homes for sale, demographic trends and housing demand. In 
addition, an oversupply of new homes or alternatives to new homes, 
such as resale homes, including homes held for sale by investors and 
speculators, foreclosed homes and rental properties may reduce the 
Company’s ability to rent or sell homes, depress prices and reduce 
margins from the rental and sale of homes. Conversely, if housing 
prices in the target markets increase at a rate faster than rents, this 
could result in downward pressure on the Company’s gross rental 
yields. The United States residential real estate industry continues to 
face a number of challenges, with home foreclosures and tight credit 
standards continuing to have an effect on inventory and home sale 
rates and prices.
 Homebuilders and renovators are also subject to risks related to 
the availability and cost of materials and labour, and adverse weather 
conditions that can cause delays in construction schedules and cost 
overruns. Furthermore, the market value of undeveloped land, build-
able lots and housing inventories can fluctuate significantly as a result 
of changing economic and real estate market conditions and may 
result in inventory impairment charges for the Company. If there are 
significant adverse changes in economic or real estate market condi-
tions, the Company may have to sell or rent homes at a loss or hold 
these real estate assets in inventory longer than planned. Inventory 
carrying costs can be significant and can result in losses in a poorly 
performing project or market. If market conditions deteriorate, some 
of the Company’s assets may be subject to fair value decrease and 
option write-off charges, adversely affecting the Company’s opera-
tions and financial results relating to its principal investments.

Competition
Each segment of our business is subject to competition in varying 
degrees. We compete on the basis of a number of factors, including, 
but not limited to, the quality of our employees, transaction execution, 
our products and services, innovation and reputation and price. We 
compete in pursuit of investor capital to be invested in our securities 
and investment funds but also in acquiring investments in attractive 
assets. Competition for investor capital, in particular, is intense and 
investors are increasingly seeking to manage their own assets or 
reduce their management fees. Further, our competitors may have 
certain competitive advantages, including greater financial, technical, 
marketing and other resources, more personnel, less onerous regu-
latory requirements or a lower cost of capital and access to funding 
sources or other resources that are not available to us. These pres-
sures and/or an increase in competition could result in downward 
pressure on revenues which could, in turn, reduce operating margins 
and thereby reduce operating cash flows, investment returns and 
negatively affect our overall financial condition. In addition, competi-
tion could result in the scarcity of inputs which can impact certain of 
our businesses through higher costs.

Sustaining Growth
Our Assets Under Management have grown from approximately 
$14.3 million in 1988 to approximately $2.5 billion at December 31, 
2014. Our rapid growth has caused, and if it continues will continue to 
cause, significant demands on our legal, accounting and operational 
infrastructure, and increased expenses. In addition, we are required 
to continuously develop our systems and infrastructure in response 
to the increasing sophistication of the residential real estate devel-
opment investment management market and legal, accounting and 
regulatory developments.
 Our future growth will depend, among other things, on our abil-
ity to maintain an operating platform and management systems 
sufficient to address our growth and will require us to incur addi-
tional expenses and to commit additional senior management and 
operational resources. As a result, we face significant challenges in:  
(i) maintaining adequate financial and business controls; (ii) imple-
menting new or updated information and financial systems and 
procedures; and (iii) training, managing and appropriately sizing our 
workforce and other components of our business on a timely and 
cost-effective basis.
 There can be no assurance that we will be able to manage our 
expanding operations effectively or that we will be able to continue 
to grow, and any failure to do so could adversely affect our ability to 
generate revenue and control our expenses.

Transaction Execution
Before making residential real estate development investments for 
our funds, including the selection of developers, we conduct exten-
sive due diligence reviews that we deem reasonable and appro-
priate based on the facts and circumstances applicable to each 
investment. Our due diligence process includes in-depth reference 
checks of developers, environmental audits, market analysis, site 
analysis, financial and construction cost analysis and legal review. 
When conducting due diligence, we may be required to evaluate 
important and complex business, financial, tax, accounting, environ-
mental and legal issues. Outside consultants, legal advisors, accoun-
tants and investment banks may be involved in the due diligence 
process in varying degrees depending on the type of investment. 
Nevertheless, when conducting due diligence and making an assess-
ment regarding an investment, we rely on the resources available to 
us, including information provided by the developer and, in some cir-
cumstances, third-party investigations. The due diligence investiga-
tion that we will carry out with respect to any investment opportunity 
may not reveal or highlight all relevant facts that may be necessary  
or helpful in evaluating such investment opportunity. Moreover,  
such an investigation will not necessarily result in the investment 
being successful.
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Liquidity Risk
Certain residential properties can be difficult to sell, particularly if local 
market conditions continue to be poor. Additionally, financial diffi-
culties of other property owners resulting in distressed sales could 
depress real estate values in the markets in which we operate in times 
of illiquidity. These restrictions could reduce our ability to respond to 
changes in the performance of our funds and could adversely affect 
our financial condition and results of operations.

Environmental Risks
The development properties and developers in which our funds invest 
are subject to various Canadian and US laws relating to environmental 
matters. These laws could hold the developers or property owners 
liable for the costs of removal and remediation of certain hazardous 
substances or wastes released or deposited on or in our develop-
ment properties or disposed of at other locations. We are not aware 
of any material non-compliance with environmental laws by any of the 
developers in which our funds invest, nor are we aware of any material 
non-compliance with environmental laws on any of our residential real 
estate developments.  We are also not aware of any pending or threat-
ened investigations or actions by environmental regulatory authorities 
in connection with any of the residential real estate developments or 
any material pending or threatened claims relating to environmental 
conditions at our development properties. We have made and will 
continue to make the necessary capital expenditures to support our 
developers’ efforts to comply with environmental laws and regulations. 

Management Team 
Our executive and other senior officers have a significant role in our 
success and oversee the execution of our strategy. Our ability to retain 
our management group or attract suitable replacements should any 
members of the management group leave is dependent on, among 
other things, the competitive nature of the employment market and 
the career opportunities that we can offer. We have experienced 
departures of key professionals in the past and may do so in the 
future, and we cannot predict the impact that any such departures will 
have on our ability to achieve our objectives. Competition for the best 
people is intense and the loss of services from key members of the 
management group or a limitation in their availability could adversely 
impact our financial condition and cash flow. Furthermore, such a loss 
could be negatively perceived in the capital markets. The conduct of 
our businesses and the execution of our growth strategy rely heavily 
on teamwork. Our continued ability to respond promptly to opportu-
nities and challenges as they arise depends on co-operation across 
our organization and our team oriented management structure, which 
may not materialize in the way we expect.

Taxation Risks
We structure our business to prevailing taxation law and practice in 
the US and Canada. Any change in tax policy, tax legislation (includ-
ing in relation to taxation rates), the interpretation of tax policy or 
legislation or practice could adversely affect the return we can earn 
on our investments, on the capital available to be invested by us or our 
institutional investors or on the willingness of investors to acquire our 
securities or invest in our funds. Further, taxes and other constraints 
that would apply to our operating entities in such jurisdictions may not 
apply to other parties, and such parties may therefore have a signifi-
cantly lower effective cost of capital and a corresponding competitive 
advantage in pursuing acquisitions. A number of other factors may 
increase our effective tax rates, which would have a negative impact 
on our net income. These include, but are not limited to, changes in 
the valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities, and any reas-
sessment of taxes by a taxation authority.

Risks Relating to Private Funds and Advisory
Formation of Future Funds
The ability to raise any capital for any future funds remains subject to 
various conditions which Tricon cannot control, including the nego-
tiation and execution of definitive legal documentation and commit-
ments made by third-party investors. There can be no assurance that 
any capital raising by any other future funds will occur or that future 
warehoused investments of the Company will be acquired by any 
other future funds. A failure to raise any other future funds could result 
in lower Assets Under Management and would impair our future rev-
enues and growth.

Structure of Future Funds
There can be no assurance that the manner in which Contractual 
Fees, General Partner Distributions, Performance Fees and/or Invest- 
ment Income are calculated in respect of future funds of Tricon will 
be the same as the existing funds, including with respect to the treat-
ment of the Company’s principal investments in such funds. Any such 
changes could result in the Company earning less Contractual Fees, 
General Partner Distributions and/or Performance Fees from the 
same Assets Under Management as compared to the Active Funds 
and could expose the Company’s principal investment in such future 
fund or funds to increased risk, including, but not limited to, the risk of 
reduced Investment Income (at comparable investment performance 
levels) and the increased risk of loss of capital of the Company.
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Capital Commitment 
The limited partners in Tricon’s funds comprise a relatively small 
group of high-quality, primarily institutional, investors. To date, each 
of these investors has met its commitments on called capital and 
we have received no indications that any investor will be unable to 
meet its capital commitments in the future. While our experience with 
the funds’ limited partners suggests that commitments will be hon-
oured, and notwithstanding the adverse consequences to a default-
ing limited partner in the applicable limited partnership agreement, 
no assurances can be given that a limited partner will meet its entire 
commitment over the life of a fund. A failure by one or more limited 
partners to satisfy a drawdown request could impair our ability to 
fully finance our development projects, which could have a material 
adverse effect on our business.

Operational and Credit Risks
On a strategic and selective basis, our funds provide financing to 
develop properties. The residential real estate development business 
involves significant risks that could adversely affect our business, 
financial condition and results of operations, including: the devel-
oper may not be able to complete construction on schedule or within 
budget, resulting in increased debt service expense and construction 
costs and delays in selling the properties in which our funds invest; 
the developer may not be able to obtain, or may experience delays in 
obtaining, all necessary zoning, land-use, building, occupancy and 
other governmental permits and authorizations for properties in which 
our funds invest; the developer may not be able to sell properties in 
which our funds invest on favourable terms or at all; construction 
costs, total investment amounts and our fund’s share of remaining 
funding may exceed our estimates and projects may not be com-
pleted and delivered as planned. A developer that our funds help 
to finance may experience a downturn in its business, which could 
cause the loss of that developer or weaken its financial condition 
and result in the developer’s inability to make payments when due. 
If a developer defaults, we may experience delays and incur costs in 
enforcing our rights as lender and protecting our investments.
 Our funds’ investments are made through the financing of local 
developers, and, consequently, we rely to a great extent on those 
developers to successfully manage their development projects. 
Investments in partnerships, joint ventures or other entities may 
involve risks not present were a third party not involved, including 
the possibility that our funds’ partners or co-venturers might become 
bankrupt or otherwise fail to fund their share of required capital con-
tributions. Additionally, our partners or co-venturers might at any 
time have economic or other business interests or goals which are 
inconsistent with our business interests or goals. In addition, we do 
not have sole control of certain important decisions relating to these 
development properties, including decisions relating to: the sale of 
the development properties; refinancing; timing and amount of dis-
tributions of cash from such development properties to Tricon; and 
capital improvements.

Partnership Agreement
The partnership agreements for certain Active Funds provide that the 
general partner of each Active Fund may be removed by the consent 
of limited partners that have made 75% of such partnership’s capital 
contributions. The partnership agreements of other Active Funds pro-
vide that the general partner and manager of each such Active Fund 
may be removed without cause by the consent of “unaffiliated limited 
partners” holding at least 75% of the partnership units entitled to be 
voted on such matter. These partnership agreements do not provide 
for termination payments to the general partner or manager in the 
event of removal without cause. The removal of the general partner 
or the manager of an Active Fund prior to the termination of such 
fund could materially adversely affect the reputation of Tricon, lower 
Assets Under Management and, as a result, reduce anticipated future 
Contractual Fees and Performance Fees.

Risks Relating to Principal Investments
Tricon Housing Partners
Our funds have made investments in residential land development and 
homebuilding operations located in the United States and Canada. 
These operations are concentrated in areas which we believe have 
positive long-term demographic and economic characteristics. The 
residential real estate development industry is cyclical and is signifi-
cantly affected by changes in general and local economic and indus-
try conditions, such as consumer confidence, employment levels, 
availability of financing for homebuyers and interest rates, availability 
and terms of senior financing, levels of new and existing homes for 
sale, demographic trends and housing demand. The development 
projects in which we invest also have lengthy project completion time-
lines. Typically, we invest in development projects in which capital is 
generally returned in three to five years and that take four to six years 
to complete. These extended timelines present the possibility that 
markets will deteriorate between the time of our initial investment 
and the return of capital or project completion which could have an 
adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of opera-
tion. As a result of the above-mentioned factors, the year-to-year or 
quarter-to quarter revenue, investment income and cash distribution 
may be erratic.  

Tricon American Homes and Tricon Lifestyle Communities
Experience 
The Company’s current and historical business as a manager of funds 
is different from the US single-family home rental and manufactured 
housing community strategy. Management’s increased focus and 
involvement in connection with these strategies could have an adverse 
effect, financial or otherwise, on the Company as a whole. Specifically, 
due to the size of the Company’s intended investment in these seg-
ments, any adverse change or effect experienced by the Company in 
connection with these strategies could result in the Company experi-
encing financial distress and cause the market price of our Common 
Shares to decline or fluctuate significantly.
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Competition
The residential single-family rental market  has historically been frag-
mented in both its ownership and operations. We face competition 
from local owners and operators, as well as an emerging class of 
institutional managers. When acquiring single-family rental and man-
ufactured housing community properties, we face competition from 
individual investors, private pools of capital and other institutional 
buyers which may increase the prices for properties that we would like 
to purchase and reduce our ability to achieve our desired portfolio size 
or expected yields. We also compete for desirable residents against 
the same entities as well as multi-family lessors. We believe that hav-
ing an integrated and scalable platform with local market presence 
and using our wealth of existing in-house expertise provides us a 
competitive advantage.

Lease Renewal and Turnover Risk
If a tenant decides to vacate a rental property, whether as a result of 
deciding not to renew their lease or by vacating prior to the expiry 
of the lease, Tricon may not be able to relet that property in a short 
amount of time or at all. Additionally, even if we are successful in 
renewing a lease or reletting a property, the terms of the renewal 
or reletting may be less favourable than the terms that existed at 
the time when we originally leased the property. If we are unable to 
promptly renew leases or relet properties, or if the rental rates upon 
renewal or reletting are significantly lower than expected rates, then 
the Company’s financial condition and cash flow could be adversely 
affected. Specifically in our single-family rental strategy, our ability to 
renew leases and/or relet properties (or on terms that are favourable 
to us) may be adversely affected by economic and market conditions 
including, without limitation, new construction and excess inventory 
of single-family housing, changes in social preferences, rent control 
legislation, the availability of low interest mortgages for single-family 
home buyers, rental housing subsidized by the government, and 
other government programs that favour multi-family rental housing 
or owner occupied housing over single-family rental housing.

7. Appendix – Reconciliations

In preparing the adjusted financial information, management has eliminated both Non-Recurring and Non-Cash Items as shown in the  
tables below: 

Table 12: Net Income/(Loss) as shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except for per share amounts)

For the Periods Ended December 31 Three Months Full Year

   2014 2013 Variance 2014 2013 Variance

Total Revenues  $ 85,941  $ 42,888  $ 43,053  $ 187,193  $ 91,235  $ 95,958 
Total Expenses   (27,547)   (19,306)   (8,241)   (54,156)   (42,300)   (11,856)
Non-Controlling Interest – Johnson   (1,348)   –      (1,348)   (1,827)   –     (1,827)
Income Tax Expense   (8,743)    (7,352)   (1,391)    (20,807)   (12,862)   (7,945) 
Net Income for the Period $ 48,303  $ 16,230  $ 32,073  $ 110,403  $ 36,073  $ 74,330 
        
Basic Income (Loss) per Share $ 0.53  $ 0.18    $ 1.22  $ 0.60  
Diluted Income (Loss) per Share $ 0.50  $ 0.18    $ 1.05  $ 0.59  
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Table 13: Reconciliation of Net Income to Adjusted Net Income
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the Periods Ended December 31 Three Months Full Year

   2014 2013 Variance 2014 2013 Variance

Net Income for the Period $ 48,303   $ 16,230   $ 32,073  $ 110,403  $ 36,073  $ 74,330 
Adjustments:
Long-Term Incentive Plan Total 5,071   (492)  5,563  12,203   5,875   6,328 
Long-Term Incentive Plan Actual (981)  (665)  (316) (3,740)  (5,224)  1,484 
Phantom Units –  524   (524) 109   1,015   (906)
Non-recurring Salaries and Benefits Expense 1,563   –     1,563  3,134   –     3,134 
Transaction Costs 692   5   687  1,128   5,024   (3,896)
Formation Costs 23   –     23  70   –     70 
Debentures Discount Amortization 1,536  1,055   481  4,681   3,690   991 
Financing Charges – TAH Facility 233   1,109   (876) 1,749   5,118   (3,369)
Non-recurring TAH Transaction Costs 1,861   –     1,861  2,095  –     2,095 
Unrealized TAH Selling Expenses 597   809   (212) 2,589   5,159   (2,570)
Financing Charges – TLC Facility 34   –     34  432  –     432 
Non-recurring TLC Formation Costs 60   –     60  211  –    211 
Net Change in Fair Value of Derivative 5,030   12,683   (7,653) (5,227)  5,680   (10,907)
Unrealized Foreign Exchange (Gain) Loss 1,903   (915)  2,818  377   (1,191)  1,568 
Unrealized Foreign Exchange (Gain) Loss 
 on Investment – THP (14,172)  (9,506)  (4,666) (29,818)  (8,795)  (21,023)
Unrealized Foreign Exchange (Gain) Loss 
 on Investment – TAH (12,992)  (8,467)  (4,525) (29,092)  (14,094)  (14,998)
Unrealized Foreign Exchange (Gain) Loss 
 on Investment – TLC (171)  –     (171) (270) –    (270)
Total Non-Recurring and Non-Cash Adjustments (9,713)  (3,860)  (5,853) (39,369)  2,257   (41,626)
Tax Effect of Above Adjustments (Expense) (435)  (948)  513  (1,000)  (3,644)  2,644 
Tax Adjustment Due to Change of Tax Strategy (5,687)  –     (5,687) (5,687)  –     (5,687)
Total Tax Adjustments (6,122)  (948)  (5,174) (6,687)  (3,644)  (3,043)
Non-Recurring and Non-Cash 
 Adjustments after Taxes (15,835)  (4,808)  (11,027) (46,056)  (1,387)  (44,669)
Adjusted Net Income  $ 32,468  $ 11,422  $ 21,046  $ 64,347  $ 34,686  $ 29,661

Long-Term Incentive Plan – Per IFRS, the Company is required to 
estimate the potential LTIP payable based on the estimated fair value 
of assets within the managed private funds. 

Phantom Units Expense – The expense incurred relates to units 
issued to employees in the prior year and therefore the balance has 
been removed from the Company’s performance metrics.

Transaction Costs – The Company incurred one-time legal fees on the 
corporate revolving credit facility upsize in April 2014 and the acquisi-
tion of the 50.1% interest in Johnson. 

Debentures Discount Amortization – Per IFRS, the Company is required 
to discount expected cash flows of the convertible debentures using 
an effective interest rate and report Debentures Payable at amortized 
cost. The corresponding amortization expense is non-cash in nature 
and is therefore removed when calculating Adjusted Net Income.

Financing Charges – TAH/TLC Facility – The Company incurred one-
time professional fees when acquiring financing.

Non-recurring TAH/TLC Transaction Costs – The Company incurred 
one-time costs such as professional and consulting fees related to 
the business restructuring.

Unrealized TAH Selling Expenses – The Unrealized Investment  
Income – Tricon American Homes Fair Value Adjustment balance 
includes imputed selling costs on the portfolio of 1% of fair value. 
This non-cash item has been removed when calculating Adjusted  
Net Income.

Convertible Debentures – The Company is required to fair value the 
embedded derivative components of the convertible debentures 
quarterly, resulting in a large non-cash expense on the income state-
ment. This non-cash item has therefore been removed when calculat-
ing Adjusted Net Income.
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Unrealized Foreign Exchange Gain – Foreign exchange fluctuations 
do not significantly expose the Company to near-term economic 
gains or losses since the Company does not convert most of the 
US dollars earned into Canadian dollars, which would crystallize the 
gains or losses. Instead, it retains the majority of the US dollars earned 
for investment in future US private funds and direct investments. As a 
result, the balance has been removed when calculating the Adjusted 
Base EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income amounts 
set out above. 

Tax Adjustment Due to Change of Tax Strategy – Tricon committed to 
a tax-efficient exit for the TAH REIT in Q4 2014, reflecting a change in 
business strategy from an opportunistic investment to a core principal 
investment. With the completion of the integration and internalization 
process to consolidate the property and asset management functions, 
the most likely exit scenario would be a sale of the entire portfolio, 
giving rise to a capital gains tax rather than an ordinary business tax. 
The overall impact is a reduction in the future tax rate from 40% to 
13.25%. The cumulative adjustment from inception of this investment 
to September 30, 2014 was treated as a non-recurring item.

A detailed reconciliation of the investment income between the Financial Statements and MD&A is shown in the table below:

Table 14: Reconciliation of Investment Income from Financial Statements   
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the Periods Ended December 31 Three Months Full Year

   2014 2013 Variance 2014 2013 Variance

Reconciliation of Investment Income – THP
Investment Income – THP per 
 Financial Statements  $ 27,395  $ 18,147  $ 9,248  $ 72,197  $ 34,482  $ 37,715 
  Tax Recovery (Expenses)   (62)   (136)   74    450    36    414 
  Unrealized Foreign Exchange    (14,172)   (9,509)   (4,663)   (29,818)   (8,798)   (21,020)
  Other Adjustments (Including 
   Performance fee in 2013)  5      3  2  5      (7,186)   7,191 
Investment Income – THP Per MD&A $ 13,166  $ 8,505  $ 4,661  $ 42,834  $ 18,534  $ 24,300 
Reconciliation of Investment Income – TAH
Investment income – TAH per 
 Financial Statements $ 46,255  $ 17,822  $ 28,433  $ 85,596  $ 37,158  $ 48,438 
  Imputed Selling Expenses   597    809    (212)   2,589    5,159    (2,570)
  Interest Expense   2,640    1,115    1,525    10,189    2,333    7,856 
  Tax Expenses (Recovery)   (8,504)   4,698    (13,202)   (11,201)   5,317    (16,518)
  Tax Adjustment Due to Change  
    of Tax Strategy   (5,687)   –   (5,687)   (5,687)   –   (5,687)
  Unrealized Foreign Exchange   (12,992)   (8,467)   (4,525)   (29,092)   (14,094)   (14,998)
  Credit Facility Fees   233    1,109    (876)   1,749    5,118    (3,369)
  Non-recurring Integration Costs   1,861    –    1,861    2,095    –    2,095 
Total Investment Income – TAH per MD&A $ 24,403  $ 17,086  $ 7,317  $ 56,238  $ 40,991  $ 15,247 
Realized Investment Income – TAH $ 4,869  $ 2,472  $ 2,397  $ 18,878  $ 8,941  $ 9,937 
Unrealized Investment Income 
 – TAH Fair Value Adjustment   19,534    14,614    4,920    37,360    32,050    5,310 
Total Investment Income – TAH per MD&A $ 24,403  $ 17,086  $ 7,317  $ 56,238  $ 40,991  $ 15,247 
Reconciliation of Investment Income – TLC
Investment income – TLC per 
 Financial Statements $ 613  $ –    $ 613  $ 368  $ –    $ 368 
  Interest Expense   127    –     127    176    –    176 
  Tax Recovery (Expenses)   (617)   –      (617)   (827)   –   (827)
  Unrealized Foreign Exchange   (171)   –     (171)   (270)   –    (270)
  Financing Costs   34    –     34    432    –    432 
  Non-recurring Formation Costs   60    –     60    211    –    211 
Total Investment Income – TLC per MD&A $ 46  $ –    $ 46  $ 90  $ –    $ 90 
Realized Investment Income – TLC   191    –    191    235    –    235 
Unrealized Investment Income – TLC 
 Fair Value Adjustment   (145)   –    (145)   (145)   –    (145)
Total Investment Income – TLC per MD&A $ 46  $ –    $ 46  $ 90  $ –    $ 90
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8. Appendix – Tables

8.1  Selected Historical Financial Information
The following table shows selected MD&A financial information for the past eight quarters. 

Table 15: Summary of Quarterly Key Non-IFRS Performance Measures 
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except for per share amounts)

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2014  September 30, 2014 June 30, 2014 March 31, 2014

Assets Under Management  $ 2,484,604  $ 2,235,427  $ 1,972,558  $ 2,034,505 
Adjusted Base EBITDA   22,324    16,133    12,664    19,204 
Adjusted EBITDA   39,330    19,640    14,513    26,311 
Adjusted Net Income   32,468    9,584    9,872    12,423 
Adjusted Basic Earnings per Share $ 0.36  $ 0.11  $ 0.11  $ 0.14 
Adjusted Diluted Earnings per Share $ 0.30  $ 0.09  $ 0.09  $ 0.11 
     

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2013  September 30, 2013 June 30, 2013 March 31, 2013

Assets Under Management  $ 1,857,804  $ 1,624,430  $ 1,294,911  $ 1,159,917 
Adjusted Base EBITDA   15,347    15,517    4,014    3,375 
Adjusted EBITDA   28,196    17,660    7,900    15,506 
Adjusted Net Income   11,422    12,110    2,879    8,759 
Adjusted Basic Earnings per Share $ 0.13  $ 0.18  $ 0.07  $ 0.21 
Adjusted Diluted Earnings per Share $ 0.10  $ 0.14  $ 0.05  $ 0.21
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The following table shows selected Financial Statements information for the past three years. 

Table 16: Summary of Historical Selected Financial Statement Information
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except for per share amounts)

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2014  September 30, 2014 June 30, 2014 March 31, 2014

Revenue $ 85,941  $ 53,401  $ (1,661) $ 49,512 
Expenses   (36,290)   (9,817)    (11,555)    (17,301) 
Non-Controlling Interest   (1,348)   (184)    (295)   – 
Net Income (Loss)   48,303    43,400    (13,511)   32,211 
Basic Earnings per Share $ 0.53  $ 0.48  $ (0.15) $ 0.35 
Diluted Earnings per Share $ 0.50  $ 0.40  $ (0.15) $ 0.30 
     
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding   90,729,695    90,973,738    91,016,558    90,843,782 
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding – Diluted (1)   109,642,585    109,571,512    92,089,596    109,344,002 
     

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2013  September 30, 2013 June 30, 2013 March 31, 2013

Revenue $ 42,888  $ 18,827  $ 12,633  $ 16,857 
Expenses   (26,658)   (21,045)    (281)   (7,178) 
Net Income (Loss)   16,230    (2,218)   12,382    9,679 
Basic Earnings per Share $ 0.18  $ (0.03) $ 0.30  $ 0.23 
Diluted Earnings per Share $ 0.18  $ (0.03) $ 0.14  $ 0.23 
     
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding   90,664,248    68,042,566    41,764,212    41,754,012 
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding – Diluted (1)   109,044,166    87,227,946    60,114,888    42,422,929 
     

For the Full Year Ended  December 31, 2014  December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Revenue   $ 187,193  $ 91,235  $ 18,276 
Net Income (Loss)     110,403    36,073   (4,198)
Basic Earnings per Share   $ 1.22  $ 0.60 $ (0.15)  
Diluted Earnings per Share    1.05   0.59  (0.15) 
Total Assets   $  837,531  $  642,943  $  217,553 
Total Liabilities    269,007    186,146    76,258 
Debenture Payable    108,425    102,790    33,756 
Dividend per Share   $ 0.24  $ 0.24 $ 0.24 

(1)  Per IFRS potential shares from convertible debentures that are considered to be anti-dilutive are excluded from the diluted share count.   
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8.2  Supplementary Support for Financial Review  
The following table shows the detailed Assets Under Management by business segment. 

Table 17: Assets Under Management 
(in thousands of dollars)

   Capitalization As at December 31, (1)

     Originating Canadian (Canadian Equivalent) (2)

   Currency  Initial Close Currency Equivalent (1) 2014 2013 Variance (%)

THP1 US US May 2007  $ 105,000   $ 122,000  $ 119,175  $ 111,678  7%
THP2 US US August 2012   308,740    358,169    358,169    328,376  9%
THP1 Canada CA October 2005   101,124    101,124    33,782    39,071  (14%)
THP2 Canada CA April 2008   85,362    85,362    80,201    79,713  1%
THP3 Canada CA March 2011   175,750    175,750    132,988    175,750  (24%)
Private Funds AUM         724,315   734,588  (1%)
Cross Creek Ranch US June 2012   129,600    150,000    65,571    101,467  (35%)
Fulshear Farms US September 2013   45,000    52,000    52,205    47,862  9%
Grand Central Park  US November 2013   72,675    84,000    68,440    77,297  (11%)
Tegavah US October 2014   93,150    108,000    108,063    – N/A
Separate Accounts AUM         294,279    226,626  30%
Side-cars US – (3)  161,916    188,000    187,838    1,064  17554%
Syndicated Investments CA – (3)   45,476    45,476    38,652    19,366  100%
Side-car/Syndicated AUM         226,490    20,430  1009%
Private Funds and Advisory AUM (4)        $ 1,245,084   $ 981,644  27%

Tricon Housing Partners
THP1 US Co-Investment (5) US May 2007 $ 226,775  $ 263,000  $ 312,460  $ 284,721  10%
THP2 US Co-Investment US August 2012   25,000    30,000    31,399    27,665  13%
THP3 Canada Co-Investment CA March 2011   20,000    20,000    22,029    19,652  12%
Cross Creek Ranch Co-Investment US June 2012   14,400    17,000    13,792   15,075  (9%)
Fulshear Farms Co-Investment US September 2013   5,000    6,000    5,828    5,318  10%
Grand Central Park Co-Investment US November 2013   8,075    9,000    8,597    8,821  (3%)
Tegavah Co-Investment US October 2014   10,350    12,000    12,145    –    N/A
Side-cars US – (3)   17,880    21,000    20,859    58,967  (65%)
Tricon Housing Partners AUM         427,109    420,219  2%
Tricon American Homes (6) US May 2012   623,715    724,000    795,932    455,941  75%
Tricon Lifestyle Communities (6) US Aug 2014   14,130    16,000    16,479    –    N/A
Principal Investments AUM        $ 1,239,520  $ 876,160  41%

Total Assets Under Management       $ 2,484,604  $ 1,857,804  34%

(1) Refer to Section 6.1 for definitions of Assets Under Management for each type of investment vehicle.
(2)  Foreign exchange rates used at each balance sheet date are: at December 31, 2014 CA$1.1601 per US$1.00 and at December 31, 2013 CA$1.0636 

per US$1.00.
(3)  Includes several different investment accounts with various initial close dates.
(4)  Represents third-party AUM which generates Contractual Fee revenue for the Company.
(5)  US$226.8 million represents total fund commitment by the Company to THP1 US; purchase price of 68.4% interest was US$260.5 million.
(6)  Tricon American Homes and Tricon Lifestyle Communities Assets Under Management are equal to the fair value of investment properties and  

inventory homes before imputed selling expenses and therefore may differ from total capitalization in the strategy.
(7)  The AUM calculation excludes managed assets in Tricon VI and VII which do not pay management fees. As of December 31, 2014, the fair value of 

assets under Tricon VI and VII totaled $5.9 million and US$28.2 million, respectively.
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The following table shows the details of the Contractual Fees shown in Table 2: Selected Adjusted Income Statement information. 

Table 18: Contractual Fees 
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the Periods Ended December 31 Three Months Full Year

   2014 2013 Variance 2014 2013 Variance

US Funds and Investments $ 4,009  $ 4,736  $ (727) $ 13,253  $ 13,002  $ 251 
CA Funds and Investments   536    504    32    2,081    2,137    (56)
Johnson Companies LP   6,729    –      6,729    11,637    –      11,637 
Total Contractual Fees   11,274    5,240    6,034    26,971    15,139    11,832 
Fees paid by Tricon on its Co-Investments   (1,061)   (946)   (115)   (3,157)   (1,298)   (1,859)
Net Contractual Fees $ 10,213  $ 4,294  $ 5,919  $ 23,814  $ 13,841  $ 9,973 
General Partner Distributions 
 THP3 Canada $ 407  $ 746  $ (339) $ 1,897  $ 2,959  $ (1,062)
Fees paid by Tricon on its THP3 Canada  
 Co-Investment   (49)   (88)   39   (226)   (350)   124
Net General Partner 
 Distributions THP3 Canada $ 358  $ 658  $ (300) $ 1,671  $ 2,609  $ (938)

The following table shows the details of certain compensation expenses shown in Table 2: Selected Adjusted Income Statement information. 

Table 19: Compensation Plans
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the Periods Ended December 31 Three Months Full Year

   2014 2013 Variance 2014 2013 Variance

AIP
Adjusted Base EBITDA $ 22,324  $ 15,347  $ (6,977) $ 70,325  $ 38,262  $ (32,063)
Less: THP1 US Investment Income   12,156    8,962    (3,194)   36,341    17,158    (19,183)
Base for AIP Calculation   10,168    6,385    (3,783)   33,984    21,104    (12,880)
60% to be Paid in Cash   916    765    (151)   3,059    2,533    (526)
40% in Deferred Share Units   610    509    (101)   2,039    1,688    (351)
Total AIP Awarded (1) $ 1,526  $ 1,274  $ (252) $ 5,098  $ 4,221  $ (877)
LTIP
LTIP at 15% on THP1 US 
 Investment Income (2) $ 857  $ 503  $ (354) $ 2,669  $ 995  $ (1,674)
LTIP at 50% on THP1 US 
 Deemed Performance Fees   –     –      –     –      3,593    3,593 
LTIP at 50% on Performance Fees Received  –      13    13    21    98    77 
Total LTIP for the Period $ 857  $ 516  $ (341) $ 2,690  $ 4,686  $ 1,996 
Stock Option Expense $ 124  $ 149  $ 25  $ 1,050  $ 538  $ (512)

(1) AIP was calculated as 15% (versus 20% in 2013) of Adjusted Base EBITDA less THP1 US Investment Income for 2014.
(2)  The Performance Fee-Related Bonus Pool includes 15% on THP1 US Investment Income earned. The full 15% is paid out in the form of deferred share units 

which vest over five years. Under IFRS 2, these units are expensed over six years on a graded basis.
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The following table shows the details of the Income Tax Expense shown in Table 2: Selected Adjusted Income Statement information. 

Table 20: Adjusted Income Tax Expense
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the Periods Ended December 31 Three Months Full Year

   2014 2013 Variance 2014 2013 Variance

Adjusted EBT $ 32,538  $ 24,284  $ 8,254  $ 74,576  $ 56,545  $ 18,031 
Per Financial Statements   (10,155)   (3,194)   (6,961)  (15,784)   (4,801)   (10,893)
Tricon Housing Partners   (60)   50    (110)   (665)   (11)  (654)
Tricon American Homes   (20)   (85)   65    (86)   (800)   714 
Tricon Lifestyle Communities   292   –      292    292   –     292 
Investment in Johnson   (19)   –      (19)  –     –     –   
On Non-Cash and Non-Recurring Items Removed  (998)   (118)   (880)  (1,097)   28    (1,125)
Current Tax (Expense) Recovery   (10,960)   (3,347)   (7,613)  (17,340)  (5,584)   (11,666)
        
Per Financial Statements   1,412    (4,158)   5,570    (5,023)   (8,061)   3,038 
Tricon Housing Partners   122    86    36    215    (25)   240 
Tricon American Homes   8,524    (4,613)   13,137    11,287    (4,517)   15,804 
Tricon Lifestyle Communities   325    –     325    535    –     535 
Investment in Johnson   (56)   –      (56)  –      –     –   
On Non-Cash and Non-Recurring Items Removed  563    (830)   1,393    97    (3,672)   3,769 
Deferred Tax (Expense) Recovery   10,890    (9,515)   20,405    7,111    (16,275)   23,386 
Total Income Tax (Expense) Recovery   (70)    (12,862)   12,792    (10,229)   (21,859)   11,630 
Adjusted Net Income $ 32,468 $ 11,422  $ 21,046  $ 64,347  $ 34,686  $ 35,016 

The following table shows the details of the shares outstanding shown in Table 2: Selected Adjusted Income Statement information. 

Table 21: Shares Outstanding

As of December 31, 2014   Three Months Full Year

    Weighted Average Weighted Average
   Shares Outstanding Shares Outstanding Shares Outstanding

Basic Shares Outstanding
Share Capital   90,192,448    90,431,908    90,523,330 
Unissued Vested Phantom Units/DSUs   297,787    297,787    297,787 
Basic Shares Outstanding   90,490,235    90,729,695    90,821,117 
     
Fully Diluted Shares Outstanding
DSUs of THP1 US Income   703,824    703,824    703,824 
AIP Share Compensation   297,389    297,389    297,389 
Stock Options (1)   539,175    516,417    539,175 
Directors’ fees   7,250    7,250    7,250 
Convertible Debentures   17,388,010    17,388,010    17,388,010 
Adjustment for Dilution   18,935,648    18,912,890    18,935,648 
Fully Diluted Shares Outstanding  109,425,883  109,642,585   109,756,765 

(1) Dilutive shares from stock options are calculated assuming proceeds from exercising the stock options will be used toward repurchasing the 
 outstanding shares.
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The following table shows the details of the outstanding share options issued as a part of the compensation plan. 

Table 22: Stock Options

Issue Date Exercise Price (1) Total Issued Vested Exercised (2) Expired Outstanding (3)

May 19, 2010  $ 6.00   895,000   870,000   190,000   25,000   680,000 
August 3, 2010  5.26   71,500   71,500   12,500  –     59,000 
November 22, 2011  4.16   40,000   40,000  –     20,000   20,000 
November 22, 2011  4.16   15,000   15,000   15,000  –    – 
November 1, 2012  5.70   15,000   15,000   15,000  –    – 
May 17, 2013  6.81   1,010,000   403,327   100,000   20,000   890,000 
September 9, 2013  6.07   250,000   83,333  –    –     250,000 
November 1, 2013  7.49   20,000   20,000   20,000  –    – 
November 25, 2013  7.74   250,000  –    –     47,500   202,500 
Average/Total   $ 6.48   2,566,500   1,518,160   352,500   112,500   2,101,500 

(1)  Average exercise price is calculated based on the weighted average options outstanding.
(2) During 2014, options were exercised by employees who left the Company.
(3) Total options outstanding is calculated as the total options issued less options exercised and expired.
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Private Funds and Advisory and Tricon Housing Partners
The following table shows the past units disposition and remaining units to be developed/sold by fund/investment and by market. 

Table 23: Detailed Units Sold and Inventory by Investment/Market

Canadian Investment Vehicles Total Units Units Remaining

     Single-  Multi-   Single-  Multi-
   $ Commitment (1) Est. Land Family Homes Family Retail Land Family Homes Family Retail
  (in thousands) Completion (acres) Lots (2) (3) (Units) Units (3) (sq. ft.) (acres) Lots (2) (3) (Units) Units (3) (sq. ft.)

THP1 Canada
Edmonton $ 16,944  2020  215  1,599  –  –  –  153  890  –  –  – 

Toronto  64,953  2014  –  –  –  2,334  58,899 –  –  –  1 18,121

Vancouver  12,500  Complete –  –  –  284  –  –  –  –  –  – 

THP2 Canada
Calgary (5)  20,500  2020  –  –  –  901  171,650  –  –  –  520  171,650 

Edmonton   7,500  Complete –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Toronto  47,280  2015  –  –  –  1,478  49,881  –  –  –  13  31,521 

THP3 Canada
Calgary (5)  40,000  2022  98  2,559  441 –  –  47  1,855  203  –  – 

Toronto  70,700  2019  –  –  –  697  –  –  –  –  77  – 

Vancouver  46,000  2017  –  –  –  967  56,295  –  –  –  495  – 

Less: Double Counted (4)   –  –  –  (939) –  –  –  –  (1) – 

Total    313 4,158  441 5,722  336,725  200  2,745  203  1,105  221,292 

Canadian Investment Vehicles Total Units Sold Units Sold in 2014

     Single-  Multi-   Single-  Multi-
   $ Commitment (1) Est. Land Family Homes Family Retail Land Family Homes Family Retail
  (in thousands) Completion (acres) Lots (2) (3) (Units) Units (3) (sq. ft.) (acres) Lots (2) (3) (Units) Units (3) (sq. ft.)

THP1 Canada
Edmonton $ 16,944  2020  62 709  –  –  –  62  113  –  –  – 

Toronto  64,953  2014  –  –  –  2,333  40,778 –  –  –  10 –

Vancouver  12,500  Complete –  –  –  284  –  –  –  –  –  – 

THP2 Canada
Calgary (5)  20,500  2020  –  –  –  381  –  –  –  –  177  – 

Edmonton   7,500  Complete –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Toronto  47,280  2015  –  –  –  1,465  18,360  –  –  –  40  – 

THP3 Canada
Calgary (5)  40,000  2022  51  704  238 –  –  45  455  197  –  – 

Toronto  70,700  2019  –  –  –  620  –  –  –  11  20  – 

Vancouver  46,000  2017  –  –  –  472  56,295  –  –  8  109  – 

Less: Double Counted (4)   –  –  –  (938) –  –  –  (2)  (8) – 

Total    113 1,413  238 4,617  115,433  107  568 214  348  – 
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Table 23: Detailed Units Sold and Inventory by Investment/Market (continued)

US Investment Vehicles (excl. THP1 US) Total Units Units Remaining

     Single-  Multi-   Single-  Multi-
   $ Commitment (1) Est. Land Family Homes Family Retail Land Family Homes Family Retail
  (in thousands) Completion (acres) Lots (2) (3) (Units) Units (3) (sq. ft.) (acres) Lots (2) (3) (Units) Units (3) (sq. ft.)

Total THP2 US
Arizona $ 53,600  2019  112  4,235  1,060  –  –  112  4,235  1,003  –  – 

Southern 

 California   81,300  2016  –  1,332  315  72  –  –  1,332  104  72  – 

Northern 

 California  17,100  2017  –  –  60  52  –  –  –  60  52  – 

North Carolina  15,744  2020  12  129  1,058  –  –  12  129  1,058  –  – 

Texas  11,200  2018  61  –  –  780  –  61  –  –  780  – 

Georgia  13,300  2018  –  –  368  –  –  –  –  368  –  – 

Other (6)  –   N/A –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Separate Accounts/ 
 Side-Cars (7)

Arizona  4,950  2019  –  –  2,039  –  –  –  –  2,025  –  – 

Southern 

 California  8,600  2020  –  1,332  –  –  –  –  1,332  –  –  – 

North Carolina  4,330  2020  12  129  1,058  –  –  12  129  1,058  –  – 

Texas  27,475  2024  668  8,620  –  –  –  463  7,391  –  –  – 

Less: Double Counted (4)   (12)  (1,461)  (2,018) –  –  (12) (1,461) (2,004) –  – 

Total    853  14,316  3,940  904  –  648  13,087  3,672  904  –

US Investment Vehicles (excl. THP1 US) Total Units Sold Units Sold in 2014

     Single-  Multi-   Single-  Multi-
   $ Commitment (1) Est. Land Family Homes Family Retail Land Family Homes Family Retail
  (in thousands) Completion (acres) Lots (2) (3) (Units) Units (3) (sq. ft.) (acres) Lots (2) (3) (Units) Units (3) (sq. ft.)

Total THP2 US
Arizona $ 53,600  2019  –  – 57  –  –  –  –  38  –  – 

Southern 

 California   81,300  2016  –  – 211  – –  –  –  136  – – 

Northern 

 California  17,100  2017  –  –  –  – –  –  –  – – – 

North Carolina  15,744  2020  –  –  –  –  –  – –  – –  – 

Texas  11,200  2018  –  –  –  – –  – –  –  – – 

Georgia  13,300  2018  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Other (6)  –   N/A –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Separate Accounts/ 
 Side-Cars (7)

Arizona  4,950  2019  –  –  14  –  –  –  –  14  –  – 

Southern 

 California  8,600  2020  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

North Carolina  4,330  2020  –  –  – –  –  – –  –  –  – 

Texas  27,475  2024  205 1,229  –  –  –  134  641  –  –  – 

Less: Double Counted (4)   – –  (14) –  –  – – (14) –  – 

Total    205  1,229  268  – –  134 641  174 – –



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS for the year ended December 31, 2014

52 TRICON CAPITAL GROUP  2014 ANNUAL REPORT  

Table 23: Detailed Units Sold and Inventory by Investment/Market (continued)

THP1 US Total Units Units Remaining

     Single-  Multi-   Single-  Multi-
   $ Commitment (1) Est. Land Family Homes Family Retail Land Family Homes Family Retail
  (in thousands) Completion (acres) Lots (2) (3) (Units) Units (3) (sq. ft.) (acres) Lots (2) (3) (Units) Units (3) (sq. ft.)

San Francisco 

 Portfolio $ 62,320  2017  –  –  –  474 –  –  –  –  305  – 

Eskaton 

 Placerville  11,000  2017  –  66  60 –  –  –  66  7  –  – 

Greater East Bay 

 Portfolio  72,500  2018  –  1,201  310  –  –  –  990  29  –  – 

Atlanta Portfolio  33,700  2018  –  357  351  –  –  –  357  12  –  – 

Paseo Lindo  7,800  Complete –  –  141  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

SoCal Portfolio  46,100  2018  –  749  –  –  –  –  733  –  –  – 

Phoenix Lot 

 Portfolio  43,000  2017  –  1,452  –  –  –  –  1,110  –  –  – 

Woodstock  9,900  Complete –  –  –  69  8,998  –  –  –  –  – 

Williams Island  33,200  2015  –  –  653  –  –  –  –  1  –  – 

Total    –  3,825  1,515  543 8,998  –  3,256  49  305  – 

THP1 US Total Units Sold Units Sold in 2014

     Single-  Multi-   Single-  Multi-
   $ Commitment (1) Est. Land Family Homes Family Retail Land Family Homes Family Retail
  (in thousands) Completion (acres) Lots (2) (3) (Units) Units (3) (sq. ft.) (acres) Lots (2) (3) (Units) Units (3) (sq. ft.)

San Francisco 

 Portfolio $ 62,320  2017  –  –  –  169  –  –  –  –  88  – 

Eskaton 

 Placerville  11,000  2017  –  –  53  –  –  –  –  4  –  – 

Greater East Bay 

 Portfolio  72,500  2018  –  211  281  –  –  –  15  66  –  – 

Atlanta Portfolio  33,700  2018  –  –  339  –  –  –  27  71  –  – 

Paseo Lindo  7,800  Complete –  –  141  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

SoCal Portfolio  46,100  2018  –  16  –  –  –  –  – –  –  – 

Phoenix Lot 

 Portfolio  43,000  2017  –  342  –  –  –  –  – –  –  – 

Woodstock  9,900  Complete –  –  –  69  8,998  –  –  –  –  – 

Williams Island  33,200  2015  –  –  652  –  –  –  62  76  –  – 

Total    –  569  1,466  238  8,998  –  104  217  88  – 

(1) Amounts exclude additional amounts syndicated to third-party investors in certain circumstances.
(2) Lots include finished, partially finished and undeveloped lots.
(3) Includes lots/units which have not yet been released to the market.
(4) The double counting of the units that are shared between Funds or between a Fund and a side-car investment has been removed.
(5) Excludes option land which has not yet been closed upon and 122,500 square feet of office space.
(6) Represents the Fund’s equity investment in The New Home Company (NYSE: NWHM), a publicly-traded homebuilder with operations concentrated  

in California.
(7) Represents Tricon’s share of the commitment amount and not the full project level commitment.
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The following table details the financial performance by fund/investment:

Table 24: Summary of Private Funds Financial Data
(in thousands of dollars)

   Total Project Fund Capital Projected – December 31, 2014 (4)
  Actual and Projected Gross Cash Flow (7)

  Currency Capitalization (1) Commitments (2) Available (3) Gross ROI Gross IRR Net ROI (5) Net IRR (5) Net Cash Flow (6) Total Realized Unrealized

THP1 US (8) US $ 331,775  $ 320,520  $ –  2.3x 15% 1.8x 11% $ 306,377  $ 612,745  $ 152,812  $ 459,933
THP2 US (9) US   333,740    302,672    31,596  1.8x 25% N/A N/A   193,240    435,095    16,720    418,375
Separate Accounts (10) US   340,425    340,425    – 2.7x 23% 2.3x 21%   552,278    885,463    88,587    796,876
Side-Cars (11) US   161,916    161,916    – 1.7x 23% 1.5x 20%   101,821    250,699    769    249,930
Total US  
 Investments  $ 1 ,167,856 $ 1 ,125,533 $ 31,596     $ 1,153,716 $ 2,184,002  $ 258,888  $ 1,925,114

THP1 Canada CA   101,124    102,997    – 2.1x 16% 1.6x 12%   91,559    176,080    111,064    65,016
THP2 Canada CA   85,362    91,757   – 2.1x 16% 1.6x 11%   79,733    157,536    36,672    120,864
THP3 Canada (9) CA   195,750    172,700    – 1.9x 15% 1.6x 10%   95,176    200,501    4,472    196,029
Syndicated 
 Investments (11) CA   45,476    45,476   – 2.2x 13% 2.0x 12%   45,482    83,235    7,212    76,023
Total Canadian  
 Investments  $ 427,712 $ 412,930 $ –     $ 311,950 $ 617,352  $ 159,420  $ 457,932

(1) Total capitalization is the aggregate of the amounts committed by third-party limited partners and the Company’s co-investment.
(2)  Fund commitments to projects include guarantees made under loan agreements plus reserves. Project commitments can exceed Fund Capitalization  

as a result of re-investment rights. 
(3) Capital available, after operating reserves and project contingencies, for new or supplemental investments. Project Commitments plus Fund Capital 

Available do not necessarily add up to Fund Capitalization.
(4) All amounts are based on actual current project commitments and do not include any assumptions for the balance of the funds’ capital, if any, to  

be invested.
(5) Net ROI and IRR are after all fund expenses (including Contractual and Performance Fees).
(6) Projected net cash flows are before fund expenses, management fees, general partner distributions and performance fees over the life of the fund.
(7) Actual and projected gross cash flows over the life of the fund.
(8) Performance Fees are generated on the $105.0 million third-party capitalization only.
(9) No projections have been made in respect of fund capital not committed to projects.
(10) Note that Separate Accounts show only third-party commitments and cash flow amounts.
(11) Syndicated investments shown are for currently active projects which have future cash flows and are for third-party commitments only.
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The following table shows THP1 US detailed cash flow distribution by project and to Tricon since Tricon’s acquisition of a controlling interest  
in August 2013. 

Table 25: THP1 US Asset Overview
(in thousands of US dollars)

     Gross Cash Flow Distributed (1)

Project  State Type   2014  2013  Total

San Francisco Portfolio  California  Multi-Family   $ 20,250  $ –   $ 20,250

Eskaton Placerville  California  Land / Homebuilding   –    –     – 

Greater East Bay Portfolio  California  Land / Homebuilding   7,900    –    7,900

Atlanta Portfolio  Georgia  Land / Homebuilding    7,200    5,600    12,800 

Paseo Lindo  Arizona  Homebuilding   3,249    2,831   6,080 

SoCal Portfolio  California  Land / Homebuilding   –    6,491      6,491 

Phoenix Lot Portfolio  Arizona  Land    2,281    8,460    10,741 

Woodstock  Georgia  Multi-Family     –    133       133 

Williams Island  Florida  Land / Homebuilding    39,138    7,186    46,324 

Total      $ 80,018  $ 30,701  $ 110,719 
Reserve (to be distributed)      (7,486)     –   (7,486) 

Distribution of Excess Cash      5,061   5,686      10,747 

Operating Expenses and Management Fee Payment    (3,821)   (4,586)   (8,407)

Total Cash Distributed     $ 73,772 $ 31,801  $ 105,373 

Total TCN Share (68.4%)     $ 50,452  $ 21,736  $ 72,188 

     Gross Cash Flow Distributed (1)

Project  State Type   Q4 2014  Q3 2014  Q2 2014  Q1 2014  Q4 2013  Q3 2013

San Francisco Portfolio  California  Multi-Family   $ 8,500 $ 11,053  $ 697  $ –  $ –   $ –

Eskaton Placerville  California  Land / Homebuilding    –  –     –     –    –     – 

Greater East Bay Portfolio  California  Land / Homebuilding   –  4,400    3,500    –    –    –

Atlanta Portfolio  Georgia  Land / Homebuilding    1,700  –    2,000     3,500    3,600    2,000 

Paseo Lindo  Arizona  Homebuilding   –  2,599    127    523    1,249    1,582 

SoCal Portfolio  California  Land / Homebuilding   –  –     –     –    6,491     – 

Phoenix Lot Portfolio  Arizona  Land     281  700    400    900    1,860    6,600 

Woodstock  Georgia  Multi-Family      –  –     –     –    –       133 

Williams Island  Florida  Land / Homebuilding    1,019  16,683    15,436    6,000    7,186    – 
Total      $ 11,500 $ 35,435  $ 22,160  $ 10,923  $ 20,386  $ 10,315 

Reserve (to be distributed)      –  –     –     (7,486)     –   – 

Distribution of Excess Cash       (48)  (1,378)   6,487    –   –      5,686 

Operating Expenses and Management Fee Payment    (952)  (965)   (967)   (937)   (4,586)   –

Total Cash Distributed     $ 10,500 $ 33,092  $ 27,680   $ 2,500  $ 15,800  $ 16,001 
Total TCN Share (68.4%)     $ 7,175 $ 22,635  $ 18,933  $ 1,709  $ 10,801  $ 10,935 

(1) Represents 100% of gross cash flow distributed from the projects.
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Tricon American Homes
The following TAH Balance Sheet is representative of the financial position of the entire portfolio and includes both Tricon’s ownership stake 
and non-controlling interest.

Table 26: Summary of Tricon American Homes Balance Sheet
(in thousands of dollars)

As at December 31 2014 2013 

    USD  CAD (1)  USD  CAD (1)

Inventory Homes (2) $ 5,248  $ 5,926  $ 17,154  $ 18,388 
Investment Properties – Cost   595,180    688,026   374,796    401,767 
Investment Properties – Fair Value Adjustment (3)   78,800    91,093    31,718    34,000 
Capital Assets   1,023    1,183   –     –  
Deferred Income Tax Assets   13,448    15,546     –     –  
Other Assets (4)   33,536    38,770     32,550    34,802 
Total Assets   727,235    840,544    456,218    488,957 
Current Liabilities   14,146    16,353    5,409    5,798 
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities  –      –     4,290    5,242 
Other Long-Term Liabilities (5)   104    120    101    108 
Bank Loans   320,544    370,548    137,630    147,534 
Total Liabilities   334,794    387,021    147,430    158,682 
Net Assets – Tricon American Homes $ 392,441  $ 453,523  $ 308,788  $ 330,275 
 Investments – Tricon American Homes $ 345,508  $ 399,269 $ 268,467  $ 287,053 
 Non-controlling interest $ 46,933  $ 54,254  $ 40,321  $ 43,222 

(1) Translation of TAH balance sheet items was calculated based on the average year-to-date foreign exchange rate.     
(2) Non-rental homes that are expected to be disposed in the near future. 
(3)  Represents the accumulative fair value adjustment since inception on investment properties of $85,260, reduced by imputed selling costs of $6,460  

(approximately 1% of investment portfolio).
(4) Other Assets represent working capital and income tax receivable balances.     
(5) Represents the preferred shares balance.     
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The following TAH Income statement is representative of the performance of the entire portfolio and includes both Tricon’s ownership stake 
and non-controlling interest.

Table 27: Tricon American Homes Income Statements 
(in thousands of dollars)

For the Three Months Ended December 31 2014 2013 

    USD  CAD  USD  CAD

Rental Revenue (1) $ 12,698  $ 14,420  $ 7,106  $ 7,467 
Property Taxes   1,585   1,800  827   868 
Repair and maintenance    1,825   2,072  789    828 
Property Management Fees   1,048   1,190  583    620 
Property Insurance   629   714  334    348 
HOA/Utilities   410   466  281    294 
Other Direct Expenses   101   115  125    131 
Rental Expenses   5,598   6,357  2,939    3,089 
TAH Net Operating Income (“TAHNOI”) $ 7,100  $ 8,063  $ 4,167  $ 4,378 

Gain from Sale of Homes $ 608  $ 690  $ 422  $ 442 
Asset Management Fees   (1,586)  (1,801)   (1,094)  (1,148)
Leasing Commissions (2)   (399)  (453)   (232)  (251)
General and Administration Expenses   (335)  (380)   (166)  (203)
Professional Fees   (372)  (422)   (97)  (91)
Other Operating Expenses   (30)  (34)   110   115 
TAH Operations LLC Income (3)   435   494   – –
TAH Net Income Before Fair Value Adjustments   5,421   6,157    3,110   3,242 
Fair Value Adjustment on Investment Properties    27,101   30,776    16,918   17,948
Fair Value Adjustment on Inventory Homes (5)    (333)  (378)   (379)  (401)
Imputed Performance Fees to Third Parties (4)    (8,156)  (9,262)   (640)  (680)
TAH Fair Value Adjustments   18,612   21,136    15,899   16,867 
TAH Net Income (“TAHNI”) $ 24,033   $ 27,293  $ 19,009   $ 20,109

(1) Includes bad debt expense of $680 (C$754 equivalent) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2014.
(2) In Q1 2014, TAHNOI was redefined and no longer includes the leasing commission expense.
(3) Includes fees revenue, reduced by salary and other overhead expenses incurred in TAH Operations LLC.
(4) Represents the change in the balance of the Imputed Performance Fees to third parties in the year/period.
(5) Includes reversal of prior periods’ write-up on homes sold in Q4 2014.
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Table 27: Tricon American Homes Income Statements (continued)
(in thousands of dollars)

For the Year Ended December 31 2014 2013 

    USD  CAD  USD  CAD

Rental Revenue (1) $ 44,377  $ 49,060  $ 21,595  $ 22,341 
Property Taxes   5,008   5,545    2,252   2,331 
Repair and maintenance    4,580   5,097    1,787   1,854 
Property Management Fees   3,218   3,560    1,754   1,814 
Property Insurance   2,002   2,205    1,087   1,115 
HOA/Utilities   1,255   1,391    890   919 
Other Direct Expenses   485   535    307   318 
Rental Expenses   16,548   18,333    8,077   8,351 
TAH Net Operating Income (“TAHNOI”) $ 27,829  $ 30,727  $ 13,518  $ 13,990 

Gain from Sale of Homes $ 1,324  $ 1,468  $ 2,018  $ 2,077 
Asset Management Fees   (5,921)  (6,543)   (3,409)  (3,524)
Leasing Commissions (2)   (1,754)  (1,934)   (698)  (721)
General and Administration Expenses   (1,105)  (1,219)   (410)  (435)
Professional Fees   (671)  (748)   (187)  (187)
Other Operating Expenses   19   16    (99)  (101)
TAH Operations LLC Income (3)   341   392    –     –   
TAH Net Income Before Fair Value Adjustments   20,062   22,159    10,733   11,099 
Fair Value Adjustment on Investment Properties   49,927   55,734    35,567   37,110
Fair Value Adjustment on Inventory Homes (5)    (1,544)  (1,719)   1,414   1,437 
Imputed Performance Fees to Third Parties (4)    (12,133)  (13,596)   (3,205)  (3,306) 
TAH Fair Value Adjustments   36,250   40,419    33,776   35,241 
TAH Net Income (“TAHNI”) $ 56,312  $ 62,578  $ 44,509  $ 46,340 

(1) Includes bad debt expense of $680 (CAD$754 equivalent) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2014.
(2) In Q1 2014, TAHNOI was redefined and no longer includes the leasing commission expense.
(3) Includes fees revenue, reduced by salary and other overhead expenses incurred in TAH Operations LLC.
(4) Represents the change in the balance of the Imputed Performance Fees to third parties in the year/period.
(5) Includes reversal of prior periods’ write-up on homes sold in Q4 2014.
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The following table reconciles Realized Investment Income – TAH as presented in this MD&A to Investment Income – TAH per the Financial 
Statements. 

Table 28: Tricon American Homes Reconciliation to Financial Statements
(in thousands of dollars)

For the Three Months Ended December 31 2014 2013 

    USD  CAD  USD  CAD

TAH Net Income Before Fair Value Adjustments $ 5,421  $ 6,157  $ 3,110  $ 3,242 
Corporate Level Expenses      
 Professional Fees   (29)  (33)   (134)  (143)
 General and Administration Expenses   (95)  (108)   (99)  (94)
 Salary and Benefits  – –   (55)  (42)
 Other expenses  – –   (7)  (6)
Non-controlling Interest Realized   (1,023)  (1,147)   (534)  (485)
Realized Investment Income – TAH   4,274   4,869    2,281   2,472 

TAH Fair Value Adjustments   18,612   21,136    15,899   16,867 
Imputed Selling Expenses – Housing Inventories   237   269   – – 
Prepaid Adjustments   129   146    – –
Non-controlling Interest Unrealized   (1,776)  (2,017)   (2,091)  (2,279)
Unrealized Investment Income – TAH   17,202   19,534    13,808   14,588 

Investment Income – TAH per MD&A   21,476   24,403    16,089   17,060 

Reconciling items to Financial Statements      
 Imputed Selling Expenses – Investment Properties   (526)  (597)   (817)  (808)
 Interest Expense   (2,312)  (2,640)   (1,052)  (1,131)
 Tax Recovery (Expense)  12,496  14,191    (3,729)  (4,660)
 Unrealized Foreign Exchange  –  12,992   –  8,470 
 Credit Facility Fees   (205)  (233)   (1,032)  (1,109)
 Non-recurring Integration Costs (1)   (1,639)  (1,861)  – – 
Investment Income – TAH per Financial Statements $ 29,290  $ 46,255  $ 9,459  $ 17,822

(1) Includes non-recurring termination expenses, contractor and software development expenses related to integration.
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Table 28: Tricon American Homes Reconciliation to Financial Statements (continued)
(in thousands of dollars)

For the Year Ended December 31 2014 2013 

    USD  CAD  USD  CAD

TAH Net Income Before Fair Value Adjustments $ 20,062  $ 22,159  $ 10,733  $ 11,099 
Corporate Level Expenses
 Professional Fees   (314)  (346)   (222)  (239)
 General and Administration Expenses   (406)  (448)   (259)  (266)
 Salary and Benefits   (243)  (266)   (214)  (223)
 Other expenses  – –   (17)  (17)
Non-controlling Interest Realized   (2,015)  (2,221)   (1,418)  (1,413)
Realized Investment Income – TAH   17,084   18,878    8,603   8,941 

TAH Fair Value Adjustments   36,250   40,419    33,776   35,241 
Imputed Selling Expenses – Housing Inventories   798   880   – –
Prepaid Adjustments   (991)  (1,075)  – – 
Non-controlling Interest Unrealized   (2,543)  (2,864)   (2,993)  (3,191)
Unrealized Investment Income – TAH   33,514   37,360    30,783   32,050 

Investment Income – TAH per MD&A   50,598   56,238    39,386   40,991 

Reconciling items to Financial Statements      
 Imputed Selling Expenses – Investment Properties   (2,354)  (2,589)   (5,009)  (5,159)
 Interest Expense   (9,218)  (10,189)   (2,233)  (2,333)
 Tax Recovery (Expense)   14,970   16,888    (4,290)  (5,317)
 Unrealized Foreign Exchange   –   29,092    –   14,094 
 Credit Facility Fees   (1,593)  (1,749)   (4,919)  (5,118)
 Non-recurring Integration Costs (1)   (1,854)  (2,095)  – –
Investment Income – TAH per Financial Statements $ 50,549  $ 85,596  $ 22,935  $ 37,158 

(1) Includes non-recurring termination expenses, contractor and software development expenses related to integration.
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The following table shows detailed TAH operational and financial data by market.

Table 29: Tricon American Homes Summary Statistics of Rental Portfolio
(in thousands of US dollars, except for Average Monthly Rent and Rent per Square Foot)

    Single-Family Vacant  Vacant Rental Occupancy
 Total Inventory Single-Family Rental Homes Homes Under Homes Under Portfolio (Homes Owned
Geography Homes Owned Homes Rental Homes Leased Marketing Rehab Occupancy Rate (1) 6+ Months)

Northern California 647  10  637 607 10  20 95%  94%
Southern California  318   5  313   271   11   31   87%  89%
Phoenix  398  –  398  369 10   19   93%  96%
Reno  251  –  251  233  9   9   93%  93%
Las Vegas  257  –   257  244  9  4   95%  93%
San Antonio  177  –   177  158   4   15   89%  89%
Houston  142  – 142  49 22  71   35% 92%
Tampa  342  –   342  231  50   61   68%  97%
Southeast Florida  620  – 620  501  7   112   81%  86%
Charlotte  1,079   19   1,060  918  24  118 87%  88%
Atlanta  799 5  794  612   95  87 77%  81%
Total/Weighted Average 5,030  39  4,991  4,193  251 547 84%  91%

    Average  Average Capital  
    Purchase Price  Expenditures  Average Size  Average  Rent per
Geography  per Home  per Home (2)  (square feet)  Monthly Rent (3)  Square Foot  Gross Yield (4)

Northern California $ 125 $ 20   1,267  $ 1,238   0.98  10%
Southern California  137   22   1,253    1,438    1.14    11%
Phoenix  114   12  1,980    975    0.49    9% 
Reno   151  15   1,551    1,254    0.81    9%
Las Vegas  133  16   1,597     1,095    0.69    9%
San Antonio   90  24  1,663    1,165    0.70    12%
Houston   117  10    1,828    1,402    0.77    13%
Tampa    78  26  1,351     1,242    0.92    14%
Southeast Florida  100  28    1,414    1,438    1.02   13%
Charlotte  54   22    1,323    890    0.67    13%
Atlanta  60   31    1,687    992   0.59    12%
Total/Weighted Average $ 94 $ 23   1,485  $ 1,139   0.77   12%

(1) Based on the number of Single-Family Rental Homes.     
(2) Represents actual capital expenditure or estimated capital expenditure per home (for unrenovated homes).     
(3) Represents average expected monthly rent on all homes.     
(4) Represents annualized average expected monthly rent per home as a percentage of average investment per home.     
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The following table shows detailed TAH historical operational and financial performance.

Table 30: Summary of Tricon American Homes Metrics 
(in thousands of US dollars)

As at December 31    2014  2013  2012

Total homes in portfolio     5,030    3,316    1,582 
Inventory Homes     39    60    78 
Single-family rental homes     4,991    3,256    1,504 
Homes leased     4,193    2,535    1,031 

Homes acquired during the year     1,714    421    981 

In-place Occupancy    84%  78%  69%
Occupancy (homes owned 6+ months)    91%  87%  95%

Average Gross Yield for the year    12%  12%  14%

NOI Margin for the year (1)    63%  63%  53%
TAH Net Operating Income for the year (1)   $ 27,829 $ 13,518 $ 1,399

Interest Expense for the year     9,218   2,233   69 

Investment Income – TAH for the year     17,084    8,603    1,396 
Investment Income – TAH Fair Value Adjustment for the year (2)     33,514    30,783    (78) 

Tricon Equity     273,550    237,106    141,087 
Partner Equity (minority interest)     29,471    34,817    11,922 
Borrowings     320,544    137,629    8,161 
Total Capitalization   $  623,565  $  409,552  $  161,170 

Capitalization (net of cash) (3)     598,468    381,139    155,051 

Fair Value Investment Properties (4)     680,440    410,620    138,579 
Fair Value Investment Properties (net of imputed selling costs)     673,980   406,514    138,579 

Fair Value Adjustment for the year (4)     49,927    35,567    257 
Cumulative Fair Value Adjustment (4)     85,260    35,824    257

Capital Expenditures for the year (5)     69,393    32,489    5,568 
Cumulative Capital Expenditures (5)     107,450    38,057    5,568

(1) Balances restated due to revision of Net Operating Income (“NOI”) definition in Q1 2014.      
(2) Represents the fair value adjustment after deducting imputed selling costs, potential performance fee payable to the rental operators  and fair value  

adjustment on inventory homes.
(3) Capitalization net of cash is used to purchase and renovate investment properties and fund working capital and other items.
(4) Represents the fair value before deducting imputed selling costs, which is approximately 1% of the total fair value; FVA is based on the Fair Value before 

imputed selling costs.
(5) Capex data from Q1 2013 and earlier are reasonable approximations.     
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Tricon Lifestyle Communities
The following TLC Balance Sheet is representative of the financial position of the entire portfolio and includes both Tricon’s ownership stake 
and non-controlling interest.

Table 31: Summary of Tricon Lifestyle Communities Balance Sheet
(in thousands of dollars)

As at December 31, 2014   USD  CAD (1)

Investment Properties   $ 14,205   $ 16,478 
Deferred Income Tax Assets    479    556 
Other Assets (2)    627    729 
Total Assets    15,311    17,763 
Current Liabilities    372    432 
Bank Loans    10,575    12,267 
Total Liabilities    10,947    12,699 
Net Assets – Tricon Lifestyle Communities  $ 4,364  $ 5,064 
 Investments – Tricon Lifestyle Communities  $ 4,245  $ 4,926 
 Non-controlling interest   $ 119  $ 138 

(1) Translation of TLC balance sheet items was calculated based on the average year-to-date foreign exchange rate.
(2) Other Assets represent working capital and income tax receivable balances.

The following TLC Income statement is representative of the performance of the entire portfolio and includes both Tricon’s ownership stake 
and non-controlling interest.

Table 32: Tricon Lifestyle Communities Income Statements
(in thousands of dollars)

For the Periods Ended December 31, 2014 Three Months Full Year (1)

   USD CAD  USD  CAD 

Rental Revenue $ 400  $ 454  $ 572  $ 641 
Property Taxes   30    34   37   42 
Property Insurance   7    8    10    11 
Repairs and Maintenance    16    18    29    32 
Utilities   52    59    69    78 
Property-level Management and Personnel    41    47    53    60 
Property Management Fees   15    17    21    24 
Rental Expenses   161    183    219    247 
TLC Net Operating Income (“TLCNOI”) (2) $ 239  $ 271  $ 353  $ 394 

Gain from Sale of Homes $ 3  $ 3  $ 4  $ 4 
Professional Fees   (9)   (10)   (12)   (13)
Asset Management Fees   (15)   (17)   (21)   (24)
General and Administration Expenses (2)   (63)   (72)   (84)   (95)
TLC Net Income Before Fair Value Adjustments   155    175    240    266 
TLC Net Income (“TLCNI”) $ 155  $ 175  $ 240   $ 266 

(1) The annual financial results are from August 27, 2014 (the acquisition date) to December 31, 2014.
(2) In Q4 2014, NOI was redefined and no longer includes General and Administration Expenses.
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The following table reconciles Realized Investment Income – TLC as presented in this MD&A to Investment Income – TLC per the  
Financial Statements. 

Table 33: Tricon Lifestyle Communities Reconciliation to Financial Statements
(in thousands of dollars)

For the Periods Ended December 31, 2014 Three Months Full Year (1)

   USD CAD  USD  CAD 

TLC Net Income Before Fair Value Adjustments $ 155  $ 175  $ 240  $ 266 
Corporate Level Expenses      
 General and Administration Expenses   24    27    (32)   (34)
Non-controlling Interest Realized   (10)   (11)   3    3 
Realized Investment Income – TLC   169    191    211    235 
Unrealized Investment Income – TLC (2)   (128)   (145)   (128)   (145)
Investment Income – TLC per MD&A   41    46    83    90 
Reconciling item to Financial Statements      
 Interest Expense   (111)   (127)   (156)   (176)
 Tax Recovery   543    617    736    827 
 Unrealized Foreign Exchange  –   171   –   270 
 Financing Costs (3)   (30)   (34)   (395)   (432)
 Non-recurring formation Costs (4)   (53)   (60)   (192)   (211)
Investment Income – TLC per Financial Statements $ 390  $ 613  $ 76  $ 368

(1) The annual financial results are from August 27, 2014 (the acquisition date) to December 31, 2014.
(2) Unrealized Investment Income is a result of an IFRS adjustment to prepaid assets, no impairment to the investment property.
(3) Non-recurring professional fees paid related to obtaining the debt facility.
(4) One-time professional fees related to formation of the joint venture.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PwC Tower, 18 York Street, Suite 2600, Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5J 0B2
T: +1 416 863 1133, F: +1 416 365 8215

“PwC” refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership.

March 11, 2015

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of
Tricon Capital Group Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tricon Capital Group Inc. and its
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013 and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes, which comprise a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts)

     December 31, 2014  December 31, 2013 

   Notes      

Assets
Cash      $  5,731  $  13,122
Amounts receivable      6,401   2,920
Prepaid expenses and deposits      1,372   416
Investments – Tricon Housing Partners  5,6     367,818   332,556
Investments – Tricon American Homes  5,6     399,269   287,053
Investments – Tricon Lifestyle Communities  5,6     4,926   –
Intangible assets  12     42,509   4,441
Deferred income tax assets  11     8,623   1,965
Other assets  13    882  470
Total assets     $  837,531  $  642,943

Liabilities
Amounts payable and accrued liabilities  9   $  21,235  $  13,663
Dividends payable  14     5,412   5,417
Long-term incentive plan  16     20,712   10,646
Debt   8     162,718   107,144
Deferred income tax liabilities   11     17,193   2,312
Derivative financial instruments  10     41,737   46,964
Total liabilities      269,007   186,146

Equity
Share capital  15     456,148   455,191
Contributed surplus      7,281   6,113
Accumulated other comprehensive loss      (176)   (38)
Retained earnings (deficit)      83,971   (4,469)
Total shareholders’ equity      547,224   456,797
Non-controlling interest  7     21,300   –
Total equity      568,524   456,797
Total liabilities and equity     $  837,531  $  642,943

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors

David Berman  Michael Knowlton  Duff Scott
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2014  December 31, 2013

   Notes    

Revenue
Contractual fees   $  26,971  $  15,139
General partner distributions     1,897   2,959
Performance fees     42   195
Interest income     122   1,302
     29,032   19,595

Investment income
Investment income – Tricon Housing Partners  5,6   72,197   34,482
Investment income – Tricon American Homes  5,6   85,596   37,158
Investment income – Tricon Lifestyle Communities  5,6   368   –
     158,161   71,640
     187,193   91,235

Expenses
Salaries and benefits expense    13,873   4,992
Annual incentive plan  16    5,206     5,236 
Long-term incentive plan  16   12,203    5,875 
Professional fees    2,566   1,624
Directors’ fees  17   444   333
Formation costs    70   –
General and administration expense   18  3,186   1,666
Interest expense      15,575    12,298 
Net change in fair value of derivative  10  (5,227)   5,680
Transaction costs    1,264    5,024 
Amortization expense     4,619   763
Realized and unrealized foreign exchange gain   377  (1,191)
    54,156  42,300
Income before non-controlling interest, income taxes   133,037   48,935 
Non-controlling interest change  7  (1,827)  –
Income before income taxes   131,210   48,935 
Income tax expense  11  20,807 12,862
Net income   $  110,403 $  36,073
Other comprehensive income
Cumulative translation reserve   (137)  (38)
Comprehensive income for the period   $  110,266  $   36,035 

Basic income per share  19 $  1.22  $  0.60
Diluted income per share   $  1.05  $  0.59

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding – Basic   90,821,117  60,534,679
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding – Diluted   109,756,765  61,372,589

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts)

     Accumulated 
     Other Retained Total Non-
    Contributed Comprehensive Earnings Shareholders’ controlling
   Share Capital  Surplus  Income  (Deficit) Equity Interest  Total Equity

   Notes

Balance at January 1, 2013  $ 164,614  $ 1,377  $ – $ (24,696) $ 141,295  $ – $ 141,295 

Net income   –  –    –    36,073    36,073    –   36,073

Cumulative translation  

 reserve   –    –    (38)  –    (38)  –  (38)

Non-controlling interest   –     –   –    –    –    –  –  

Dividends  14   955    –   –   (15,837)     (14,882)  –  (14,882)

Repurchase of  

 common shares  15   (57)  –    –    (9)      (66)  –  (66)

Issuance of common  

 shares, net of  

 issuance cost  

 of $7,927 15  289,679   –    –   –    289,679   –  289,679

Stock option expense  15,16  –     538   –   –    538   –  538

Phantom units 16  –    3,203   –   –   3,203   –  3,203

Deferred share units   –     995   –   –     995   –  995

Balance at December 31, 2013    455,191    6,113    (38)  (4,469)     456,797   –  456,797

             

Net income   –   –    –    110,403     110,403   1,827  112,230  

Cumulative translation  

 reserve   –    –      (138)  –    (138)  –  (138)

Non-controlling interest 7  –   –   –     –  –   19,473    19,473 

Dividends/Dividend  

 reinvestment plan 14,15   2,741   –   –   (21,720)   (18,979)  –   (18,979)

Repurchase of  

 common shares  15   (3,858)  (1,807)  –  –   (5,665)  –   (5,665)

Stock options  15,16   591    479   –   –     1,070   –  1,070

Phantom units 16   1,483    (1,526)  –     (243)   (286)  –  (286)

Deferred share units   –     4,022   –   –   4,022  –  4,022 

Balance at December 31, 2014  $ 456,148  $ 7,281  $ (176) $ 83,971 $ 547,224  $ 21,300  $ 568,524 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the Year Ended  December 31, 2014  December 31, 2013

   Notes    

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Net income   $ 110,403  $ 36,073 
Adjustments for non-cash items     
 Non-controlling interest 7   1,827    – 
 Amortization of intangibles and fixed assets   4,619   764 
 DSUP expense   4,099   92 
 Deferred income taxes  11  5,023   8,112 
 Long-term incentive plan   16  9,779   5,387 
 Annual incentive plan 16   1,673    3,078 
 Amortization of debenture discount and issue costs    5,635    12,056 
 Accrued investment income – Tricon Housing Partners 5,6   (72,197)   (34,482)
 Accrued investment income – Tricon American Homes 5,6   (85,596)   (37,158)
 Accrued investment income – Tricon Lifestyle Communities 5,6   (368)  – 
 Net change in fair value of derivative 10   (5,227)   5,680 
 Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss     3,310    (77)
Distributions to non-controlling interest    (2,431)   – 
Funding of investments    (66,737)   (367,906)
Distributions received    75,694    55,746 
      (10,494)  (312,635)
Changes in non-cash working capital items 25  1,119  (3,617)
      (9,375)   (316,252)
Investing activities
Investment in Johnson 7   (20,335)   – 
Purchase of office equipment, furniture and leasehold improvement 13   (277)   (397)
Placement fees 12  (273)   (2,671)
      (20,885)   (3,068)
Financing activities
Issuance (repurchase) of common shares 15   (5,624)   241,526 
Equity issuance cost 15   (15)   (14,425)
Issuance of debentures (net of issuance costs of $4,080) 8  –   81,920 
Proceeds from borrowing (net of financing costs) 8   47,478    4,254  
Dividends paid 14   (18,970)   (11,970)
       22,869    301,305 

Change in cash during the year    (7,391)   (18,015)
Cash – beginning of year    13,122    31,137 
Cash – end of year  $  5,731  $  13,122 

Supplementary information
Income taxes paid  $ 9,722  $ 3,026 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1. Nature of Business

Tricon Capital Group Inc. (“Tricon” or the “Company”) and its subsid-
iaries invest in the residential real estate sector for investment income 
and capital appreciation through its Principal Investment business 
segments and earn fee income through its Private Funds and Advisory 
business in the US and Canada. In the Principal Investment business, 
the Company primarily invests through its Tricon Housing Partners 
(formerly “Land and Homebuilding”), Tricon American Homes (for-
merly “Single-Family Rental”), and Tricon Lifestyle Communities 
(formerly “Manufactured Housing Communities”) business lines. In 
the Private Funds and Advisory business, the Company manages 
and originates investments through private commingled funds and 
separate investment accounts that participate in the development 
of real estate in North America, by providing equity-type financing 
to developers. 
 Tricon was incorporated on June 16, 1997 under the Business 
Corporations Act (Ontario) and its head office is located at 1067 
Yonge Street, Toronto, Ontario, M4W 2L2. The Company is domiciled 
in Canada. Tricon became a public company on May 20, 2010 and its 
common shares are listed on the TSX (symbol: TCN). 
 These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue 
on March 10, 2015 by the Board of Directors of Tricon. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies 
applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going- 
concern basis and have been presented in Canadian dollars which 
is also the Company’s functional currency. All financial information 
has been rounded to the nearest thousands of dollars except when 
otherwise indicated.
 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(“IFRS”) under the historical cost convention except for (i) invest-
ments in Tricon Housing Partners, Tricon American Homes and Tricon 
Lifestyle Communities and (ii) derivative financial instruments, which 
are recorded at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).
 

The Company presents its consolidated balance sheet with its assets 
and liabilities in decreasing order of liquidity. The notes to the consoli-
dated financial statements provide information on the Company’s cur-
rent assets and current liabilities (Note 22). The Company believes this 
presentation is more relevant given the nature of the Company’s oper-
ations, which do not have a specifically identifiable operating cycle.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
Consolidation
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which 
the Company has control. The Company controls an entity when the 
Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its 
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns 
through its power over the entity. 
 The Company meets the definition of an investment entity and 
as such, investments in subsidiaries (other than those that provide 
investment-related services) are accounted for at FVTPL, rather than 
by consolidating them. All of the subsidiaries that provide investment-
related services, including the Company’s Canadian and US asset 
management operating entities that earn contractual fees and per-
formance fees from private funds, continue to be consolidated. 
 The Company applies the acquisition method to account for busi-
ness combinations. The consideration for the acquisition of a subsid-
iary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to 
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by 
the Company. The consideration includes the fair value of any asset 
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. 
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business 
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisi-
tion date. 
 The Company recognizes any non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or 
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognized 
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The amounts attribut-
able to non-controlling interests are presented separately in the state-
ment of comprehensive income below net income, and are included 
in the equity section of the balance sheet.
 Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. 
 Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains  
or losses on transactions between the group of companies are  
eliminated. Amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to 
conform to the Company’s accounting policies. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements December 31, 2014 and 2013 

(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts and percentage amounts)
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Investments in associates
Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant 
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of 
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Associates that are held 
as part of the Company’s investment portfolio are carried on the bal-
ance sheet at fair value even though the Company may have signifi-
cant influence over those companies. This treatment is permitted by 
IAS 28, “Investment in Associates”, which allows investments that are 
held by the Company to be recognized and measured at FVTPL and 
accounted for in accordance with IAS 39 and IFRS 13, with changes 
in fair value recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in 
the period of the change. 

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s 
subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary eco-
nomic environment of the subsidiary (the functional currency). The 
consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, 
which is Tricon’s functional currency and the functional currency of 
its foreign operations, with the exception of the subsidiary related to 
the US asset management business, which is US dollars (effective Q4 
2013 when commercial operations commenced and the entity was no 
longer an extension of the parent).
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into Canadian dollars 
using exchange rates in effect at the date of the transaction. Monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated 
into Canadian dollars using the exchange rate in effect at the mea-
surement date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars using the his-
torical exchange rate. Gains and losses arising from foreign exchange 
are included in the statement of comprehensive income (loss).

Subsidiaries
For subsidiaries that are required to be consolidated, the results and 
financial position of those subsidiaries (none of which has the currency 
of a hyperinflationary economy) with a functional currency different 
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation 
currency as follows:
i) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date 

of the balance sheet;
ii) income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates. 

The Company uses monthly average exchange rates due to the 
volume of transactions each month; and

iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other compre-
hensive income. 

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a 
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity 
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are 
recognized in other comprehensive income.
 

 On disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the 
Company’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involv-
ing loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign opera-
tion) all exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of 
that operation attributable to the equity holders of the Company are 
reclassified from other comprehensive income to net income (loss).
 The consolidated subsidiaries and their respective functional  
currencies are as follows:

Name  Functional currency

Tricon Holdings Canada Inc.  US dollar
Tricon Housing Partners US II (Canada) GP Ltd. Canadian dollar
Tricon Capital GP Inc.  Canadian dollar
Tricon Housing Partners US II A Incentive LP US dollar
Tricon Housing Partners US II B/C Incentive LP US dollar
Tricon Holdings USA LLC US dollar
Tricon USA Inc.  US dollar
Tri Continental Capital IV Ltd.  Canadian dollar
Tri Continental Capital VI Ltd.  Canadian dollar
Tricon Housing Partners Canada GP Ltd. Canadian dollar
Tricon Housing Partners Canada II GP Ltd. Canadian dollar
CCR Texas Agent Inc. US dollar
Tricon JDC LLC US dollar

Office equipment and leasehold improvements
Furniture, office equipment, computer equipment and leasehold 
improvements are accounted for at cost less accumulated amortiza-
tion. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term (including reasonably assured renewal options). 
All other capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives, as follows:

 Furniture  3 years
 Office equipment 5 years
 Computer equipment 2 years
 Leasehold improvements 5 years

Estimated useful lives and residual values of capital assets are 
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each financial year-end. 

Placement fee and performance fee rights  
intangible assets
Placement fees represent costs incurred to secure investment man-
agement contracts. Performance fee rights represent costs incurred 
to obtain rights to receive future performance fees from certain 
funds. These are accounted for as intangible assets carried at cost 
less accumulated amortization. Amortization is recorded using the 
straight-line method and is based on the estimated useful lives of the 
associated funds, which is generally eight years.
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Johnson intangibles
The intangibles from Johnson represent the future management fees, 
development fees and commissions that Tricon expects to collect 
over the life of the projects that the Johnson Companies LP manages. 
They are amortized by project over the estimated periods that the 
projects expect to collect these fees, which is approximately seven 
years for the fees receivable and lot development fees receivable.
 The customer relationship intangible from Johnson represents the 
management fees, development fees and commissions that Tricon will 
collect from future projects. These are based on future projects which 
are a result of Johnson’s existing customer relationships, and as such 
are considered to be indefinite-life intangibles.

Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the 
excess of the consideration transferred over the Company’s interest 
in the net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contin-
gent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling 
interest in the acquiree. 
 For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a busi-
ness combination is allocated to a cash-generating unit as it is the 
lowest level within the Company at which the goodwill is monitored for 
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operat-
ing segment level.
 Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more 
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential 
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recov-
erable amount, which is the greater of value in use and the fair value 
less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognized immediately as 
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the car-
rying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recog-
nized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes 
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for 
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating 
units). Non-financial assets are reviewed for possible impairment or 
reversal of a previously recorded impairment at each reporting date.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and 
receivables, held-to-maturity financial assets and available-for-sale 
financial assets, as appropriate. The Company determines the clas-
sification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial 
assets are recognized initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in 
the case of financial assets not carried at FVTPL, directly attributable 
transaction costs.

 Transaction costs related to financial assets at FVTPL are expensed 
as incurred in the statement of comprehensive income. Subse- 
quent to initial recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are measured 
at fair value. 
 Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 
financial assets at FVTPL category are presented in the statement of 
comprehensive income within investment income.
 Financial assets are derecognized only when the contractual rights 
to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or the Company 
transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.
 The Company’s other financial assets carried at amortized cost 
consist of cash and cash equivalents and amounts receivable.
 Cash includes cash on hand and deposits held at call with banks. 
 Cash and amounts receivable are initially recognized at fair value 
and subsequently accounted for at amortized cost. Interest income 
is accounted for using the effective interest rate method.
 The Company assesses, at each financial position date, whether 
there is objective evidence that receivables are impaired. If there is 
objective evidence of impairment (such as significant financial dif-
ficulty of the obligor, breach of contract, or it becomes probable that 
the debtor will enter bankruptcy), the receivable is tested for impair-
ment. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between 
the account’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have 
not been incurred), discounted at the original effective interest rate 
(that is, the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The 
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. 
The amount of the loss is recognized in net income (loss).
 If in a subsequent period the amount of the impairment loss 
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recog-
nized impairment loss is reversed, to the extent that the carrying value 
of the receivable does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal 
date. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in 
net income (loss).

Financial liabilities
Liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabili-
ties at FVTPL or other liabilities, as appropriate.
 A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the 
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
 The Company’s financial liabilities consist of amounts payable  
and accruals, dividends payable, income tax payable, debentures 
interest payable, bank debt and debentures payable and derivative 
financial instruments. The Company’s financial liabilities are classified 
as other liabilities.
 Bank debt and debentures payable are initially recognized at fair 
value and subsequently accounted for at amortized cost. Interest 
expense is accounted for using the effective interest rate method.
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 The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the 
amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating 
the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash 
payments or receipts throughout the expected life of the financial 
instrument, or a shorter period where appropriate, to the net carrying 
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the 
effective interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows considering 
all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider 
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received 
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective 
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments, which are comprised of the conver-
sion and redemption options related to the convertible debentures, 
are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract 
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value with 
the resulting gain or loss reflected in net income (loss). Derivatives 
are valued using model calibration. Inputs to the valuation model 
are determined from observable market data wherever possible, 
including prices available from exchanges, over-the-counter markets 
and consensus pricing. Certain inputs may not be observable in the  
market directly, but can be determined from observable prices via 
model calibration procedures or estimated from historical data or 
other sources. 

Compound financial instruments
Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise 
convertible unsecured subordinate debentures that can be converted 
to share capital at the option of the holder. The Company may settle 
the conversion right in cash in lieu of common shares unless the 
holder has explicitly indicated that they do not wish to receive cash. 
The cash settlement amount depends on the weighted average trad-
ing price of the common shares of the Company. This settlement 
option requires the Company to record the conversion option as a 
financial liability at fair value at each reporting period, with changes in 
fair value recorded in net income (loss). 
 In addition, the debentures contain a redemption option, sub-
ject to several conditions, which allows the Company to redeem the 
debentures, in whole or in part, and the Company may settle the 
redemption option either in cash at par plus accrued and unpaid inter-
est or in common shares, with the number of common shares to be 
issued depending on the weighted average trading price of the com-
mon shares of the Company. The redemption option is recorded as a 
financial liability at fair value at each reporting period, with changes in 
fair value recorded in net income (loss).  
 The host liability component of a compound financial instrument 
is recognized initially at the fair value of a similar liability that does not 
have an equity conversion option. The conversion and redemption 
options are considered to be interrelated and therefore are treated  
as a single compound embedded derivative which is recognized  
at fair value. 

 Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated entirely  
to the host liability component. 

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported 
on the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. As 
of December 31, 2014, the Company does not have any assets or 
liabilities that are subject to an offsetting agreement.

Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of own-
ership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. 
Payments made under operating leases, net of any incentives 
received from the lessor, are recorded as an expense in net income 
(loss) on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Leases of 
assets where the Company has retained substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance 
leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the lower 
of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the 
minimum lease payments.

Share capital
Common shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly 
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a deduction, net 
of tax, from the proceeds.
 Where the Company purchases its equity share capital for cancel-
lation, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incre-
mental costs, is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s 
equity holders. 

Earnings (loss) per share
Basic
Basic earnings (loss) per share is determined using the weighted aver-
age number of shares outstanding including vested phantom units 
and deferred share units issued during the reporting period, taking into 
account on a retrospective basis any increases or decreases caused 
by share splits or reverse share splits occurring after the reporting 
period, but prior to the financial statements being authorized for issue.

Diluted
The Company considers the effects of stock compensation and con-
vertible debentures in calculating diluted earnings per share. Diluted 
earnings (loss) per share is calculated by adjusting net income (loss) 
and the weighted average number of shares based on the assump-
tion of the conversion of all potentially dilutive shares on a weighted 
average basis from the date the potential share compensation vests 
and from the conversion date of the debentures to the balance sheet 
date. The conversion date of the debenture units was assumed to be 
the later of the beginning of the reporting period and the closing date, 
in accordance with IAS 33.
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Dividends
Dividends are accrued when declared by Tricon’s Board of Directors. 

Current and deferred income taxes
Income tax (recovery) expense includes current and deferred income 
taxes. Income tax (recovery) expense is recognized in the statement 
of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognized 
directly in equity. Income taxes are calculated based on the enacted 
or substantively enacted rates in effect at the consolidated balance 
sheet date. Management evaluates uncertain tax positions subject 
to interpretation and establishes provisions as appropriate, based 
on expectations about future settlements, using the best estimate 
approach.
 The Company uses the liability method to recognize deferred 
income taxes on temporary differences arising between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred income 
tax assets are only recorded if it is probable that they will be realized. 
Enacted or substantively enacted rates in effect at the consolidated 
balance sheet date that are expected to apply when the deferred 
income tax asset is realized or the deferred tax liability is settled are 
used to calculate deferred income taxes. 
 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is 
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current 
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities 
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either 
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an 
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Investment income
Investment income includes gains and losses arising on the 
remeasurement of investments at FVTPL, including foreign exchange 
gains and losses. 

Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable from the provision of services in the ordinary course of 
the Company’s activities. The Company recognizes revenue when 
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that 
future economic benefits will be received and when specific criteria 
have been met, as described below. 
 Revenues comprise contractual fees and general partner 
distributions which are not contingent on the performance of the 
underlying funds as well as performance fees earned in respect of 
investment management services provided to investment funds 
managed by the Company. Contractual fees are recognized as 
services are performed and are based on a fixed percentage of 
each fund’s committed capital prior to the expiration of the fund’s 
investment period and based on invested capital following the 
expiration of the relevant investment period. The contractual fees 
also include the management and development fees earned by 
Johnson from its underlying projects. General partner distributions 
are recognized as services are performed.

 Performance fees are earned based on fixed percentages of the 
distributions of each fund in excess of predetermined thresholds as 
outlined by each limited partnership agreement. Performance fees are 
recognized when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and 
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company, 
which is generally subsequent to the return of all the original capital 
provided by investors plus a preferred rate of return as specified in 
the limited partnership agreement. Contractual fees and performance 
fees are earned through the Company’s fiduciary activities as an 
investment manager.

Compensation arrangements
Stock option plan
The Company accounts for its stock option plan by calculating the 
fair value of the options as of the grant date using a Black-Scholes 
option pricing model and observable market inputs. This fair value is 
recognized as compensation cost using the graded vesting method 
over the vesting period of the options.

Annual Incentive Plan (“AIP”)
The Board of Directors approved a new Compensation Incentive Plan 
in September 2013, consisting of an Annual Incentive Plan (“AIP”) 
and a Performance Fee-Related Bonus Plan known as the long-term 
incentive plan (“LTIP”). The plan was approved as of January 2013. 
 AIP is calculated based on 15%–20% of Adjusted Base EBITDA 
excluding Tricon Housing Partners US LP (“THP1 US”, formerly  
“Tricon IX”) investment income with the actual rate determined annu-
ally at the Board’s discretion. For 2014, the AIP was calculated as 
15% (2013 – 20%) of Adjusted Base EBITDA excluding THP1 US 
investment income. Unlike the previous plan where 100% of the 
annual bonus was awarded in cash, under this new plan, 60% of 
AIP compensation will be distributed as cash, and 40% in Deferred 
Share Units (“DSUs”) with a one-year vesting and expense period. 
Expenses incurred under the AIP are recognized in the period when 
services are provided. 

Long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”)
LTIP expense is generated from two sources: (i) 50% of the Company’s 
share of performance fees or carried interest from Tricon Housing 
Partners and (ii) 15%–20% of THP1 US investment income payable 
in DSUs which vest over a five-year period. The percentage for any 
year is the same as the AIP percentage. Amounts under the LTIP 
are allocated among the employees based on amounts defined in 
employment agreements. 
 For the LTIP generated from the Company’s share of performance 
fees or carried interest from Tricon Housing Partners, the Company 
estimates the LTIP liability by determining the fair value of the com-
pensation expenses at each reporting date based on the estimated 
obligation arising under the LTIP plan. Changes in the LTIP liability are 
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income (loss).  
 



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts and percentage amounts)

 TRICON CAPITAL GROUP  2014 ANNUAL REPORT 77

 For the LTIP generated from the Company’s investment income 
in THP1 US, as the deferred shares vest equally on the anniversary 
dates following the grant date over a five-year period, the compen-
sation expenses are recognized over a six-year period on a graded 
vesting basis. 

Directors’ fees – deferred share unit plan (“DSUP”)
On May 20, 2010, the Company established a DSUP. Under the DSUP, 
each independent director is entitled to elect to have any amount 
or percentage of their director fees contributed to the DSUP in lieu 
of cash payment. The number of DSUs is determined by dividing 
the amount of the elected fee by the market price of the Company’s 
shares on the grant date, which is the 15th day following the end of 
any fiscal quarter. The market price is defined as the five-day aver-
age of the closing price of the Company’s shares on the TSX ending 
on the last trading date immediately preceding the date as of which 
the market price is determined. All notional units vest as of the grant 
date. Additional DSUs are issued equivalent to the value of any cash 
dividends that would have been paid on the common shares.
 Notional units issued under the DSUP may only be redeemed by 
the independent director when such director no longer serves on the 
Board of Tricon. Redemptions will be paid out in cash. The directors 
elect the amount of fees that will be contributed to the DSUP upon 
commencement of their term as a member of the Board. Directors may 
change their election from fiscal quarter to fiscal quarter.
 The liability is fair valued at each reporting date based on the share 
price of the Company as at the reporting date and is recorded within 
current liabilities as there are no vesting requirements and payment 
takes place when a Board member resigns. 
 Upon the redemption of the DSUs, the Company shall pay to the 
independent director a lump sum cash payment equal to the num-
ber of DSUs to be redeemed multiplied by the market price of the 
Company’s common shares on the redemption date, net of appli-
cable deductions and withholdings. If an independent director ceases 
to be an eligible director, they may choose a redemption date by 
giving written notice to the Company, provided that such date is not 
prior to the tenth day following the release of the Company’s quar-
terly or annual results and is not later than eleven months following 
the cessation of the independent director being an eligible director. If 
written notice is not provided, the redemption date is deemed to be 
eleven months from the cessation of the independent director being 
an eligible director.

Operating segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the 
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker, who 
is the person or group that allocates resources to and assesses the 
performance of the operating segments of an entity. The Company 
has determined that its chief operating decision-makers are the chief 
executive officer (CEO) of the Company and its president.

3. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based 
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of 
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circum-
stances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the 
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom 
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that 
have a significant risk of causing material adjustments to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 
outlined below. Actual results could differ from these estimates and 
the differences may be material. 

Income taxes 
The determination of the Company’s income and other tax liabilities 
requires interpretation of complex laws and regulations often involving 
multiple jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in determining 
the Company’s consolidated income tax provision. There are many 
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination 
is uncertain. The Company recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax 
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be 
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the 
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the 
current tax and deferred tax provisions. Furthermore, deferred income 
tax balances are recorded using enacted or substantively enacted 
future income tax rates. Changes in enacted income tax rates are 
not within the control of management. However, any such changes in 
income tax rates may result in actual income tax amounts that may 
differ significantly from estimates recorded in deferred tax balances.

Fair value and impairment of financial instruments
Certain financial instruments are recorded in the Company’s 
consolidated balance sheet at values that are representative of or 
approximate fair value. The fair value of a financial instrument that 
is traded in active markets at each reporting date is determined by 
reference to its quoted market price or dealer price quotations. 
 The fair values of the Company’s investments in Tricon Housing 
Partners, Tricon American Homes, Tricon Lifestyle Communities, and 
separate accounts and side-car investments are determined using 
the valuation methodologies described in Note 6.
 The fair value of certain other financial instruments is determined 
using valuation techniques. By their nature, these valuation techniques 
require the use of assumptions that are mainly based on market 
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the 
underlying assumptions could materially impact the determination of 
the fair value of a financial instrument. Imprecision in determining fair 
value using valuation techniques may affect the investment income 
recognized in a particular period.
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 The Johnson Companies Limited Partnership (“Johnson”) acquisi-
tion, as described in Note 7, involved the use of estimates for deter-
mining the fair value of the intangible assets acquired, including the 
allocation of the consideration to the various different intangibles. 

Critical judgments in applying the Company’s 
accounting policies
Determination of investment entity 
In accordance with IFRS 10, an investment entity is an entity that: 
“obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of provid-
ing them with investment management services, commits to its inves-
tors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from 
capital appreciation, investment income (including rental income), or 
both, and measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all 
of its investments on a fair value basis.” In addition, IFRS 10 clarifies 
that an investment entity may earn fee income from the provision of 
investment-related services to external parties. 

Acquisition of Johnson and investment  
in Tricon Lifestyle Communities
IFRS 10 allows an entity to participate in investment-related ser-
vices and activities if the activities are undertaken to maximize the 
investment return (capital appreciation or investment income) from 
its investees and do not represent a separate substantial business 
activity or a separate substantial source of income to the invest-
ment entity. Based on the Company’s judgment, the income from 
the Johnson subsidiary does not represent a substantial source of 
income to Tricon; therefore, the Company continues to meet the 
definition of an investment entity. In determining whether the newly 
acquired interest in Johnson should be consolidated or measured at 
fair value, the Company assessed the nature of Johnson’s business. 
Johnson is a development management company which provides a 
range of services, including activities such as arranging, supervis-
ing, administering and coordinating the preparation of feasibility and 
other studies, preparing recommendations for the development of 
projects, and managing, arranging, supervising and coordinating the 
acquisition, design, construction, development, financing and plan-
ning necessary to develop projects. Johnson acts solely as an agent 
for property owners and does not assume responsibility or liability for 
work performed by third parties. Management has determined that 
Johnson is a service entity under IFRS 10 and therefore Tricon con-
solidates the Johnson Companies LP. The valuation of the intangible 
assets also involves the use of significant judgment in determining 
the relevant inputs and which valuation model to use, including the 
judgment to exclude taxes from the valuation model based on the 
fact that from a market participant perspective, Johnson is a flow-
through entity. 
 

 Similarly to Tricon American Homes, the Company raised capi-
tal to invest in US manufactured housing communities. The newly 
acquired Longhaven Estates is an investment under Tricon Lifestyle 
Communities, and is expected to generate rental revenue and capital 
appreciation. Based on the Company’s judgment, Tricon continues to 
meet the definition of an investment entity and will measure its invest-
ment in Tricon Lifestyle Communities by FVTPL.

Fair value
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is 
any objective evidence that a financial instrument is impaired. The 
assessment of impairment of a financial instrument requires signifi-
cant judgment, where management evaluates, among other factors, 
the duration and extent to which the carrying value or fair value of an 
investment is less than its cost, and the financial health, and short-
term business outlook of the investee.

Income taxes
Judgment is required in determining whether deferred income tax 
assets should be recognized on the consolidated balance sheets. 
Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that the 
Company believes it is probable that the assets can be recovered 
when future taxable profit will be available against which the tempo-
rary differences can be utilized. 

4. New Standards and Interpretations 
 Not Yet Adopted
 
IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” (“IFRS 9”), establishes principles 
for the reporting of financial assets and financial liabilities. The final 
version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 and includes (i) a third 
measurement category for financial assets (fair value through other 
comprehensive income); (ii) a single, forward-looking “expected loss” 
impairment model; and (iii) a mandatory effective date of annual peri-
ods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.
 IFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (“IFRS 15”), 
specifies how and when revenue should be recognized, in addition 
to requiring more informative and relevant disclosures. This standard 
supersedes IAS 18, “Revenue”, IAS 11, “Construction Contracts”, 
and a number of revenue-related interpretations. IFRS 15 must be 
applied for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, with early 
application permitted. 
 There are no other standards, interpretations or amendments  
to existing standards that are not yet effective that are expected to 
have a material impact on the Company. The Company is currently 
reviewing these new standards to assess the impact they may have 
upon adoption.
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5. Investments 

Investments – Tricon Housing Partners are co-investments in funds 
and separate accounts and side-car investments managed by the 
Company. During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company 
made three new investments: in Corona, California; Charlotte, North 
Carolina; and Phoenix, Arizona. 

Investments – Tricon American Homes are investments in US single-
family rental homes. The investments are managed through an inte-
grated business platform responsible for the acquisition, renovation, 
and leasing of the homes. 

Investments – Tricon Lifestyle Communities are investments in US 
manufactured housing communities that lease land to owners of pre-
fabricated homes. 

The Company makes these investments via loan advances and equity 
investments. The following is a summary of the composition of the 
Company’s investments: 

   Internal debt  Total
December 31, 2014 instruments Equity investment

Investments –  
 Tricon Housing Partners
  Canadian funds $ –   $ 12,952  $ 12,952 
  US funds  –   315,364    315,364 
  Separate accounts and
   side-car Investments   16,080    23,422    39,502 
      16,080   351,738    367,818 
Investments – 
 Tricon American Homes  –  399,269   399,269 
Investments – 
 Tricon Lifestyle Communities  –    4,926    4,926 
Total   $ 16,080  $ 755,933  $ 772,013 

   Internal debt  Total
December 31, 2013 instruments Equity investment

Investments –  
 Tricon Housing Partners
  Canadian funds $ – $  6,670  $  6,670 
  US funds     293,052    293,052 
  Separate accounts and
   side-car Investments   17,464    15,370    32,834 
       17,464   315,092    332,556  
Investments – 
 Tricon American Homes  194,325   92,728   287,053 
Investments – 
 Tricon Lifestyle Communities –   –  – 
Total   $ 211,789 $ 407,820 $ 619,609

The underlying loan instruments within the Company’s Tricon 
American Homes and Tricon Housing Partners investments are 
denominated in US dollars and bear interest at rates between 9.45% 
and 11.95%, compounded monthly.
 The investment income for the year ended December 31, 2014 
from Tricon Housing Partners, Tricon American Homes and Tricon 
Lifestyle Communities includes unrealized foreign exchange gains 
from the appreciation of the US dollar (1.16 as of December 31, 2014, 
and 1.064 as of December 31, 2013). 
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The following tables summarize the balances in the investment funds that are managed by Tricon:

As at December 31, 2014 (1)   Unfunded   Investment at 
Investment Currency Tricon commitment commitment Advances Distributions fair value (2)

THP1 US (“Tricon IX”) (3) US  $ 226,775   $ 19,120   $ 272,970   $ 72,188   $ 296,269 
THP2 US (“Tricon XI”) US   25,000    13,612    11,388    –      19,097 
Cross Creek Ranch US   14,400    1,916    12,484    11,665    11,374 
Camp Strake US   8,075    1,555    6,520    3,029    7,073 
Fulshear Farms US   5,000    1,845    3,155    514    3,688 
Vistancia West US   4,950    2,275    2,675    1,057    3,454 
Lake Norman US   4,330    3,195    1,135    434    1,346 
Arantine Hills US   8,600    2,093    6,507    399    7,548 
Tegavah US   10,350    6,258    4,092    1,035    5,017 
Total US    307,480    51,869    320,926    90,321    354,866 
THP3 Canada (“Tricon XII”) CA   20,000    9,107    10,893   –      12,952 
Total CA    20,000    9,107    10,893    –      12,952 
      
Total    $ 327,480   $ 60,976   $ 331,819   $ 90,321   $ 367,818

As at December 31, 2013 (1)   Unfunded   Investment at 
Investment Currency Tricon commitment commitment Advances Distributions fair value (2)

THP1 US (“Tricon IX”) (3) US $ 226,775  $ 19,120  $ 272,970  $ 21,736  $ 284,695 
THP2 US (“Tricon XI”) US   25,000    18,124    6,876    –      8,388 
Cross Creek Ranch US   14,400    1,916    12,484    7,743    13,036 
Camp Strake US   8,750    1,606    6,469    879    7,112 
Fulshear Farms US   5,000    1,845    3,155    247    3,356 
Vistancia West US   55,000    46,697    8,303    990    9,299 
Total US    334,925    89,308    310,257    31,595    325,886 
THP3 Canada (“Tricon XII”) CA   20,000    12,988    7,012    –      6,670 
Total CA    20,000    12,988    7,012    –      6,670 

Total    $ 354,925  $ 102,296  $ 317,269  $ 31,595  $ 332,556 

(1) All amounts shown in Fund or Separate Account currency noted.
(2) Investment at fair value column is in Canadian dollars and agrees with the balance sheet.
(3) US$226.8 million represents total fund commitment; purchase price of 68.4% interest was US$260.5 million.
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The controlled subsidiaries which are not consolidated by the Company include:  
 
   Principal
    place of  Country of  Ownership  Voting
Name Type business incorporation interest % rights %

Tricon Housing Partners US LP (formerly “Tricon IX LP”) Limited Partnership USA  USA  68%  68%
Tricon Housing Partners Canada III Co-Investment Inc.  
 (formerly “Tricon XII Co-Investment Inc.”) Holding Company Canada Canada 100% 100%
Tricon US Lender Inc.  
 (formerly “CCR Texas Lender Inc.”) Holding Company  USA  Canada  100%  100%
Tricon Lender II Inc.  
 (formerly “Vistancia West Lender Inc.”) Holding Company  USA  Canada  97%  100%
Tricon SF Home Rental Inc.  Holding Company  USA  Canada  100%  100%
Tricon American Homes LLC  Holding Company  USA  USA  100%  100%
Turnstone LA LP  Limited Partnership  USA  USA  97%  100%
Greater Phoenix SF Home Rental LP  Limited Partnership  USA  USA  97%  100%
Greater Sacramento SF Home Rental LP  Limited Partnership  USA  USA  97%  100%
McKinley SF Home Rental LP  Limited Partnership  USA  USA  97%  100%
Southeast Florida Rental Housing LP  Limited Partnership  USA  USA  70%  50%/100% (1)

29 McKinley SF Home Rental LP  Limited Partnership  USA  USA  97%  100%
SFRH Tampa LP  Limited Partnership  USA  USA  92%  100%
Castle Atlanta LP  Limited Partnership  USA  USA  100%  100%
TAH Operations LLC  Limited Partnership  USA  USA  58%  100%
TAH Asset Management LLC  Limited Partnership  USA  USA  58%  100%
TAH Property Holdings LP  Limited Partnership  USA  USA  100%  100%
Tricon Lifestyle Communities Inc. (formerly “Tricon 
 Manufactured Housing Communities Inc.”)  Holding Company  USA  Canada  100%  100%
Tricon Lifestyle Communities LLC (formerly “Tricon 
 Manufactured Housing Communities LLC”)  Holding Company  USA  USA  100%  100%
Tricon/COB Longhaven Phoenix LP  Limited Partnership  USA  USA  97%  100%

(1) 50% voting rights with respect to certain major decisions and 100% to the balance of the major decisions as outlined in the 
 limited partnership agreement.

The Company sponsors the credit facility for TAH. This credit facility is secured by the single-family rental homes and has no financial recourse 
to the Company. 
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6. Fair Value Estimation

In the fair value hierarchy, the level within which the fair value measurement is categorized is determined on the basis of the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement. For this purpose, the significance of the input is assessed against the fair value measurement. 
Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability. 
 The following describes the categories within the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 – Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

The following table provides information about financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on the balance sheet and categorized by 
level according to the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

December 31, 2014 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Recurring Measurements
Financial assets
Investments – Tricon Housing Partners        
 Canadian funds $ 12,952  $ – $ – $ 12,952 
 US funds   315,364   –  –   315,364 
 Separate accounts and side-car Investments   39,502   –  –   39,502 
     367,818   –  –   367,818 
Investments – Tricon American Homes   399,269     –  –    399,269
Investments – Tricon Lifestyle Communities   4,926   –   –   4,926 
     772,013  –   –  772,013
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments (Note 10)   41,737   –    41,737   –

December 31, 2013  Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3

Recurring Measurements
Financial assets
Investments – Tricon Housing Partners        
 Canadian funds $ 6,670  $ – $  –  $ 6,670 
 US funds   293,052   –  –   293,052 
 Separate accounts and side-car Investments   32,834   –  –   32,834 
     332,556   –  –   332,556 
Investments – Tricon American Homes   287,053   –  –   287,053 
Investments – Tricon Lifestyle Communities  –  –  –  –
     619,609  –   –  619,609 

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments (Note 10)   46,964   –    46,964   –   

There have been no transfers between levels for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.
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Financial assets
Valuation methodologies
The Company’s valuation committee is responsible for determining 
fair value measurements included in the financial statements, includ-
ing Level 3 measurements, with the exception of the valuation of 
derivative financial instruments, which is performed by an indepen-
dent valuation firm. The valuation processes and results are reviewed 
and approved by the Valuation Committee at least once every quarter, 
in line with the Company’s quarterly reporting dates. Valuation results 
are discussed with the Audit Committee as part of its quarterly review 
of the Company’s financial statements.
 The Company used the following techniques to determine the fair 
value measurements included in the financial statements categorized 
in Level 3:

Investments – Tricon Housing Partners
Tricon establishes wholly-owned subsidiaries that invest in the limited 
partnerships as an LP. The investments are measured at fair value as 
determined by the Company’s proportionate share of the fair value 
of each LP’s net assets at each measurement date. The fair values 
of each LP’s net assets are calculated by determining the fair values 
of the underlying projects using discounted cash flows, appraised 
values or share prices as reported on the appropriate stock exchange.
 In addition to the investments in LPs, the Company invests in 
separate accounts and side-car investments with other third parties. 
Tricon’s ownership interests in these investments are held through 
the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries. The investments are mea-
sured at fair value as determined by the waterfall distribution calcu-
lations specified in the relevant limited partnership agreement. The 
inputs into the waterfall distribution calculations include the fair value 
of the land and working capital held by the limited partnerships. The 
fair value of the land is based on appraisals prepared by an external 
third-party valuator or on internal valuations. 
 A side-car is a co-investment vehicle under common sponsorship 
with a Tricon fund. Tricon’s ownership interests in the side-car are 
held through the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries. The side-car 
generally participates in larger investment opportunities provided by 
the fund sponsor or general partner. The measurement and valuation 
methodologies for side-cars are the same as the limited partnership 
investments. 

 Quantitative information about fair value measurements of  
the investments uses the following significant unobservable inputs 
(Level 3):

  Valuation Significant 
Description technique(s) unobservable input

Debt investments Discounted cash flow a) Discount rate (1)

   b) Future cash flow
Equity investments 
Land and 
Homebuilding Net asset value a) Discount rate (2)

   b) Future cash flow
   c) Control premium/ 
    discount, if any (3)

Separate accounts Waterfall  Appraised value (4)

and side-car  distribution
investments model

(1) The range of discount rates in the discounted cash flow model was from  
10% to 12%.

(2) The range of discount rates in the discounted cash flow model was  
from 10% to 20%. Generally, an increase in future cash flow will result in 
an increase to the fair value of debt investments and fund equity invest-
ments. An increase in the discount rate will result in a decrease in fair 
value of the debt instruments and fund equity investments. The same  
percentage change in the discount rate will result in a greater change in 
fair value than the same absolute percentage change in future cash flow.

(3) As at December 31, 2014, there were no equity investments with  
Control Premium/Discounts, and only the THP1 US Co-Investment  
had a Control Premium.

(4) The Company obtained external valuations for four separate account 
equity investments for December 31, 2014 totaling $13,362. The invest-
ment team and finance team verified all major inputs to the valuation and 
reviewed the results with the independent valuator. For the remaining 
separate account investments totaling $10,060, the Company deter-
mined that the fair value approximates acquisition price since the proper-
ties were purchased close to year-end. The significant input within the 
appraised value is the value of land per acre.

Sensitivity
The effects on Investments – Tricon Housing Partners of a 1% change 
in the discount rates are as follows:

  December 31, 2014  December 31, 2013
  1% increase  1% decrease  1% increase  1% decrease

Canadian funds $ (299)  $ 312 $ (175) $ 166 
US funds   (2,543)    2,611  (2,373)   2,438 
Separate accounts and 
 side-car investments (386)    401  (687)   714 
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Investments – TAH
All of the Company’s investments in Investments – TAH limited part-
nerships are held through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Tricon SF 
Home Rental Inc., and are recorded at fair value. The fair value of the 
Company’s investment in Tricon SF Home Rental Inc. is calculated 
based on Tricon’s proportionate share of each entity’s fair value of 
net assets. The fair value of the net assets of the various entities is 
based on a sum-of-the-parts approach, where assets and liabilities 
are measured at fair value individually.
 Under the assumption that home values do not change materially 
in the short-term, and that the capital expenditures will not have a 
significant impact in the first three months of purchase, no valua-
tion is performed for homes purchased after September 30, 2014. 
As a result, these homes will be recorded at their purchase price plus 
cost of capital expenditures. The remaining homes were valued at 
November 30, 2014. Management has assessed whether any market 
changes have occurred subsequent to the date of valuation and has 
determined that values were valid at December 31, 2014. 
 The Broker Price Opinion (“BPO”) was used to determine the fair 
value of 53% of our investment in homes held before October 1, 2014. 
The homes were valued by independent brokers who hold active  
real estate licenses and have market experience in the locations  
and segments of the homes valued. The brokers value each home 
based on recent comparable sales and active comparable listings 
in the area, assuming the homes were all renovated to an average 
standard in their respective areas. The BPO retrieves information on 
the comparable properties from the Multiple Listing Service (“MLS”) 
public database. 
 The remaining 47% of the investment properties have been valued 
using the Automated Valuation Model (“AVM”). The AVM uses public 
records data or tax assessment data to compile large databases of 
real estate information in each geographic area. This data includes 
historical sales information, individual property characteristics and 
specifications for each of the properties in the database. The AVM 
calculates estimates of value using the sales information and property 
specifications. Periodically, the AVM estimates of value are updated 
using current sales information to reflect changes in market condi-
tions over time.
 In addition to the investment generating rental income, a small per-
centage of the inventory is held for resale. These are select proper-
ties purchased opportunistically specifically for the purpose of being 
renovated and sold within six months. All inventory homes are valued 
under the AVM method.

 The Company also takes into account the unrealized and real-
ized carried interest payable to local operating partners as general 
partners to the limited partnerships, in determining the fair value of 
its investment. The carried interest amounts are based on waterfall 
distribution calculations specified in the relevant limited partnership 
agreement with each local operator and may result in the payment of 
a performance fee to the general partner once limited partners receive 
their capital and preferred return. The fair value of external debt is 
based on a discounted cash flow model at a market rate that the lim-
ited partnerships would have obtained for similar financing. Deferred 
income taxes are based on the enacted tax rates for future years, 
with fair value determined by discounting to the reporting period. 
Working capital of the limited partnerships approximates fair value.

Sensitivity
Tricon American Homes’ debt facility operates on floating interest 
rate at the greater of (a) 4.1% or (b) 3-month LIBOR plus 3.6%. As 
a result, interest expenses will only be impacted when the 3-month 
LIBOR increases above 0.5%. The 3-month LIBOR has remained 
about 0.2% during 2014 (2013 – 0.3%). At December 31, 2014, if 
interest rates had been 10 basis points lower or higher, with all other 
variables held constant, the interest rate would remain at 4.1% as a 
result of the interest rate cap in place, and there would be no change 
in investment income – Tricon American Homes for 2014 or 2013.
 The inputs to the BPO include the characteristics of the prop-
erty being valued and recent prices for transactions involving similar 
properties in the same market. If the prices of single-family rental 
homes held by the TAH home limited partnerships were to increase 
or decrease by 1% (December 31, 2013 – 1%), the impact on invest-
ments – Tricon American Homes fair value would be $4,954 and 
($4,954), respectively (December 31, 2013 – $4,505 and ($4,505)). 

Investments – Tricon Lifestyle Communities (“TLC”)
In April 2014, the Company announced a new strategic initiative 
focused on acquiring and managing existing manufactured housing 
communities across the Unites States. On August 27, 2014, Tricon 
acquired the first manufactured housing community, Longhaven 
Estates (“Longhaven”) through Tricon Manufactured Housing 
Communities Inc. (Ontario), in which Tricon has a 97% ownership 
interest. This investment is held through wholly-owned subsidiaries 
that carry the investment at fair value. The fair value of the Company’s 
investment is estimated based on the Company’s proportionate share 
of the net assets of TLC limited partnership. The fair value of the net 
assets is based on a sum-of-the-parts approach, where assets and 
liabilities are measured at fair value individually.
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 The Company fair values the TLC asset using the discounted cash 
flows methodology. The fair value is determined based on, among  
other things, rental income from the current leases and assumptions 
about rental income from future leases such as increases in rental 
growth and occupancy, less future cash outflows in respect of such 
leases. Other factors included in the future cash flow estimate are 
the terminal value of the investment based on reliable estimates of 
the terminal year Net Operating Income (“NOI”), supported by the 
terms of existing leases and assumptions of future leases, and market 
capitalization rates of comparable precedent transactions near the 
balance sheet date. 
 Since all variables impacting fair value of the investment property, 
such as rental growth, expense inflation and the impact of capital 
expenditure, do not change significantly in the first 12 months after 
acquisition, the fair value will not be materially different from the acqui-
sition price. Therefore, at December 31, 2014, the fair value of TLC 
equals the acquisition price. Key variables are monitored on a quarterly 
basis to determine if there may be a material change in fair value.

Sensitivity
Since the rate of interest on borrowings made by Tricon Lifestyle 
Communities is fixed, investment income – Tricon Lifestyle Commu- 
nities for the year would not change due to interest rate fluctuation. 

Continuity of investments
The following presents the movement in Level 3 instruments for the 
years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

    December 31, 2014  December 31, 2013

Opening balance $ 619,609  $ 172,934 
Acquisitions   66,737    426,588 
Distributions/sales   (75,694)   (51,553) 
Investment income   158,161   71,640
Deferred tax adjustment for TAH   3,200    – 
Ending balance $ 772,013  $ 619,609 

The Level 3 instruments are made up as follows:

   December 31, 2014  December 31, 2013

Investments – 
 Tricon Housing Partners $ 367,818 $ 332,556 
Investments – 
 Tricon American Homes  399,269  287,053 
Investments – 
 Tricon Lifestyle Communities  4,926  – 
Ending balance $ 772,013 $ 619,609

The investment income includes an unrealized gain of $98,098  
(2013 – $27,674) resulting from foreign exchange movements and fair 
value increases in investments. 

Financial liabilities
Valuation methodologies
Derivative financial instruments are valued using model calibration. 
Inputs to the valuation model are determined from observable market 
data wherever possible, including prices available from exchanges 
and consensus pricing. Certain inputs may not be observable in the 
market directly, but can be determined from observable prices via 
model calibration procedures or estimated from historical data or 
other sources. 
 Quantitative information about fair value measurements using  
significant unobservable inputs (Level 2) is as follows:

   December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

   2012 2013 2012 2013
   Debenture Debenture Debenture Debenture

Risk-free rate (1) 1.52% 1.81% 1.89% 2.57%
Credit spread (2) 5.73% 5.99% 14.97% 6.31%
Stock price (3) $ 8.72  $ 8.72  $ 7.71  $ 7.71 
Implied volatility (4) 29.96% 29.91% – –
Historical volatility (5) – – 35.19% 35.19%
Dividend yield (6) 2.72% 3.05% 3.23% 3.57%

(1) Risk-free rates were from the CAD swap curves matching the terms  
to maturity of the debentures.

(2) Credit spreads were imputed from the traded price.
(3) Closing price of the stock as of the valuation date.
(4) Implied volatility was computed from the trading volatility of the 

Company’s stock.
(5) Historical volatility was computed from the historical trading volatility  

of the Company’s stock. 
(6) Dividend yields were from the forecast dividend yields matching the  

terms to maturity of the debentures.

Cash, amounts receivable, amounts payable and accruals, dividends 
payable, interest payable, bank debt and debentures payable are 
measured at amortized cost, since their carrying values are a reason-
able approximation of fair value due to their short-term nature. 
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7. Johnson Companies LP (“Johnson”) 
 Acquisition and Valuation

On April 15, 2014, the Company completed the acquisition of a 50.1% 
interest of Johnson, for consideration of US$18.5 million. Under  
IFRS 3, “Business Combinations” and IFRS 10, “Consolidated 
Financial Statements”, the Company determined that it controls 
Johnson and its results are presented on a consolidated basis. 
 The following table summarizes the consideration paid for Johnson 
and the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed  
recognized at the acquisition date in both USD and CAD, using the 
April 15, 2014 noon exchange rate of 1.0981.

Consideration USD CAD

Cash  $ 18,518  $ 20,335 
Total consideration  18,518   20,335 
Non-controlling interest in Johnson  18,444   20,254 
     36,962   40,589 

Recognized amounts of identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed
Percentage ownership  50.1%  50.1%
Amount to allocate  36,962    40,589 

Cash   437    480 
Amounts receivable and other assets  1,384    1,520 
Prepaid expenses  42    46 
Fixed assets  83    91 
Intangible assets  36,380    39,950 
Amounts payable and accrued expenses  (1,214)   (1,333)
Non-controlling interest share of net income (366)   (402)
Total identifiable net assets  36,746    40,352 
Goodwill  216    237 
Total consideration $ 36,962  $ 40,589

The fair value of the intangible assets consisted of three components: 
(1) management fees intangible, (2) development fees intangible and 
(3) customer relationship intangible. The values were determined by an 
independent valuator using the Income Approach. The management 
fee and lot development fee intangible assets relate to contracts with 
limited useful lives, and therefore are amortized over the expected life 
of the projects from which the fees are earned. The customer relation-
ship intangible asset relates to expected future contracts with existing 
customers and is amortized over the assumed life of the asset.
 The total amount of goodwill that is expected to be deducted for 
tax purposes is US$216.
 The fair value of the amounts receivable at the acquisition 
date approximates the contractual amount of amounts receivable 
acquired. Management expects to collect all amounts receivable and 
as a result, no provision is recognized.

Non-controlling interest
The Non-Controlling Interest (“NCI”) represents the 49.9% partner-
ship interest of Johnson not held by the Company. The NCI is based 
on the NCI’s proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the 
acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the acquisition date of April 15, 
2014, and is adjusted at each reporting period to reflect Johnson’s 
proportionate share of earnings. The NCI balance at December 31, 
2014 was US$18,362 (CA$21,300). The book value approximates the 
fair value of the NCI. The NCI receives 49.9% of all distributions from 
the Johnson Companies LP that arise from its regular operations. 
 The income and expenses from Johnson for the period from  
April 15, 2014 to December 31, 2014 are included below. Had John- 
son been consolidated from January 1, 2014, the consolidated state-
ment of comprehensive income would show pro-forma revenue of 
US$12,631, and pro-forma net income of US$3,201.

    For the Period
    from April 15 to
     December 31, 2014

Contractual fees    $ 10,466 
Total revenue        10,466 
Salaries and benefits      3,402
General and administration expenses     357
Amortization       3,209 
Transaction costs      229 
Total expenses     7,197
Income before taxes      3,269 
Tax expense (1)        801 
Net income from Johnson   $ 2,468 
Net income attributable to shareholders     1,236 
Net income attributable to non-controlling interest    1,232 

(1) Tax expense includes franchise taxes that are split with Johnson.

Non-controlling interest reconciliation

Net income from Johnson    $ 2,468 
Tricon taxes      801
Net income from Johnson before taxes    3,269 
Non-controlling interest at 49.9%      1,631
Average FX rate for the period from April 15  
 to December 31, 2014       1.105 
Pre-adjustment NCI in CAD       1,802 
Cumulative FX adjustments      25 
NCI per statement of comprehensive income  $ 1,827 
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8. Debt

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Revolving term credit facility $ 54,293  $ 4,354 
Convertible debentures    108,425   102,790 
   $ 162,718 $ 107,144 

Revolving term credit facility 
On July 23, 2013, the Company entered into an amended and 
restated credit agreement with a syndicate of Canadian and US 
banks to provide a revolving term credit facility (the “Credit Facility”) 
not to exceed US$45,000 or the equivalent amount in Canadian dol-
lars. On April 29, 2014, the Company amended the Credit Facility 
increasing the total commitment to US$105,000 or the equivalent 
amount in Canadian dollars, and extending the term of the Credit 
Facility to April 29, 2018. The Company has provided a general secu-
rity agreement creating a first priority security interest on the assets 
of the Company. During the year ended December 31, 2014, the 
minimum balance drawn on the Credit Facility was US$4,000, and 
the maximum amount drawn was US$46,800.
 Advances under the Credit Facility are available by way of Prime, 
USBR and LIBOR loans as well as Banker’s Acceptances. The appli-
cable margin on advances is determined in reference to the senior 
funded debt-to-EBITDA ratio and is added to the applicable loan 
reference rate as follows: Prime and USBR loans range from 250  
to 300 basis points (“bps”) above the respective reference rate, 
LIBOR loans and Banker’s Acceptances range from 350 to 400 bps 
above the respective reference rate. Standby fees ranging from 87.5 
to 100 bps of the unutilized portion of the total commitment are pay-
able, with reference to funded debt-to-EBITDA ratio, on a quarterly 
basis. The credit facility total interest expense incurred for the year 
ended December 31, 2014 amounted to $1,826 (2013 – $342).
 The Credit Facility agreement requires the Company to main-
tain the following covenants: a funded debt-to-EBITDA ratio not to 
exceed 3.25:1; a minimum interest coverage ratio of 1.5:1; and a 
consolidated total funded debt-to-capital not to exceed 45%. As at 
December 31, 2014, the outstanding balance of the credit facility was 
US$46,800 (CA$54,293) and the Company was in compliance with 
the covenants of the Credit Facility.

Convertible debentures 
July 2012 issuance
The Company issued 51,750 units of  6.375% convertible debentures  
at one thousand dollars per unit for a principal value of $51,750 on 
July 30, 2012 (the “July 2012 Debentures”). The debentures mature 
on August 31, 2017 at their outstanding principal value or can be 
converted into common shares of the Company at the holder’s 
option at any time prior to the close of business on the earlier of 
maturity or redemption date at the conversion price of $6.00 or at a 
rate of 166.67 shares per one thousand dollars of debentures owned. 
The July 2012 Debentures were initially recorded on the consolidated 
balance sheets as debt of $51,750 less transaction costs of $2,751. 
In 2014, 75 units were converted for total debt of $51,675. In addition, 
the Company allocated $16,250 to the conversion and redemption 
feature on initial recognition, which was deducted from the principal 
balance and will be accreted to the principal amount of the debenture 
over its term. As at December 31, 2014, the outstanding principal 
amount is $51,675 (December 31, 2013 – $51,675).
 The Company may settle the conversion right in cash in lieu 
of common shares unless the holder has expressly indicated that 
they do not wish to receive cash. The amount of cash the Company 
will have to deliver to the holder is determined by multiplying the 
weighted average trading price of the common shares on TSX dur-
ing the prior 20 consecutive trading days by the number of common 
shares into which the elected amount would then be convertible. 
 The convertible debenture units outstanding are redeemable at 
the option of the Company on or after August 31, 2015 and prior to 
August 31, 2016 provided that the current market price of the com-
mon shares on the TSX on the date on which the notice of redemp-
tion is given is not less than 125% of the conversion price. On or after 
August 31, 2016 and prior to the maturity date, the Company may 
elect to redeem the outstanding debentures in whole or part at a price 
equal to the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest.
 The Company has the option to settle the redemption right by 
delivering the number of common shares determined by dividing 
the principal amount of the convertible debentures by 95% of the 
weighted average trading price of the common shares on the TSX 
during the 20 consecutive trading days ending five trading days pre-
ceding the date fixed for redemption. 
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February 2013 issuance
The Company issued 86,000 units of 5.6% convertible debentures 
at one thousand dollars per unit for a principal value of $86,000 on 
February 25, 2013 (the “February 2013 Debentures”). The deben-
tures mature on March 31, 2020 at their outstanding principal value 
or can be converted into shares at the holder’s option at any time 
prior to the close of business on the earlier of maturity or redemption 
date at the conversion price of $9.80 per share or at a rate of 102.04 
shares per one thousand dollars of debentures owned. The February 
2013 Debentures were initially recorded on the consolidated bal-
ance sheets as debt of $86,000 less costs of $3,539. In addition, 
the Company allocated $17,363 to the conversion and redemption 
feature on initial recognition, which was deducted from the principal 
balance and will be accreted to the principal amount of the debenture 
over its term. As at December 31, 2014, the outstanding principal 
amount was $86,000 (December 31, 2013 – $86,000).
 The Company may settle the conversion right in cash in lieu of 
common shares unless the holder has explicitly indicated that they do 
not wish to receive cash. The amount of cash the Company will have 

to deliver to the holder is determined by multiplying the trading price 
of the common shares on the date on which the conversion notice is 
given by the holder to the Company by the number of common shares 
into which the elected amount would then be convertible.
 The convertible debenture units outstanding from the February 
issuance are redeemable at the option of the Company on or after 
March 31, 2016 and prior to March 31, 2018 provided that the cur-
rent market price on the fifth trading day preceding the date on which 
notice of redemption is given is not less than 125% of the conversion 
price. On or after March 31, 2018 and prior to the maturity date, the 
Company may elect to redeem the outstanding debentures in whole 
or part at a price equal to the principal amount plus accrued and 
unpaid interest.
 The Company has an option to settle the redemption right by 
delivering the number of common shares determined by dividing the 
principal amount of the convertible debentures by 95% of the trading 
price on the fifth trading day preceding the date fixed for redemption 
or the maturity date. None of the convertible debentures have been 
converted as of December 31, 2014.

Debentures payable
The balances of the debt components of the convertible debentures recognized on the consolidated balance sheet were calculated as follows:

   July 2012 February 2013
December 31, 2014 Debenture Debenture Total

Face value outstanding  $  51,675  $  86,000  $  137,675 
Less: Transaction costs    (1,589)   (3,258)   (4,847)
Liability component on initial recognition    50,086    82,742    132,828 
Debentures discount (net of amortization)    (10,374)   (14,029)   (24,403)
Debentures payable  $  39,712  $  68,713  $  108,425 
      
   July 2012 February 2013
December 31, 2013 Debenture Debenture Total

Face value of convertible debentures issued  $  51,750  $  86,000  $  137,750 
Less: Debentures converted    (75)  –      (75)
Face value outstanding    51,675    86,000    137,675 
Less: Transaction costs (net of amortization)    (2,106)   (3,694)   (5,800)
Liability component on initial recognition    49,569    82,306    131,875 
Debentures discount (net of amortization)    (13,131)   (15,954)   (29,085)
Debentures payable  $  36,438  $  66,352 $  102,790

The above carrying values were recognized at amortized costs after discounting the future interest and principal payments using the effec-
tive interest rates. If the debt components of the debentures were recognized at fair value, then the balance appearing on the consolidated 
balance sheets would be $129,215 as of December 31, 2014 and $111,330 as of December 31, 2013. The difference between the amortized 
costs and implied fair value is a result of the effective interest rate versus market risk-free rate. 
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The face and weighted average interest rates are as follows:

     Debt amount

   Face Effective  As at
   interest rates interest rates Maturity dates December 31, 2014

Fixed Rate
July 2012 Debentures  6.375%   7.66%  2017 $ 39,712 
February 2013 Debentures   5.60%   6.46%  2020   68,713 
Total fixed rate debt  5.88%   6.90%     108,425 

Variable Rate
Revolving term credit facility   3.75%   3.75%  2018   54,293 
Total Debt  5.17%   5.85%   $  162,718 

The scheduled principal repayments and debt maturities are as follows:

   Revolving term Convertible
   credit facility Debentures Total

2015   $  –  $  –  $  – 
2016     –    –    – 
2017     –    51,675    51,675 
2018     54,293    –    54,293 
2019     –    –    –
2020 and thereafter    –   86,000  86,000
     54,293   137,675  191,968
Transaction costs (net of amortization)         (4,847)
Debenture discounts (net of amortization)        (24,403)
         $  162,718 

9. Amounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Payables and accruals consist of amounts payable and accruals, income taxes payable, and interest payable as follows:

December 31,    2014 2013
Accrued liabilities  $ 6,536  $ 8,818 
Income taxes payable   12,065  2,512 
Interest payable   2,634    2,333 
Total   $ 21,235 $ 13,663 
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10. Derivative Financial Instruments 

The conversion and redemption options of the convertible debentures are combined pursuant to IAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement”, and are measured at fair value at each reporting period using model calibration. The fair value of the derivative financial 
instruments was $41,737 (2013 – $46,964) as of December 31, 2014 resulting in a gain on the derivative financial instruments of $5,227  
(2013 – ($5,680) loss) for the year. Refer to Note 6 – Fair Value Estimation for details of quantitative information used as inputs in measuring 
the fair value of the conversion and redemption options.
   July 2012 February 2013
December 31, 2014 Debenture Debenture Total

Derivative financial instruments – beginning of period    $ 30,375  $  16,589  $  46,964 
Fair value changes (based on market price)    (3,937)   (1,290)   (5,227)
Derivative financial instruments – end of period    $ 26,438  $  15,299  $  41,737 
      
   July 2012 February 2013
December 31, 2013 Debenture Debenture Total

Derivative financial instruments – beginning of period    $ 23,921  $ – $  23,921 
Derivative instrument value of debentures issued    –   17,363    17,363 
Fair value changes (based on market price)     6,454    (774)  5,680  
Derivative financial instruments – end of period   $  30,375  $  16,589  $  46,964
 
The conversion and redemption options available within both series of convertible debentures are reported at fair value on a quarterly basis. 
As at December 31, 2014, the fair value of the embedded derivative payable decreased to $41,737 as a result of an increase in the price of the 
Company’s stock and decreases in term to maturity and volatility.

11. Income Taxes 

For the Year Ended December 31,    2014 2013
Current income tax     
 Current income tax expense on income for the year  $ (14,230) $ (4,693)
 Adjustments relating to prior years    (1,554)   (108)
      (15,784)  (4,801)
Deferred taxes     
 Origination and reversal of temporary differences    (5,023)  (8,056) 
 Adjustments relating to prior years    –  (5)
      (5,023)  (8,061)
Income tax expense  $ (20,807) $ (12,862)

The tax on the Company’s income before income taxes differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax 
rate applicable to income of the consolidated entities as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,    2014 2013
Income before income taxes  $ 131,210  $ 48,935
Combined statutory federal and provincial income tax rate   26.50%  26.50%
Expected income tax recovery (expense)    (34,771)   (12,968) 
Tax rate differential (foreign tax rates)    (741)  (726)
Tax effects of
 Permanent differences (1)    16,423   996
Adjustments relating to prior periods    (1,554)  (113)
Other     (164)  (51)
Income tax expense  $ (20,807) $ (12,862)

(1) Permanent differences for 2014 are comprised of the following: (a) unrealized foreign exchange gains on conversion of consolidated subsidiaries that file 
income tax returns on a US dollar basis; and (b) the non-taxable portion of the unrealized gain recognized on the investment in Tricon American Homes.
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The expected realization of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

December 31,    2014 2013

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months  $ 8,623  $ 917 
Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months   –    1,048 
Total deferred tax assets  $ 8,623 $ 1,965 
      
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities reversing after more than 12 months  $ 17,193  $ 1,651 
Deferred tax liabilities reversing within 12 months   –    661 
Total deferred tax liabilities  $ 17,193   $ 2,312
  
The movement of the deferred tax accounts was as follows: 

Difference between deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities:
Opening balance, January 1, 2014  $ (347)  $ 4,001 
Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income   (5,023)  (8,061) 
Other    (3,200)   3,713 
Closing balance, December 31, 2014  $ (8,570)   $ (347)
  
The tax effects of the significant components of temporary differences giving rise to the Company’s future income tax assets and liabilities 
were as follows:
   Long-term
   incentive Net
  Issuance plan operating 
   costs   accrual  losses  Investments  Debentures  Other   Total 

Deferred tax assets 
At January 1, 2013 $ 2,123  $ 2,649  $ –  $ – $ 948 $ (54)  $ 5,666 
Addition/(reversal)   2,312    172    394    (5,911)   (1,180)   512   (3,701)
At December 31, 2013  4,435    2,821    394   (5,911)   (232)   458   1,965
Addition/(reversal)   (1,430)    2,696    (293)   5,911   232  (458)   6,658
At December 31, 2014 $ 3,005  $ 5,517  $ 101 $ –  $ – $ –  $ 8,623 

   Long-term
   incentive Net   Deferred
  Issuance plan operating   placement 
   costs   accrual  losses  Investments  Debentures  fees Other  Total 

Deferred tax liabilities 
At January 1, 2013 $ –  $ – $ –  $ 960  $ – $ 706 $ – $ 1,666 
Addition/(reversal)  –    –  –    (35)    –   656  25   646
At December 31, 2013  –    –  –    925   –   1,362   25   2,312 
Reclassification  (4,435)    (2,821)  (394)    5,911   232   –  (91)   (1,598) 
Addition/(reversal)   4,435    2,821  394    8,609   111   (28)  137   16,479
At December 31, 2014 $ –  $ – $ –  $ 15,445 $ 343  $ 1,334 $ 71  $ 17,193 

Tricon believes it will have sufficient future revenue to realize the future tax assets.
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12. Intangible Assets

There were no impairments to placement fees and rights to performance fees in the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.  
The intangible assets are comprised as follows:

   December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Placement fees  $ 3,680  $ 4,030 
Rights to performance fees    330    411 
Customer relationship intangible    7,759   – 
Contractual development fees    30,740   – 
     $ 42,509  $ 4,441

      Customer
    Rights to Contractual relationship 
    Placement fees  performance fees development fees intangible Total

2014
Opening – January 1, 2014  $ 4,031  $  410  $  –    $  –    $  4,441 
Additions   273    –   34,445  7,759   42,477 
Amortization expense   (624)   (80)   (3,705)      –       (4,409)
December 31, 2014 $  3,680  $  330  $ 30,740    $  7,759    $  42,509 
         
December 31, 2014
Cost    12,306   707     34,445     7,759       55,217 
Accumulated amortization   (8,626)   (377)   (3,705)      –       (12,708)
December 31, 2014  $ 3,680  $ 330  $ 30,740    $  7,759    $ 42,509 
         
2013
Opening – January 1, 2013   1,950    491    –      –    2,441 
Additions   2,671    –    –   –    2,671 
Amortization expense   (590)   (81)  –  –      (671)
December 31, 2013 $  4,031  $  410  $  –  $  –   $  4,441 
         
Cost    12,033    707    –    –    12,740 
Accumulated amortization   (8,002)   (297)   –  –   (8,299)
December 31, 2013 $ 4,031  $ 410  $ –  $ –   $ 4,441 
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13. Other Assets

For the Year Ended December 31,    2014 2013

Office equipment  $ 288  $ 187
Leasehold improvements   343   283 
Goodwill   251    – 
    $ 882 $ 470 
      
There were no impairment charges in the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

14. Dividends

    Dividend amount per Common shares
Date of declaration Record date Payment date common share outstanding Dividend amount

2014
March 5, 2014 March 31, 2014 April 15, 2014 $ 0.06  90,513,609  $ 5,431 
May 12, 2014 June 30, 2014 July 15, 2014 $ 0.06  90,546,289  $ 5,433 
August 13, 2014 September 30, 2014 October 15, 2014 $ 0.06  90,734,794  $ 5,444 
November 11, 2014 December 31, 2014 January 15, 2015 $ 0.06  90,192,448  $ 5,412 
       $ 21,720 (1)

2013
March 12, 2013 March 31, 2013 April 15, 2013 $ 0.06  41,754,244  $ 2,505 
May 8, 2013 June 30, 2013 July 15, 2013 $ 0.06  41,768,705  $ 2,506 
August 13, 2013 September 30, 2013 October 15, 2013 $ 0.06  90,146,865  $ 5,409
November 12, 2013 December 31, 2013 January 15, 2014 $ 0.06  90,276,953  $ 5,417
       $ 15,837

(1) Total of $21,720 payment includes $18,979 in cash and $2,741 in DRIP.

On November 20, 2012, the Company implemented a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (“DRIP”) under which eligible shareholders of the Company 
may elect to have all or part of their cash dividend automatically reinvested into additional common shares. These additional shares are issued 
from treasury (or purchased on the open market) on the applicable dividend payment date and are priced at 95% of the average market price, 
calculated as the volume weighted trading price of the Company’s common shares on the TSX over the five business days immediately pre-
ceding the dividend payment date. If common shares are purchased in the open market, they are priced at the average weighted cost of the 
Company’s common shares on the TSX over the five business days following the dividend payment date.

Brokerage, commissions and service fees are not charged to shareholders for purchases or withdrawals of the Company’s shares under the 
DRIP, and all DRIP administrative costs are assumed by the Company.

As of December 31, 2014, 373,058 common shares were issued under the DRIP (143,616 in 2013) for a total amount of $2,741 ($955 in 2013). 
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15. Share Capital

Particulars   Number of shares issued Share capital

As at January 1, 2013    41,752,849 $ 164,614 

Shares issued under DRIP    143,616   955 
Conversion of debenture    12,500  75 
Bought deal offering (1)    39,272,500  233,599 
Private placement buyout (2)    9,106,388   56,005 
Normal course issuer bid (NCIB)     (10,900)   (57)
As at December 31, 2013    90,276,953 $ 455,191 

Shares issued under DRIP (3)    373,058 $ 2,741 
Stock options exercised (4)    84,276   591 
Shares issued for phantom units vested (5)   192,361   1,483
NCIB (6)     (734,200)   (3,858)
As at December 31, 2014    90,192,448 $ 456,148 

(1) On August 13, 2013, the Company issued 39,272,500 common shares under a bought deal agreement at $6.15 per share for gross proceeds of $241,526 
resulting in net proceeds from the offering of approximately $233,503. The net proceeds from the offering were primarily used to fund a portion of the  
acquisition of a 68.4% limited partnership interest in THP1 US. 

(2) On August 13, 2013, 9,106,388 common shares were issued to limited partners of THP1 US at $6.15 per share as partial consideration for their interest.
(3) On the 15th of the first month of each quarter, common shares were issued under the DRIP. For 2014, the total common shares issued was 373,058 at an  

average price of $7.35 per share.
(4) During 2014, a total of 84,276 shares were issued for stock options vested and exercised at an average price of $7.01 per share.
(5) During 2014, a total of 192,361 shares were issued for phantom units vested at an average price of $7.71 per share.
(6) During 2014, the Company acquired and cancelled a total of 734,200 common shares at an average cost of $5.25 for a reduction in Share Capital of $3,858. 

The average purchase price of the shares was $7.66. The difference between the cost and the purchase price was charged to contributed surplus.

The Company can issue an unlimited number of common shares and an unlimited number of redeemable and retractable Class A, B and C 
shares. The common shares of the Company do not have par value. 

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had 90,192,448 common shares outstanding (December 31, 2013 – 90,276,953).
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16. Compensation Arrangements

The breakdown of the annual incentive plan (“AIP”) and long-term 
incentive plan (“LTIP”) related to various compensation arrangements 
is as follows:
  
   December 31, 2014  December 31, 2013
For the Year Ended AIP LTIP AIP LTIP

Cash  $ 3,058  $ 8,036  $ 2,548  $ 749 
Phantom units   109  447    1,015    3,593 
Deferred share
 units (“DSUs”)   2,039    2,670    1,673    995 
Stock options  –   1,050   –   538 
Total compensation 
 expense $ 5,206  $ 12,203  $ 5,236  $ 5,875

The changes to transactions of the various cash-settled and equity-
settled arrangements during the year ended December 31, 2014 are 
detailed in the sections below.

Cash settled
AIP – For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company accrued 
$5,097 in relation to the AIP of which 60%, being $3,058, will be paid 
in cash in February 2015 and the balance paid in DSUs which will  
vest in one year from the grant date. 

LTIP – A liability for cash-settled LTIP awards is accrued based on 
expected performance fees that would be generated from the fair 
value of the assets within each fund or separate account but dis-
bursed only when such performance fees are earned and recognized  
as revenue. 

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company accrued 
$8,036 in LTIP expense relating to expected performance fees from 
commingled funds (excluding THP1 US) and separate accounts/ 
side-car investments that will be paid over pre-established vesting 
periods specific to each commingled fund or separate account/side-
car commencing on the anniversary date of the award. 

Phantom unit plan (“PUP”)  
AIP – For the year ended December 31, 2014, $109 of expense was 
recognized in relation to the phantom units granted in the first quarter 
of 2013. No additional phantom units were granted during the year 
ended December 31, 2014. On February 15 and March 15, 2014, 
161,540 phantom units granted in 2013 were exercised net of taxes 
required to be withheld under the terms of the PUP. 

LTIP – On August 13, 2013, as a result of the crystallization of perfor-
mance fees from the acquisition of the Company’s 68.4% interest in 
THP1 US limited partnership, 584,252 phantom units were granted on 
a fully vested basis and held in escrow to be released over three years 
on the anniversary date of the transaction. The Company estimated 
that 30% of the benefit value will be settled in cash to satisfy tax with-
holding requirements and accordingly this cash-settled component 
is fair valued at each reporting period and resulted in $447 expense 
for the year ended December 31, 2014. On August 13, 2014, 194,744 
phantom units were released and issued net of tax thereby reducing 
the outstanding phantom units to 389,508 as of December 31, 2014. 
The remaining vested phantom units will be released on August 13, 
2015 and 2016. 

Deferred share units 
AIP – For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company accrued 
$2,039 in AIP expense representing 40% of the 2014 AIP entitle- 
ment which will be granted in DSUs in February 2015 and will vest  
over one year. On February 14, 2014, 190,999 DSUs were granted  
at $7.90 per unit in settlement of the 2013 AIP entitlement. The fair  
value of the DSUs on the grant date was $1,509 and will vest on 
February 14, 2015. 

LTIP – For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company accrued 
$2,670 in LTIP expense relating to investment income from THP1 
US that will be paid in DSUs equally over a five-year vesting period 
commencing on the anniversary date of each grant. Compensation 
expense related to the grants is recognized on a graded vesting basis 
and for 2014 is comprised of $1,582 relating to the current year entitle-
ment and $988 relating to the 2013 entitlement. On February 14, 2014, 
405,850 DSUs were granted at $7.90 per unit under the 2013 DSU 
plan and will vest equally from 2015 to 2019. 

Stock option plan
The Company did not grant any stock options during the year ended 
December 31, 2014. During the year ended December 31, 2014, 
87,500 stock options expired and 352,500 options were exercised 
at various exercise prices between $4.16 and $7.74 per share. As of 
December 31, 2014, there were 2,101,500 stock options outstanding 
at an average exercise price per share of $6.45. 

AIP liability continuity
December 31,   2014   2013 

Opening balance – 
 beginning of period $ 5,276  $ 1,392 
Cash payments   (4,460)   (1,352)
AIP – cash accrual   3,058    2,532 
Phantom units   (1,015)   1,015 
AIP – DSUs   2,039    1,689 
Closing balance – end of period $ 4,898  $ 5,276
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AIP liability is shown included under the following balance sheet 
headings:

Balance sheet
December 31,   2014   2013 

Amounts payable and accruals $ 2,486  $ 4,588 
Contributed surplus  2,412    688 
   $ 4,898  $ 5,276 

LTIP liability continuity
December 31,   2014   2013 

Opening balance – 
 beginning of period $ 17,148  $ 11,371 
Cash payments  –   (85)
Cash settled  8,036    736 
Phantom units   (897)   3,593 
DSUs   2,527  995 
Stock options   480   538 
Closing balance – end of period $ 27,294  $ 17,148 

LTIP liability is shown included under the following balance sheet 
headings:

Balance sheet
December 31,   2014   2013 

LTIP   $ 20,713  $ 10,646 
Amounts payable   –    1,078 
Equity – contributed surplus    6,581    5,424 
Closing balance – end of period $ 27,294  $ 17,148 

Key management compensation
Key management includes directors and the Named Executive 
Officers (“NEO”) who are the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial 
Officer and the other top three executive officers of the Company. 
Compensation paid or payable to key management for employee ser-
vices is based on employment agreements and is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,  2014 2013

Salaries, benefits $ 1,681  $ 1,845 
Cash – AIP   1,250    1,286 
Total salary and benefits  2,931   3,131
Phantom Units – AIP   56    464
DSUs – AIP   871    857 
Total AIP  927   1,321
Phantom Units – LTIP   150    2,156
DSUs – LTIP   1,379    597 
Stock options  231   218
Estimated LTIP  4,137  335
Total LTIP $ 5,897  $ 3,306
Total key management 
 compensation $ 9,755  $ 7,758

17. Directors’ Fees

For the Year Ended December 31,  2014 2013

Directors’ fees – cash $ 278  $ 241 
Directors’ fees – mandatory DSUs   90    – 
Directors’ fees – optional DSUs  76  92
Total directors’ fees $ 444  $ 333

Cash 
Independent directors receive 50% of their annual retainer in cash 
and the expense is recognized in the period when service is provided.

Optional deferred share unit plan 
Directors can elect to receive DSUs in lieu of a cash payment 
(“Optional DSUs”). The Optional DSUs vest immediately on the  
grant date. 

Mandatory deferred share unit plan
Beginning in 2014, 50% of the retainer fees paid to directors are  
mandatorily settled in DSUs, which shall vest on the third anniversary 
of the date such DSUs are granted.

18. General and Administration

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013

Office expenses $ 1,026  $ 762 
Johnson   209    – 
U.S. office relocation   42    135 
Public company expenses   533    340 
Rent    245   154 
Travel    598   275 
IT system expenses   122   – 
Other    411      – 
    $ 3,186  $ 1,666 
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19. Income Per Share

Basic 
Basic income per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares outstanding and vested phantom units 
during the year. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013

Net income $ 110,403  $ 36,073 
 Weighted average number of common shares outstanding  90,523,330    60,377,812 
 Directors’ DSUs  25,132    – 
 Vested phantom units  272,655    156,867 
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for basic earnings per share  90,821,117    60,534,679 
Basic net income per share $ 1.22 $ 0.60 

Diluted
Diluted income per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of shares outstanding to assume conversion of  
all potential dilutive shares. The Company has four categories of potential dilutive shares: stock options, phantom units, deferred share unit 
plan (see Note 16) and the convertible debentures (see Note 8). For the stock compensation, a calculation was done to determine the number 
of shares that could have been acquired at fair value (determined using the market price of the Company’s shares as of December 31, 2014) 
based on the monetary value of the stock compensation arrangements. The number of shares calculated as described above is comparable 
to the number of shares that would have been issued assuming the execution of the stock compensation arrangements.

Stock compensation
As at December 31, 2014, the Company’s stock compensation plans resulted in 539,175 dilutive share units (December 31, 2013 – 837,910) 
as the exercise price of the potential share units is below the average market share price of $8.73 for the year. 

Convertible debentures
As of December 31, 2014, the Company’s convertible debentures are dilutive (December 31, 2013 – not dilutive) because the interest, net of 
tax, and the change in fair value of financial instruments through profit and loss per ordinary share obtainable on conversion, exceeds basic 
earnings per share. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013

Net income $ 110,403  $ 36,073 
Adjustment for convertible debenture interest expense   10,106   –
Changes in fair value for financial instruments through profit or loss (net of tax)   (5,228)   – 
Adjusted net income (loss)  115,281   36,073  
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding  90,821,117   60,534,679 
Adjustments for stock compensation and debentures  18,935,648   837,910 
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for diluted earnings per share   109,756,765    61,372,589 
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.05  $ 0.59
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20. Segmented Information 

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the CEO in making strategic decisions. The main seg-
ments of the Company are: Private Funds and Advisory; and Principal Investing in Tricon Housing Partners (“THP”), Tricon American Homes 
(“TAH”) and Tricon Lifestyle Communities (“TLC”). The Company evaluates segment performance based on net income less interest expense, 
amortization, and income taxes and adjustments for certain unrealized and non-recurring items.
 The segmented income statement information is as follows:

  Private funds   
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 and advisory  TAH THP TLC Corporate Total

Revenue $ 28,990  $ –  $ –  $ – $ 42  $ 29,032 
Investment income   –    85,596    72,197    368    –     158,161 
    28,990    85,596    72,197    368   42    187,193 
Expenses   22,973   39,242   16,137    463   (2,024)    76,790 
Net Income $  6,017  $ 46,354  $ 56,060  $ (95)  $ 2,066  $ 110,403 

  Private funds   
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 and advisory  TAH THP TLC Corporate Total

Revenue $ 19,400  $ –  $ –  $ – $ 195  $ 19,595 
Investment income   –    37,158    34,482    –    –     71,640 
    19,400    37,158    34,482    –   195    91,235 
Expenses   5,852   23,939    25,176    –   195    55,162 
Net Income $  13,548  $ 13,219  $ 9,306  $ –  $ –  $ 36,073 

The balance sheet statement information is as follows:

  Private funds   
December 31, 2014 and advisory  TAH THP TLC Corporate Total

Canada $ 13,370  $ –  $ 17,318  $ – $ 3,922  $ 34,610 
United States   42,921    399,269    355,805    4,926    –     802,921 
Total Assets $ 56,291  $ 399,269  $ 373,123  $ 4,926  $ 3,922  $ 837,531
Canada $ 30,868 $ 161,196  $ 8,217  $ – $ 20,710  $ 220,991 
United States   17,969    7,541    22,506    –   –    48,016 
Total Liabilities $  48,837  $ 168,737  $ 30,723  $ –  $ 20,710 $ 269,007 

  Private funds   
December 31, 2013 and advisory  TAH THP TLC Corporate Total

Canada $ 11,589  $ 3,621  $ 308  $ –  $ 7,972  $ 23,490 
United States   2,700    287,287    329,466    –   –    619,453 
Total Assets $ 14,289  $ 290,908  $ 329,774  $ –   $ 7,972  $ 642,943 
Canada $ 13,227  $ 156,441  $ 3,690  $ –  $ 10,771  $ 184,129 
United States   2,017    –   –   –   –    2,017 
Total Liabilities $ 15,244  $  156,441  $ 3,690  $  –  $  10,771  $ 186,146 
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21. Related Party Transactions and Balances 

The Company has a 10-year sub-lease commitment on the head office 
premises with Mandukwe Inc., a company owned and controlled by  
a current director of Tricon. During the year ended December 31, 
2014, the Company paid $105 in rental payments to Mandukwe, 
including maintenance and utility costs (2013 – $88).

Transactions with related parties
The following table summarizes revenue earned from related 
parties including consolidated subsidiaries. These are contractual 
arrangements from investment funds managed by the Company, 
of which the Company is the general partner of the investment. In 
addition, the table includes investment income from related entities 
fair valued by the Company. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013

Contractual fees $ 26,971 $ 15,139
General partner distributions  1,897  2,959 
Performance fees   42  195 
Interest income   122    1,302 
Total revenue $ 29,032  $ 19,595 

Investment income (loss) –  
 Tricon Housing Partners $ 72,197 $ 34,482 
Investment income (loss) –  
 Tricon American Homes  85,596  37,158
Investment income (loss) –  
 Tricon Lifestyle Communities   368    – 
Total investment income $ 158,161  $ 71,640 

Balances arising from transactions with related parties
The items set out below are not necessarily set out in the various line 
items comprising the Company’s financial statements. 

December 31, 2014 2013

Receivables from related parties  
 included in amounts receivable 
 Contractual fees receivable  
  from investment funds  
  managed $ 671 $ 523 
 Other receivables  850  804 
 Employee relocation  
  housing loans (1)  935  – 
Loan receivables from investment  
 in associates and joint ventures  16,080  17,464 
Loan receivables from investment  
 in non-consolidated subsidiaries (2) –  194,325 
Long-term incentive plan  
 (current and non-current portion) 20,713  10,646 
Annual Incentive Plan  5,206  4,222 
Phantom units – cash liability (3)  –  1,405 
Dividends payable to employees  
 and associated corporations   412  418 
Other payables to related parties  
 included in amounts payable  
 and accruals   249    491 

(1) The employee relocation housing loans are non-interest bearing for  
a term of 5 years.

(2) Reclassified to equity. The debt was restructured on October 1, 2014,  
and was transferred to equity.

(3)  Phantom units liability is reclassified in long-term incentive plan current 
and non-current portions.

Revenues and receivables from related parties relate to general 
partnership distributions and contractual and performance fees for 
services provided by the Company. The receivables are unsecured 
and non-interest bearing. There are no provisions recorded against 
receivables from related parties at December 31, 2014 (Decem- 
ber 31, 2013 – $nil).
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22. Financial Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to certain financial risks during 
or at the end of the reporting period as described below. The risk 
management function within the Company is carried out in respect 
of financial risks. Financial risks are risks arising from financial instru-
ments to which the Company is exposed during or at the end of 
the reporting period. Financial risk comprises market risk (including 
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and 
liquidity risk. The primary objectives of the financial risk management 
function are to establish risk limits, and then ensure that exposure to 
risks stays within these limits.
 The Board provides written principles for overall risk manage-
ment, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as 
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and credit risk and investing 
excess liquidity. Key financial risk management reports are produced 
frequently and provided to the key management personnel of the 
Company.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finan-
cial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, 
and the Company’s investment risk. The sensitivities to market risks 
included below are based on a change in one factor while holding 
all other factors constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and 
changes in some of the factors may be correlated – for example, 
changes in interest rates and changes in foreign currency rates.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a 
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market inter-
est rates. The Company invests in debt instruments, the fair values 
of which vary depending on market interest rates. At December 31, 
2014, if interest rates at that date had been 10 basis points higher or 
lower with all other variables held constant, interest expense for the 
year would have been:
  December 31, 2014  December 31, 2013

  10 bps 10 bps 10 bps 10 bps
  increase  decrease  increase  decrease

Interest expense  $  171 $   (171)  $  100  $  (100)

Net income is more sensitive to interest rate decreases than increases 
because of borrowings with capped interest rates. The sensitivity is 
higher in 2014 than in 2013 because of an increase in outstanding 
borrowings as a result of the Company drawing on its revolving credit 
facility in 2014.
 Interest rate risk arises from the Company’s financing arrange-
ments (Note 10). Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the 
Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The Company does not have 
borrowings at fixed rates and therefore has no significant exposure 
to fair value interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk
The Company has exposure to monetary and non-monetary for-
eign currency risk due to the effects of changes in foreign exchange 
rates related to consolidated US subsidiaries, investments in 
Tricon American Homes, Tricon Housing Partners, Tricon Lifestyle 
Communities, and cash in US dollars held at the corporate level.  
A 1% increase or decrease (December 31, 2013 – 1%) in the US 
dollar exchange rate would result in the following impacts to assets 
and liabilities:

Potential impact of foreign currency fluctuation
   December 31, 2014

   1% increase  1% decrease

Assets
Investments – Tricon Housing Partners
 US funds $ 3,154 $ (3,154)
 Separate accounts and side-car 
  investments  395  (395)
Investments – Tricon American Homes  3,993  (3,993)
Investments – Tricon Lifestyle Communities  49  (49)
   7,591  (7,591)
Liabilities
Revolving term credit facility  543  (543)

   December 31, 2013

   1% increase  1% decrease

Assets
Investments – Tricon Housing Partners
 US funds $ 2,687 $ (2,687)
 Separate accounts and side-car  
  investments  301  (301)
Investments – Tricon American Homes  2,632  (2,632)
   5,620  (5,620)
Liabilities
Revolving term credit facility  44  (44)
 
The Company manages foreign currency risk by borrowing in US  
dollars and by matching its principal cash outflows to the currency in 
which the principal cash inflows are denominated.
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Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause 
financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. 
The Company has no significant concentrations of credit risk and its 
exposure to credit risk arises through loans and receivables which are 
due primarily from controlled subsidiaries. The loans and receivables 
due from subsidiaries are subject to the risk that the underlying real 
estate assets may not generate sufficient cash inflows in order to 
recover them. The Company manages this risk by:
• Ensuring a due diligence process is conducted on each invest-

ment prior to funding; 
• Approval of all loans by management and the Investment 

Committee; and 
• Actively monitoring the loan portfolio and initiating recovery 

procedures when necessary. 

At December 31, 2014, the Company’s maximum exposure to credit 
risk was $16,080 (December 31, 2013 – $211,789). Through the equity 
portion of its investments, the Company is also indirectly exposed to 
credit risk arising on loans advanced by investees to individual real  
estate development projects. 

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will have difficulty in paying its 
financial liabilities as they fall due or can only do so on terms that 
are materially disadvantageous. Prudent liquidity risk management 
implies maintaining sufficient cash on hand and the availability of 
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. 
The Company uses long-term borrowings to finance its investment 
strategy for Tricon American Homes. Periodic cash flow forecasts 
are performed to ensure the Company has sufficient cash to meet 
operational and financing costs. Liquidity risk from the convertible 
debentures is mitigated at the Company’s option, under the terms of 
the debentures, to settle the obligation with shares. 

The maturity analysis of the Company’s financial liabilities is as follows:

As at December 31, 2014 Demand and less than 1 year   From 1 to 3 years   From 3 to 5 years   Later than 5 years   Total 

Liabilities
Amounts payable and accruals $ 6,536   $ –   $ – $ –  $ 6,536
Dividend payable  5,412   –    –  –    5,412 
Interest payable  2,634    15,127    9,632    1,197   28,590
Bank debt  54,293   –    –  –   54,293 
Debentures payable  –  –   51,675   86,000    137,675
   $ 68,875   $ 15,127   $ 61,307 $ 87,197  $ 232,506

As at December 31, 2014, the Company had a working capital deficit of $67,436 (December 31, 2013 – $6,976). The Company increased  
its use of the corporate credit facility and as of December 31, 2014, the outstanding bank debt was $$54,293 (December 31, 2013 – $4,354). 
The credit facility was used to finance investment activities during the period. The details of the net current liabilities are shown below:

December 31,  2014   2013

Cash  $ 5,731 $ 13,122
Amounts receivable  6,401  2,920
Prepaid expenses and deposits  1,372  416
Current assets  13,504  16,458

Amounts payable and accruals  21,235  13,663
Dividends payable  5,412  5,417
Net current assets (liabilities) before undernoted  (13,143)  (2,622)

Bank debt  54,293  4,354
Net current liabilities $ 67,436 $ 6,976

Management estimates that the Company will receive sufficient cash flow from the Tricon Housing Partners and Tricon American Homes  
businesses to enable repayment of the bank debt. During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company received distributions of $75,694 
from these investments. 
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24. Lease Commitments

The Company has three lease commitments on office premises. The lease on office premises located at 1067 Yonge Street is with Mandukwe 
Inc., a related party (see Note 21). The Company also leases office equipment. The future minimum payments are as follows:

Lease 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total 

Office equipment $ 27  $ 19  $ 17  $ 9  $ 4 $ 76 
Office leases  191  194   194   194    69  842
  $ 218  $ 213  $ 211  $ 203  $  73 $ 918 

Concentration risk
Concentration risk arises as a result of the potential concentration of 
exposures, by country, geographical location, product type, indus-
try sector or counterparty type. The following is a summary of the 
Company’s concentration risk, based on the composition of the fair 
value of its investments – Tricon Housing Partners, Tricon American 
Homes, and Tricon Lifestyle Communities balances:

   December 31, December 31,  

Province/State 2014 2013

Canada    
British Columbia $ 4,650  $ 3,003 
Alberta  3,000  – 
Ontario   5,302    3,668 

USA
California  309,309    285,523 
Arizona  100,553    96,797 
Florida  101,495    72,800 
North Carolina  58,199    52,548 
Georgia  83,506    41,992 
Nevada   55,898   34,669 
Texas    50,101    28,609 
    $ 772,013 $ 619,609

23. Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard 
its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for 
shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce 
the cost of capital. The Company’s capital consists of debt, including 
bank debt, convertible debentures, demand credit facility and share-
holders’ equity. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Company manages equity as capital and may adjust the amount of 
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue 
new shares or sell assets.
 As of December 31, 2014, the Company is in compliance with all 
bank covenants. 
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25. Working Capital 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013

Changes in non-cash working 
 capital items
Amounts receivable $ (2,211) $ (2,178)
Prepaid expenses and other assets   (865)  (114)
Amounts payable and accruals   (4,194)  2,978 
Interest payable   518   (6,449) 
Income taxes payable   7,871    2,146 
  $ 1,119  $ (3,617) 

26. Indemnification

Pursuant to Indemnification Agreements with certain General Partners 
of Limited Partnerships managed by the Company and certain share-
holders of the Company (who are also officers and directors of the 
Company), the Company has agreed to indemnify the General Partner 
and those shareholders and, where applicable, any of their directors, 
officers, agents and employees (collectively, the Indemnified Parties) 
for any past, present or future amounts paid or payable by any of 
the Indemnified Parties to the Limited Partnership in the form of a 
capital contribution or clawback guarantee relating to performance 
fees for any claim or obligation, as set out in the Limited Partnership 
Agreements. There are no amounts payable in respect of this indem-
nification as of December 31, 2014 (December 31, 2013 – $nil). 

27. Variability of Results 

The nature of our business does not allow for consistent year-to-year 
revenue comparisons. Revenues earned from a fund are dependent 
upon where the fund is in its life cycle. At the beginning of the fund’s 
life cycle, consistent contractual fees and general partner distribu-
tions are earned to the end of the investment period. Subsequent 
to the investment period, contractual fees and general partner dis-
tributions start to decline as investments are realized. Performance 
fees that are earned at the end of the life cycle can vary significantly 
depending on fund performance, resulting in volatile revenue streams. 
Similarly, the performance of the Company’s investments carried at 
FVTPL may not be consistent from period to period. 

28. Subsequent Events

Effective January 1, 2015, Tricon and its consolidated entities 
changed the functional and presentation currency to US dollars 
given the increasing prevalence of US dollar-denominated activities 
in the Company over time. As of December 31, 2014, 98% of Tricon’s 
investments were in the United States. The change in functional cur-
rency will remove most of the impact created by foreign exchange 
fluctuations in the financial statements.
 On January 15, 2015, recipients of dividends elected to receive 
91,947 shares under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan (“DRIP”) for a 
total amount of $800.
 On March 2, 2015, the Company announced an increase to the 
existing corporate credit facility from $105 million to $175 million 
with a $25 million accordion feature, with similar terms as the prior 
agreement. The new credit facility, financed jointly by the Royal Bank 
of Canada, JPMorgan Chase Bank, The Toronto-Dominion Bank, 
Raymond James Bank, Bank of Montreal, National Bank of Canada, 
Canadian Western Bank, Laurentian Bank of Canada and Alberta 
Treasury Branches, is scheduled to mature in April 2018.
 On March 10, 2015, the Company declared a dividend of six 
cents per share payable on April 15, 2015 to shareholders of record 
on March 31, 2015 for a total dividend payable of $5,426, following 
approval from the Board of Directors. 
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